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Aircraft On Ground AOG 
Auxiliary Power Unit  APU 
Business & General Aviation  B&GA 
Civil Aviation Authority  CAA 
Component Repair & Overhaul  CRO 
Engine Repair & Overhaul  ERO 
Federal Aviation Administration  FAA 
Fixed Based Operation  FBO 
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Maintenance Repair & Overhaul  MRO 
Original Equipment Manufacturer  OEM 
Recordable Incident Rate RIR 
Regional Turbine Centre RTC 



  

 

 

  

 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

  
 

  
 

  
  

  
 

 

  
  

  
  

Directors’ Report 2
 
Overview 2
 
Group Structure 3
 

Financial Highlights 4
 
Chairman’s Statement 6
 
Board of Directors and Executive Management 8
 
Business Review 10
 
Our Marketplace 10
 
Business Model 14
 
Our Strategy 14
 
Our Strengths 16
 
Principal Risks and Uncertainties 17
 
Key Performance Indicators 18
 
Group Financial Summary 20
 

Flight Support 22
 
— Flight Support Network 24
 
— Signature Flight Support 26
 
— ASIG 32
 

Aftermarket Services and Systems 38
 
— Aftermarket Services and Systems Network 40
 

Engine Repair and Overhaul 42
 —
 

 Legacy Support 48
 —


 APPH 54
 —


Corporate Social Responsibility 60
 
Financial Matters 64
 
Additional Disclosures 66
 
Directors’ Corporate Governance Statement 68
 
Directors’ Remuneration Report 75
 
Going Concern and Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities 84
 

Consolidated Financial Statements 85
 
Independent Auditor’s Report 85
 
Consolidated Income Statement 86
 
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 87
 
Consolidated Balance Sheet 88
 
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement  89
 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 90
 
Accounting Policies 91
 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 95
 

Company Financial Statements 126
 
Independent Auditor’s Report 126
 
Company Balance Sheet  127
 
Accounting Policies 128
 
Notes to the Company Financial Statements 129
 

Principal Subsidiary Undertakings  134
 
Five Year Summary  135
 
Shareholder Information 136
 



’

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

BBA Aviation Overview BBA Aviation is a leading global aviation support and 
aftermarket services provider. 

Our market-leading businesses are well positioned with 
attractive long-term growth prospects. We strive to continuously 
improve our service and product offerings and to exceed our 
customers’ expectations. 

With shared customers, process know-how and a common 
service focus, our businesses consistently look for ways of 
working more closely together for greater gain. 

Our people are the foundation of our success. We aim to be an 
employer of choice, acting with integrity and respect, in a safe 
and sustainable working environment operating through 
empowered employees to deliver exceptional performance. 

This consistent, Group-wide focus is core to our overarching 
objective of delivering exceptional, long-term, sustainable 
value for all our stakeholders. 
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Group Structure 

Revenue by business Flight Support 

Signature £514.2m 

ASIG £227.4m 

Total £741.6m 

Revenue by business Aftermarket Services and Systems 

ERO £336.2m 

Legacy £61.5m 

APPH £43.7m 

Total £441.4m 

Revenue by key markets B & GA  Signature £514.2m
 ERO £225.1m

0 200 400 600 800 Legacy £17.3m 
APPH £7.0m 
Total  £763.6m 

Commercial  ASIG £227.4m
 ERO £85.2m

0 100 200 300 400 Legacy £14.7m 
APPH £17.9m 
Total  £345.2m 

Military   ERO £25.9m
 Legacy £29.5m

0 20 40 60 80APPH £18.8m 
Total  £74.2 m 
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Financial Highlights £m (other than percentage and per share amounts in pence) 2010 2009 Change 

Revenue  1,183.0 1,080.8 9% 

Underlying EBITDA* 149.1 139.3 7% 

Underlying operating profit** 110.6 100.5 10% 

Operating profit  100.4 82.3 22% 

Underlying operating margin 9.3% 9.3% 

Net interest (15.2) (22.3) 

Underlying profit before tax 95.4 78.2 22% 

Exceptional items (10.2) (18.2) 

Profit before tax 85.2 60.0 42% 

Profit for the period 65.0 45.5 43% 

Earnings per ordinary share – basic 

Adjusted†  17.6p 14.6p 21% 

Unadjusted  15.2p 11.4p 33% 

Earnings per ordinary share – diluted 

Adjusted†  17.0p 14.3p 19% 

Unadjusted  14.7p 11.2p 31% 

Dividends per ordinary share 8.1p 7.6p 7% 

Return on invested capital***  9.5% 8.4%
 

Cash generated by operations  154.2 190.4 (19)%
 

Free cash flow****  115.2 137.5 (16)%
 

Net debt  (313.9) (391.6) 


Net debt to underlying EBITDA  2.1x 2.8x 


* Underlying operating profit before depreciation and amortisation 
** Operating profit before exceptional items 
*** Underlying operating profit return on average invested capital including goodwill and intangibles amortised or written off to reserves 
**** Cash generated by operations plus dividends from associates, less tax, interest, preference dividends and net capital expenditure 
(excluding expenditure on Ontic licences) 

† Earnings per share before exceptional items
 

The definitions as outlined above are consistently applied throughout the financial statements.
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Revenue 
Revenue increased by 4% 
on an organic basis 

Underlying operating profi t 
Underlying operating 
profit up 10% 

Earnings per share 
Adjusted earnings per 
share up 21% 

£1,183m
 

£110.6m
 

17.6p
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 Chairman’s 
Statement 

BBA Aviation delivered a good set of results in 2010. With both Flight Support and Aftermarket Services 
and Systems returning to growth, revenue and profitability increased. Our maintained capital discipline 
also resulted in continued strong cash generation and an improved return on invested capital. We also 
made further good strategic progress. 

Our 2010 performance reflects the underlying strengths of our business, our organic growth prospects, 
consolidation opportunities and the focus of our strong management team on implementing 
continued operational improvement. 

Results 
Following an unprecedented downturn in our major markets in 2008 and 2009 it is very encouraging to be 
able to report that the principal driver of our revenues, business and general aviation flying hours in North 
America, grew in 2010 and both of our divisions returned to growth as expected. 

Revenue increased by 4% on an organic basis and underlying operating profits increased by 10% to 
£110.6 million (2009: £100.5 million) as a result of the increased activity across both divisions and other  
factors including further operational improvement. 

Adjusted earnings per share increased by 21% to 17.6p (2009: 14.6p). 

We continued to deliver strong cash flow from the business with free cash flow in the year of £115.2 million 
(2009: £137.5 million). We have now delivered in excess of £325 million of free cash flow in the last three 
years. Net debt was reduced to £313.9 million at the end of 2010 (2009: £391.6 million), despite a foreign 
exchange loss of £12.0 million, and the Group’s leverage ratio (net debt to EBITDA) was improved 
substantially to 2.1 times (2009: 2.8 times). 

At the same time as delivering operationally, we have continued to make strategic progress with the  
addition of two new FBOs at Montreal and Fresno, the international expansion of ASIG into Panama and the 
award to ERO by Honeywell of an independent engine authorisation for Asia Pacific which will allow us to 
expand our presence in this region during 2011. 

This strategic progress has continued in the first quarter of 2011 with Signature’s agreement to acquire the 
Yellowstone Jetcenter FBO in Bozeman, Montana and Legacy Support’s agreement to acquire GE Aviation 
Systems’ fuel measurement business which increases its exposure to the commercial aviation market and 
its non-US product portfolio, as well as adding third generation electronics expertise. 

Dividend 
A final dividend 5.7p has been recommended by the Board (2009: 5.3p) taking the dividend for the full year 
to 8.1p (2009: 7.6p), an increase of 7%. This increase reflects the Board’s continued confidence in the  
Group’s prospects whilst at the same time progressively re-building cover. 
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Corporate Governance 
The Board believes that good corporate governance also contributes to the growth of sustainable value for 
BBA Aviation’s stakeholders. In our Corporate Governance Statement on pages 68 to 74 you can read in 
greater detail about the ways in which the principles relating to the Board’s role and effectiveness set out in 
the UK’s Combined Code on Corporate Governance have been applied in practice over the past year. One 
aspect of this is our programme of briefings, presentations and site visits, at which Board members meet 
senior executives and employees in individual operations. 

Employees 
I would like to record the Board’s sincere gratitude to all of BBA Aviation’s employees who have worked so 
hard through a very difficult period. I am very proud of the contribution they have made during the 
downturn and am very pleased that they too are now able to see the fruits of their efforts as we return 
to growth. 

Our employees remain committed to our overarching objective to grow exceptional, long-term 
sustainable value for all our stakeholders by focusing on BBA Aviation’s vision, mission and values, set out in 
more detail on page 14. Sustainability and CSR are a fundamental part of BBA Aviation’s vision and mission 
and I am pleased to report that we have continued to make good progress in this area as reported in the 
CSR section on pages 60-63. 

Outlook 
As our major markets continue their gradual recovery we expect to make further progress in 2011. 
The  underlying strengths of our business and our organic growth and consolidation opportunities, 
together with a continued focus on operational improvement, mean that we expect to deliver a strong 
performance and generate superior returns over the longer term. 

Michael Harper 
Chairman 
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Board of Directors 

Key to committee members 
Audit Committee 
Nomination Committee 
Remuneration Committee 

Michael Harper 
Chairman 

Simon Pryce 
Group Chief Executive 

Mark Hoad 
Group Finance Director 

Nick Land 
Non-Executive Director, 
Chairman, Audit Committee 

Hansel Tookes 
Non-Executive Director 

Mark Harper 
Non-Executive Director, 
Chairman, Remuneration 
Committee 

Peter Ratcliff e 
Non-Executive Director 

Simon Pryce 
Group Chief Executive 

Hugh McElroy 
President, Engine Repair 
and Overhaul 

Executive 
Management 

Mark Hoad 
Group Finance Director 

Mike Askew 
Managing Director, 
APPH Group 

Peg Billson 
President, Legacy Support 

Keith Ryan 
President, ASIG 

Michael Scheeringa 
President, Signature 
Flight Support 

Martin Filippides 
Group HR Director 

Iain Simm 
Group General Counsel 

Zillah Stone 
Group Secretary 
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Michael Harper (66) 
Chairman 

Simon Pryce (49) 
Group Chief Executive 

Mark Hoad (40) 
Group Finance Director 

Nick Land (63) 
Non-Executive Director 
Senior Independent Director 

Mark Harper (54) 
Non-Executive Director 

Peter Ratcliffe (62) 
Non-Executive Director 

Hansel Tookes (63) 
Non-Executive Director 

Appointed to the Board as a non-executive director in February 2005 and became Non-Executive Chairman in 
June 2007. Michael is an engineer by training and has a wealth of experience gained as a director of Williams plc 
where, on the demerger in 2000, he became Chief Executive of Kidde plc. He is Chairman of both Vitec Group plc 
and Ricardo plc and a Fellow of the Royal Aeronautical Society. 

Appointed to the Board as Group Chief Executive in June 2007. Simon is a Chartered Accountant and a member 
of the Chartered Institute for Securities and Investment who gained international investment banking 
experience in senior positions at JP Morgan and Lazards in London and New York, before broadening his general 
management skills in a variety of roles with GKN plc for nine years, latterly as the Chief Executive of GKN’s 
Diversified Businesses Group. He is on the Board of GAMA (General Aviation Manufacturers Association) and is 
a Fellow of the Royal Aeronautical Society. 

Appointed to the Board as Group Finance Director on 29 April 2010. Mark is a Chartered Accountant. He joined 
BBA Aviation as Group Financial Controller in May 2005 from RMC Group plc where he had worked since 1996 in 
a number of finance roles, including expanding his international business experience with periods based in 
Germany, Croatia and Australia, where he was Chief Financial Officer of ASX-listed company Adelaide Brighton. 

Appointed to the Board in August 2006. Nick was formerly Chairman of Ernst & Young LLP and a member of the 
Global Executive Board of Ernst & Young, positions which he held from 1995 to 2006. In addition to his 
experience as a Chartered Accountant, Nick brings to the Board his extensive skills as an advisor to international 
businesses. His current appointments include being a non-executive director of Vodafone Group Plc, Ashmore 
Group plc and Alliance Boots GmbH. He is Chairman of the board of trustees of Farnham Castle, sits on the 
Finance and Audit Committees of the National Gallery and is Chairman of the board of trustees of Vodafone 
Group Foundation. 

Appointed to the Board in December 2006. Mark is BBA Aviation’s CSR Responsible Director. Following a career 
involving various sales and marketing positions with Ford Motor Company, Lucas Industries and Unipart, Mark 
joined Bunzl in 1986 where he held a number of general management positions, including a period as President 
of a US-based plastics business. He became Chief Executive of Filtrona plc, the international speciality plastic and 
fibre products supplier, when it demerged from Bunzl in June 2005. 

Appointed to the Board in January 2009. Peter brings to the Board his experience of working in an industry 
focused on customer service as he was the Chief Executive Officer of Carnival plc until April 2003 and Chief 
Executive Officer of the P&O Princess Cruises division of Carnival Corporation and Carnival plc from 2003 to 2007. 
He was previously an executive director of The Peninsular and Oriental Steam Navigation Company. He is a  
Chartered Accountant and a dual US/UK citizen. His current appointments include being a non-executive 
director of Carnival Corporation, Carnival plc and Mead Johnson Nutrition Company. 

Appointed to the Board in February 2007. Hansel brings to the Board his operational perspective and experience 
of the aviation industry drawn from nearly 20 years working in various positions at United Technologies Group 
including as President at Pratt & Whitney’s Large Military Engines Group, prior to which he was a Lieutenant 
Commander and military pilot in the US Navy and a commercial pilot with United Airlines. He retired in 2002 from 
Raytheon Inc., where he had formerly been Chairman and CEO of Raytheon Aircraft, and now his current 
appointments include being a non-executive director of Corning Inc., Nextera Energy Inc., Harris Corporation 
and Ryder System, Inc. 
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Business Review 

Our Marketplace BBA Aviation provides aviation support and aftermarket services across three key markets – business 
and general aviation, commercial and military. 

Business and General Aviation 
The Business and General Aviation (B&GA) market accounts for approximately two thirds of our revenue. 
In Signature, we principally focus on business jets but in our Aftermarket Services and Systems business as 
well as jets we also support turbo prop powered fixed-wing aircraft and civil helicopters. Worldwide there 
are more than 16,000 jets, 12,000 turbo props and some 17,000 civil helicopters in operation. 

Following a period of unprecedented growth in deliveries of turbine powered B&GA aircraft and in the 
utilisation of the B&GA fl eet up to 2008, in 2009 and 2010 there was a sharp reduction in business jet and 
turboprop deliveries, and in B&GA flying hours. Original equipment manufacturers (OEMs) saw substantial 
cancellations of orders for new jets and, at the same time, the inventories of used business jets increased to 
historically high levels while prices for these jets tumbled. 

Since our business model is based on supporting the in-service fleet of aircraft, for the most part we have 
not been directly affected by the reduction in new aircraft deliveries as even at the current low level of new 
jet deliveries, the overall fleet continues to grow. 

Whilst we are not affected by the reduction in delivery of new aircraft, we were affected by the reduction in 
flying hours. Having reached a peak in 2007, over the course of 2008 and 2009 US flight activity fell by more 
than 30%, reaching a low point in the second quarter of 2009 before showing sequential improvement and 
eventually returning to growth for the fi rst time in the fourth quarter of 2009. Cyclical recovery continued 
into 2010 with every month showing growth over the same month in the previous year. For 2010 as a whole 
the North American B&GA market grew by 10%. At the end of 2010 the market remained 21% below the 
2007 peak. 

Industry forecasters now expect recovery in new aircraft sales to begin in 2012 with a return to 
pre-recession levels by 2016, with approximately 10,000 new business jets expected to be delivered during 
2011-19. This is one of the indicators that supports our confidence in the growth of this market over the 
long term. 
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Worldwide Business Jet and Turboprop Deliveries 

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 

Turboprop 412 459 535 441 363 

Turbojet 863 1,117 1,298 855 740 

Total 1,275 1,576 1,833 1,296 1,103 

Source: GAMA 
Excludes Airbus ACJ and Boeing BBJ 

The geographic expansion of the B&GA market is expected to continue as forecasts predict some 
40–45% of deliveries in the next five years to be outside the traditional North American Market. Makers of 
long range jets, notably Gulfstream and Bombardier, are preparing to answer the needs of the emerging 
markets with the arrival of the new Gulfstream 650 during 2012 and the Bombardier Global 7000 and 8000 
which are due in 2016/17. However, North America and Europe will continue to be the predominant users 
of B&GA aircraft for the foreseeable future, accounting today for some 80% of all aircraft in operation and a 
greater proportion of flying hours. 

Worldwide Fixed Wing Turbine Powered Business Aircraft

 2010 2009 
Jets Turboprops Total  %  % 

North America 11,922 8,316 20,238 70% 72% 

Europe 2,355 1,013 3,368 12% 11% 

South America 859 1,473 2,332 8% 7% 

Asia 769 565 1,334 5% 4% 

Africa 355 684 1,039 3% 4% 

Australia/Oceania 159 367 526 2% 2% 

Total 16,419 12,418 28,837 100% 100% 

Source: JetNet 

The underlying drivers for B&GA usage remain strong. B&GA is a key efficiency and productivity tool. Travel via 
commercial airlines continue to be subject to long delay and inefficiency from security protocols, crowded 
airport terminals and limited routing options. The security, privacy and flexibility of B&GA travel continues to be 
attractive to both individuals and corporations where time is a valued commodity. Business models for the 
usage and ownership of B&GA aircraft continue to be developed, making B&GA ever more aff ordable and 
accessible. The prevalence of these fundamental growth drivers further supports the continued structural 
growth of the industry, coupled with the ongoing cyclical recovery of B&GA flying hours. 
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Our Marketplace US Business and General Aviation Hours Flown 
Continued 

2010 3,455 

2009 3,161 

2008 3,600 

2007 3,938 

2006 4,077 

2005 3,771 

2004 3,718 

2003 2,704 

2002 2,745 

2001 2,654 

2000 2,648 

1999 2,721 
0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000 

Source: GAMA and FAA estimate 

B&GA Aircraft Movement 
20% 

Market year on year growth 
10% 

Market growth versus 2007 
0% 

-10% 

-20% 
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Forecast Business Jet and Turboprop deliveries 

2016 Turboprop 
Jets 

327
1,127 

2015 Turboprop 
Jets 

305
1,035 

2014 Turboprop 
Jets 

285
953 

2013 Turboprop 
Jets 

264
855 

2012 Turboprop 
Jets 

246
767 

2011 Turboprop 
Jets 

247
691 

Dec 07 Dec 08 Dec 09 Dec 10 

Source: FAA 
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Commercial Aviation 
Our commercial aviation business is focused on providing ground support services including refuelling, 
baggage handling and technical services to commercial airlines around the globe. Our primary growth 
driver in this market is commercial aviation movements. 

2010 proved to be a year of rapid recovery for the world’s airlines after suffering a decline in passenger 
volumes in 2009 and consequent decline in revenues and continued operating losses. Passenger numbers 
increased throughout 2010 but commercial aircraft movements in the USA for the year as a whole 
remained flat as careful management by airlines caused yields to improve dramatically. For 2011 we expect 
to see modest growth in movements in both the USA and Europe, and somewhat stronger growth in the 
Asia Pacific region. Market forecasters predict a global growth rate of 2.8% p.a. in commercial aviation 
movements for the 2010-29 period with the highest growth rates in the Asia Pacific region. 

We continue to see favourable outsourcing trends as commercial airlines, particularly in the more mature 
markets, increasingly regard services such as ground handling and into plane refuelling as non-core. 

Military Aviation 
In the military market our business is focused primarily on the aftermarket support of legacy military platforms. 

While delivering flat to slight increases in spending for 2010, US and European defence budgets are under 
considerable downward pressure as governments look to reduce deficits. The US Secretary of Defense has 
proposed major cuts over a five year period and similar proposals are expected in the UK and elsewhere 
in the EU. We expect to see the majority of these cuts focused on the procurement of new platforms and 
an improved platform efficiency. This is likely to lead to the extension of service lives of selected legacy 
platforms and to the outsourcing of support and supply chain services. This is likely to be positive for our 
business as we continue to support the extended lives of the in-service fleet and as the OEM warranty 
support for the ageing fleet expires. 
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Business Model 

Our Strategy 

BBA Aviation maintains a balanced portfolio of aviation support and aftermarket services businesses which 
have barriers to entry and produce above average growth rates and attractive financial returns, with a 
common focus on growing exceptional long-term sustainable value for all stakeholders. We deliver this 
through active management, effective strategy execution, efficient resource allocation and maximising the 
Group’s intrinsic cross-business opportunities. 

Our Flight Support division provides specialist on-airport support services to the owners and operators of 
business and commercial aircraft. We differentiate ourselves from our competitors through our long-
leasehold network, our technical capability and our focus on customer service. 

Our Aftermarket Services and Systems division services, manufactures and supports engines and 
aerospace components, sub-systems and systems. We operate with high levels of intellectual property 
rights, established through OEM authorisations and licences as well as in-house development. 

BBA Aviation’s vision is to be a dynamic, world class supplier to the global aerospace industry, 
continuously delivering exceptional performance. Our overriding objective is to grow exceptional 
long-term sustainable value for all our stakeholders through: 

– Exceeding customer expectations and competitor off erings 
– Continuously improving market-leading and innovative businesses 
– Working together for greater gain through improved co-ordination and co-operation 
– Being an employer of choice for empowered individuals in a safe and sustainable environment 
– Always behaving with integrity and respect 

To deliver on the vision and mission, BBA Aviation’s employees are unified around a common set of values 
that are a vital and integral part of the way we do business: 

Integrity Responsibility 
We earn the trust and respect of We are committed to managing 
our stakeholders with honesty, 

Integrity 
Responsibility 

Safety 

Service 

Performance 

People 

our impact on, and contributing 
fairness, openness and by positively to, society and the 
honouring our commitments. environment. 

Performance Safety 
We focus on delivery of long- We are dedicated to safety 
term and sustainable value, and security, the elimination 
continuous improvement of hazards and protecting 
and reliability. people, property and our 

environment. 
People 
We are committed to investing Service 
in and empowering our people We strive continually to 
through training and education anticipate customer needs, 
and to providing them with exceeding their expectations. 
opportunities for rewarding 
careers. 

BBA Aviation has developed through a combination of organic growth and bolt-on acquisitions, in markets 
where we have market-leading positions, generate strong cash flow and in businesses that are well placed 
to benefit from cyclical and secular growth. 

In order to support delivery of the vision, each year BBA Aviation’s Executive Management Committee sets 
a series of short and medium-term specific and measurable goals which are then cascaded throughout the 
Group. Each business has actions aligned to the achievement of each of the short and medium-term goals, 
and the execution of those actions is actively monitored by Group management. 
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Each of the five businesses has a clear business unit strategy to compete effectively in its markets and 
to deliver growth: 

Division Business Growth Strategy 

Flight Support Signature Cyclical recovery, continued share gain, structural growth, 
consolidation, enhanced service off ering, operational 
improvement, cross business co-operation 

ASIG Cyclical recovery, increased presence at selected hub and 
international airports, enhanced service offering in core 
locations, operational improvement, cross business 
co-operation 

Aftermarket Services 
and Systems 

ERO New authorisations, military and rotor craft expansion, 
operational/footprint improvement, cross business 
co-operation 

Legacy New licences, active selling, acquisitions of mature 
technology companies, cross business co-operation 

APPH Operational improvement, niche organic expansion, 
cross business co-operation 
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Our Strengths BBA Aviation is a focused aviation support and aftermarket services business, ideally placed to exploit 
opportunities in these cyclical but attractive markets. There are five critical factors which will contribute to 
the continued success of BBA Aviation in the future: 

Market leadership 
– We are market leaders in the markets in which we operate with strong, recognised brands 

– Signature is the world’s leading FBO network with 83 wholly owned worldwide locations and 
20 additional locations in which we have minority interests 

– ASIG is the largest independent refueller in the world 
– Our ERO business has market leading positions in the programmes in which it participates 

Barriers to entry 
–	 The requirement for a lease from an airport authority to operate an FBO; the average unexpired lease 

term of our FBO network in the USA is 17 years 
–	 The need for an authorisation to provide commercial aviation services at individual airports and the 

required technical capability around into-plane refuelling 
–	 The need for a licence from an OEM to service its engines; we are authorised by the OEMs for engine 

overhauls on 80% of B&GA engines now in service 
–	 Intellectual property on aviation component systems and sub-systems which we develop ourselves or 

which we license from OEMs 

Service orientation 
–	 Our businesses have a service focus with low asset intensity, a naturally flexible cost base and are 

highly  cash generative which makes them inherently well suited to deal with market cyclicality as  
demonstrated through this cycle. 

Growth 
–	 There are significant growth opportunities across all of our businesses resulting from cyclical recovery, 

structural growth and the scope for consolidation in fragmented markets. 

Common focus 
–	 The business is actively managed by an empowered, experienced and motivated management team 

with a defined common Group-wide focus as expressed in our vision, mission and values. 
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Principal Risks and Risk Potential Impact	 Mitigation 
Uncertainties General economic downturn – 	Reduction in revenues and profits as a – Strong financial controls to monitor 

result of reduced B&GA and commercial financial performance and provide a 
flying and military expenditure basis for corrective action when required 

– 	 Low fixed costs allow cost base to be 
flexed to meet demand 

– 	 Mixture of early and later cycle businesses 

Catastrophic global event – Reduction in revenues and profits as – Strong financial controls to monitor 
(terrorism, weather) with a a result of reduced B&GA and financial performance and provide a 
material impact on global commercial flying basis for corrective action when required 
air travel – Low fixed costs allow cost base to be 

flexed to meet demand 

Legislative changes causing – Reduction in revenues and profits as a – Active participation in all relevant 
material increase to cost of result of reduction in B&GA flying hours industry bodies 
B&GA flight relative to – Low fixed costs allow cost base 
alternatives to be flexed to meet demand 

Ability to attract and retain – Loss of key personnel – Remuneration structure designed to 
high-quality and capable – Lack of internal successors to key reward superior performance and 
people management roles promote retention 

– 	 Short to medium term disruption – Succession planning process embedded 
to the business	 with review at Executive Management 

Committee and Board level annually 
– 	 Proactive employee development 

Potential liabilities from – Reputational impact with associated – Standard operating procedures with 
defects in services and deterioration in customer relationships routine route cause analysis of 
products – Loss of earnings from liability claims all incidents 

– Liability insurance 

Intentional or inadvertent – Reputational impact – Clear corporate policies and education 
non-compliance with – Exposure to potential litigation in all major risk areas 
legislation or criminal proceedings – Semi-annual compliance certification 

by all senior management 
– 	 Robust internal control environment and 

regular review by internal and external audit 

Foreign exchange rate – Volatility in sterling earnings, balance – 	Dollar borrowings provide partial hedge 
fl uctuations sheet position and financial covenants	 of operating profit volatility through the 

interest line 
– 	 Bank covenants contain ability to test 

at average rates 
– 	 Revenue and cash flow streams 

predominantly in US dollars, matching 
the US dollar assets and liabilities 

Environmental exposures –	 Loss of earnings from cost to remediate – Strong procedural controls and physical 
or potential litigation containment when working with fuel or 

– 	 Potential for loss of licence to operate other hazardous chemicals 
– 	 Greater than expected liabilities – Active management of known 

associated with historical operations	 environmental matters to minimise 
costs to resolve 
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Key Performance BBA Aviation uses a range of key performance indicators (KPIs) tied to the Group’s mission statements 
Indicators to monitor the progress against the goals which have been set to support the delivery of BBA 

Aviation’s overall objective to grow exceptional, long-term, sustainable value for all stakeholders. 

Financial KPIs 

Organic Revenue Growth 
Monitoring organic revenue growth provides a measure 
of the underlying growth of the business. It is measured 
excluding the impact of foreign currency and fuel price 
fluctuations, and any contribution from acquisitions and 
discontinued operations. 

2010 performance: organic revenue returned to growth 
following the significant market downturn in 2008 and 2009. 

Adjusted Earnings per Share 
Adjusted earnings per share measures the profitability 
attributable to shareholders after the impact of interest 
and tax. It excludes the impact of exceptional items and is 
divided by the weighted average number of shares in issue. 

2010 performance: Adjusted earnings per share increased 
by 21% to 17.6p (2009: 14.6p) reflecting the 10% increase in 
underlying operating profit together with a 32% reduction 
in the net interest charge due to lower debt levels and lower 
interest rates. 

Cash Conversion 
Our cash conversion rate measures how eff ectively 
we convert operating profits into cash. Focusing on 
this  measure encourages a strong discipline in the  
management of working capital and decisions on 
capital expenditure. 

2010 performance: Our strong cash conversion continued, 
building on an exceptional performance in 2009. There was 
some benefit from the timing of c.£13 million of collections 
which would otherwise have come in during 2011. 
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Return on Invested Capital (ROIC) 
Measuring ROIC ensures we are focused on the effi  cient use 
of the Group’s assets, with the target of operating returns 
generated across the cycle exceeding the cost of holding 
the assets. ROIC is defined for the Group as underlying 
operating profit expressed as a percentage of average 
invested capital at constant currency, including goodwill 
and intangible assets amortised or written off to reserves. 

2010 performance: 110 basis point improvement in ROIC 
reflects the 10% improvement in underlying operating 
profit whilst maintaining the same invested capital base. 

Non-Financial KPIs 

Recordable Incident Rate (RIR) 
Each of our facilities uses Recordable Incident Rate (RIR) 
as its primary health and safety performance metric. RIR 
measures the number of full-time employees out of every 
100 that sustain a recordable injury or illness. 

2010 performance: The Group-wide RIR at the end of 
2010 was 3.25, 22.25% lower than our 2009 RIR 
performance of 4.18. This represents the lowest rate for 
the current portfolio of aviation businesses since we 
started monitoring. 

Number of locations achieving zero RIR 
Our health and safety strategy seeks to deliver a zero 
incident environment in which every individual is 
responsible. This approach is supported by our ZIPP (Zero 
Incident Philosophy & Process) global safety campaign. 

2010 performance: 124 out of 211 BBA Aviation reporting 
locations achieved an RIR of zero in 2010. This continues the 
improving trend, with 115 sites achieving an RIR of zero in 
2009 and 101 in 2008. 
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Group Financial 
Summary 

2010 2009 Inc/(dec) 20091 Inc/(dec)
 £m £m % £m % 

Revenue 1,183.0 1,080.8 9 1,085.7 9 

Underlying EBITDA 149.1 139.3 7 139.9 7 

Underlying operating profit 110.6 100.5 10 100.9 10 

Operating profit margin 9.3% 9.3% 9.3% 

Total operating profit 100.4 82.3 22 82.2 22 

Underlying profit before tax 95.4 78.2 22 78.4 22 

Adjusted earnings per share 17.6p 14.6p 21 

Profit for the period 65.0 45.5 43 

Free cash flow 115.2 137.5 (16) 

Net debt 313.9 391.6 

Net debt to EBITDA 2.1x 2.8x 

Return on invested capital 9.5% 8.4% 

1At constant exchange rates 

US dollar exchange rates had a limited impact on the comparison of the profit and loss figures with the 
prior year with average rates for 2010 of $1.55 (2009: $1.56), and a relatively small effect on the balance sheet 
with a spot rate of $1.57 (2009: $1.61). The key data for 2009 on the table above is shown as reported and on 
a constant currency basis for ease of comparison. 

Revenue increased by 9% and, excluding the impact of exchange rates, fuel prices and acquisitions and 
disposals, the organic revenue increase was 4%. Underlying operating profits of £110.6 million were 10% 
higher (2009: £100.5 million), as a result of the increased activity across both divisions, further operational 
improvements and a £3.0 million net pensions curtailment gain in the period, which arose as the result of 
the benefit changes to the Group’s UK defined benefit pension scheme in March 2010. The pension gain 
partly offsets the absence of a £4.6 million profit realised in 2009 on accelerated engine sales in Engine 
Repair and Overhaul (ERO). Operating margins for the Group were maintained at 9.3% (2009: 9.3%) 
although on a constant fuel price basis improved by 0.4%. 

The net interest charge was £15.2 million (2009: £22.3 million) with the reduction over the prior period 
primarily due to the lower net debt and lower interest rates. Interest cover improved to 9.8 times (2009: 6.2 
times). Underlying profit before tax increased by 22% to £95.4 million (2009: £78.2 million), and adjusted 
earnings per share increased by 21% to 17.6p (2009: 14.6p). Our tax rate was broadly maintained at 21.2% 
(2009: 21.7%). 
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Profit before tax increased by 42% to £85.2 million (2009: £60.0 million) due to the increase in underlying 
profit before tax outlined above and a reduction in exceptional items to £10.2 million (2009: £18.2 million), 
of which £4.9 million was non-cash. Unadjusted earnings per share were 15.2p (2009: 11.4p). 

We continued to build on the excellent cash flow performance in the prior year and strong cash generation 
in the first half of 2010 with cash conversion for the year as a whole of 124% (2009: 179%) and free cash flow 
of £115.2 million (2009: £137.5 million). Despite the increased activity, free cash flow in the period included a 
working capital inflow of £15.9 million (2009: inflow £57.9 million). This was partly as a result of our 
continuing focus on improving the working capital efficiency of the Group, but also included a short-term 
timing benefit of approximately £13 million. Capital expenditure increased to £27.8 million (2009: £18.7 
million), mainly due to our investment in the PT6T (Twin-Pac®) engine overhaul authorisation for Europe. 
The reduction in the interest charge fl owed through into reduced interest payments of £14.7 million, and 
tax payments were reduced by £9.0 million to £2.6 million (2009: £11.6 million) with the prior year including 
final payments in relation to earlier years. Free cash flow in the prior period included a £17.6 million inflow in 
relation to the accelerated sale and leaseback of a number of engines by Dallas Airmotive. 

The cash dividend payment in the period was reduced to £17.4 million (2009: £21.9 million) with a 46% 
average take-up of the scrip alternative across the two dividends paid in the year. There was a reduction in 
net debt of £77.7 million with a net cash inflow of £89.7 million (2009: £107.2 million) and closing net debt 
was £313.9 million (2009: £391.6 million). Net debt to EBITDA improved substantially to 2.1 times from 2.8 
times at the end of 2009. 

Group return on invested capital improved to 9.5% (2009: 8.4%) as a result of the improvement in 
underlying operating profit and a continued focus on capital discipline. 
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Flight Support Our two Flight Support businesses deliver refuelling, 
ground handling and other services to the business, 
general and commercial aviation markets. 

Signature Flight Support is the world’s largest and market-
leading fixed base operation (FBO) network for business 
aviation with over 100 locations globally. It provides high-
quality, full service support for B&GA travel focused on 
passenger handling and customer amenities such as 
refuelling, hangar and office rentals, and other 
technical services. 

ASIG is the world’s leading independent refueller with 
operations at more than 70 airports worldwide. It safely 
delivers ground support services to commercial airlines 
including refuelling, baggage handling, equipment 
maintenance and de-icing with considerable technical 
expertise by our well-trained staff. 
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Financial Summary 2010 2009 Inc/(dec) 20091 Inc/(dec) 
£m £m % £m % 

Revenue 741.6 643.8 15 646.6 15
 

Organic growth/(decline) 6% (6%) 


Underlying operating profit 73.4 61.8 19 61.9 19
 

Operating profit margin 9.9% 9.6% 9.6% 


Operating cash flow 84.3 88.5 (5) 


Cash conversion ratio 115% 143% 


Return on invested capital 9.7% 7.9% 


1 At constant exchange rates 

Performance Summary Organic growth Cash conversion Return on invested capital 

6% 115% 9.7% 

Revenue in our Flight Support division increased by 15.2% to £741.6 million as a result of increased activity, increased 
fuel prices (£43.8 million) and acquisitions, which added £10.6 million of revenue in the year. Excluding the impact of 
acquisitions and fuel prices and on a constant exchange rate basis, revenue grew by 6% organically. 

Underlying operating profit increased by 19% to £73.4 million (2009: £61.8 million), primarily as a result of higher 
activity levels. Operating margins at constant fuel prices improved to 9.9% (2009: 9.0%). 

Cash generation in the division was again strong with operating cash flow of £84.3 million (2009: £88.5 million), giving 
cash conversion of 115% (2009: 143%). Return on invested capital increased by 180 basis points to 9.7% (2009: 7.9%). 
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BBA Aviation’s Flight Support Network
 

Signature North America & Brazil 
Flight Support 

SNA, Orange County HSV, Huntsville 

PDK, Atlanta 
PSP, Palm Springs FTY, Atlanta 

HXD, Hilton Head 
ICT, Wichita SAV, Savannah 

DAL, Dallas JAX, Jacksonville 
*VQQ, Cecil Field 

SAT, San Antonio MCO, Orlando 
ISM, Kissimmee 

TPA, Tampa FLL, Fort Lauderdale 
PIE, Clearwater MSY, New Orleans 

MEM, Memphis 

STL, St. Louis 
SUS, St. Louis 

ANC, Anchorage MSP, Minneapolis MKE, Milwaukee BNA, Nashville *SBEG, Manaus 

IND, Indianapolis 

BDL, Hartford 

SFO, San Francisco 

MCI, Kansas City PWK, Chicago CYUL, Montreal 
MKC, Kansas City ORD, Chicago 
IXD, Kansas City MDW, Chicago HPN, White Plains 

PBI, West Palm Beach 

MIA, Miami 

BWI, Baltimore 
IAD, Dulles 
DCA, Washington 

BED, Bedford 
BOS, Boston 

CRP, Corpus Christi HOU, Houston 

DEN, Denver 
APA, Denver 

LAS, Las Vegas 

AUS, Austin 

SBA, Santa Barbara 
LGB, Long Beach 

VNY, Van Nuys 

TRM, Riverside 

FAT, Fresno 

DSM, Des Moines TEB, New York 
MMU, Morristown 
EWR, Newark 

STP, St. Paul 
RST, Rochester 

*SBBE, Belém 

The world’s largest FBO *SBBR, Brazília 
network with over 100 
locations in regions with high 
business jet populations. 

*SBFZ, Fortaleza 

*SBNT, Natal 

*SBRF, Recife 

*SBSV, Salvador 

*SBBH, Belo Horizonte 
*SBCF, Belo Horizonte 

*SBVT, Vitória 

*SBRJ, Rio de Janeiro 
*SBGL, Rio de Janeiro 
*SBJR, Rio de Janeiro 

*SBKP, Campinas 
*SBSP, São Paulo 
*SBGR, São Paulo 

*SBCT, Curitiba 

*SBPA, Porto Alegre 

* Minority interest 
locations 

Europe Number of business jets 

LTN, Luton 
LHR, Heathrow 
LGW, Gatwick 

ABZ, Aberdeen 

EDI, Edinburgh North America 11,863 
INV, Inverness 

GLA, Glasgow 

DSA, Doncaster Europe 2,986 
DUB, Dublin 

SNN, Shannon Brazil 728 
EMA, East Midlands
 
BHX, Birmingham
 

CWL, Cardiff LGG, Liège South Africa 168 
SOU, Southampton MUC, Munich 
BOH, Bournemouth 

NCE, Nice China 91 LBG, Paris Le Bourget 
SKG, Thessaloniki 

TLN, Toulon Hyères ATH, Athens 
Total 15,836 HER, Heraklion 

South Africa & China 

CPT, Cape Town *HKG, Hong Kong 

* Minority interest 
locations 
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ASIG	 United States of America, Caribbean & Central America 
With over 70 locations 
worldwide including 37 
of the top 100 hub and 
international airports. 

ORD, Chicago 
MDW, Chicago 

TPA, Tampa 
SRQ, Sarasota 

MSY, New Orleans 
PTY, Panama 

MEM, Memphis 

MKE, Milwaukee 

IND, Indianapolis DTW, Detroit 

CVG, Cincinnati 

BUF, Buffalo 

CLE, Cleveland 

PIT, Pittsburgh 

SFO, San Francisco 

SMF, Sacramento 

PBI, West Palm Beach 
FLL, Fort Lauderdale 

MLB, Melbourne 

LAS, Las Vegas 

SEA, Seattle 

PDX, Portland 

SLC, Salt Lake City 

ABQ, Albuquerque 

AFW, Fort Worth 

AUS, Austin 

SAN, San Diego 

BUR, Burbank 
LAX, Los Angeles 
LGB, Long Beach 

ONT, Ontario 
SNA, Santa Ana 

DEN, Denver 

BDL, Hartford 
FAI, Fairbanks 

JFK, New York 
ANC, Anchorage EWR, Newark 

PHL, Philadelphia 

BWI, Baltimore 
IAD, Dulles 
DCA, Washington 

BNA, Nashville 

CLT, Charlotte 

HSV, Huntsville 
HNL, Honolulu 

ATL, Atlanta 

MCO, Orlando 
SFB, Sanford 

FPO, Freeport 

NAS, Nassau 

SJU, San Juan, P.R. 

MIA, Miami 

Europe	 Commercial air traffic 
movements (000s) 

BHD, Belfast 

North America 31,590 
MUC, Munich 

LTN, Luton LNZ, Linz 
STN, Stansted 

VIE, Vienna Europe 19,404 
LGW, Gatwick KLU, Klagenfurt 

Asia Pacific 12,485 

Latin America/Caribbean 7,927 

Total	 71,406 

Thailand & Northern Mariana Islands 

MAN, Manchester 

LHR, Heathrow 

LCY, London City 

BOH, Bournemouth 

BHX, Birmingham 

ABZ, Aberdeen 

MME, Durham Tees Valley 

LBA, Leeds 

DSA, Doncaster 

BKK, Bangkok GUM, Guam 
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Signature Flight 
Support 

Exceeding customer expectations 

Signature customers expect the best and trust Signature to deliver whatever they need, wherever they 
need it, wherever they are flying to. 

Customers know that on arriving at one of Signature’s 106 FBOs they will be looked after by Signature’s 
world class, customer focused team who are ready to welcome them and their aircraft safely and effi  ciently. 

Signature added two new locations to its network in 2010 at Montreal, Canada and Fresno, California and 
enhanced facilities at many locations. Signature Fresno Yosemite (pictured) is operated by and branded 
Signature under an agreement with McDonald Aviation. Fresno’s executive terminal is 6,100 sq ft and 
features exceptional customer facilities as well as an ultra-modern 40,800 sq ft hangar, the only hangar in 
this region of California capable of accommodating Global Express or Gulfstream size aircraft. 

As well as extending the reach of its network, Signature continues to invest in technology to support its 
customer service promise. Advanced point of sale tools coupled with a new customer relationship 
management system and the Signature Status™ loyalty programme, enables customer teams to provide a 
bespoke service that meets the high expectations of Signature customers. Customers can now even use 
iFBO™, a Signature iPhone® application that gives them immediate handheld access to key fl ight planning 
and service information. 

Fresno, California: chocks are positioned under a Gulfstream 550 at Signature’s new, ultra modern facility. 
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Key Facts Signature is the world’s leading FBO network with a unique network proposition: 

Size and scale Expertise and barriers Strong customer 
to entry relationships 

A truly international Market-leading brand, 9% of US business jets 
FBO network – 106 delivering consistently reside in Signature 
locations worldwide, high service and safety hangars 
of which 83 are standards 
wholly-owned 

160 million gallons Long lease terms Agreements with 
of aviation fuel sold – average 17 year major fractional, 
per annum residual term charter and large 

fleet operators 

1 million aircraft Unique network quality 
movements handled – 45 of the top 50 US 
per annum Metro locations, all 

10 of the top 10 US 
B&GA locations 
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Revenue 2010 2009 Inc/(dec) 20091 Inc/(dec) 

Performance 

£m £m % £m % 

USA 413.6 342.9 21 345.1 20 

Europe & ROW 100.6 92.2 9 91.6 10 

Total 514.2 435.1 18 436.7 18 

1At constant exchange rates 

Revenue increased to £514.2 million from £435.1 million in 2009, an increase of 18% of which 8% was 
organic revenue growth with the balance accounted for by fuel price inflation (£41.5 million). In North 
America revenue increased by 8% organically and in Europe by 4%. Throughout 2010 North American 
B&GA activity continued the recovery that commenced in the last quarter of 2009 and for 2010 as a whole 
market growth was 10% over 2009. For the third year in succession Signature has outperformed the market 
with organic volume growth of 12% in North America, which accounts for 80% of Signature’s revenue. 
In Europe the rate of recovery in market activity was a more modest 5%, partly due to the volcanic ash 
related closure of European airspace in April and May. 

Signature’s continued market outperformance is in part explained by its ongoing commitment to its 
customers. Early in the year Signature announced the launch of Signature Status™, its customer loyalty 
programme which recognises growing customer loyalty through service enhancements. By the end of the 
year Signature’s customer loyalty – a measure of overall customer satisfaction and willingness to return and 
recommend Signature services – had improved to 81%, up 14 percentage points compared to the end of 
2009. Signature completed a global fuel purchasing procurement exercise during the fi rst half of the year 
and continues to work on various other initiatives to enhance operational performance. 

Signature added two new locations to its network in 2010, at Montreal, Canada and Fresno, California. 
The Montreal FBO represents Signature’s entry into the Canadian market via a licensing agreement with 
Starlink Aviation to re-brand and operate its FBO as Signature Flight Support. At Fresno we have deployed 
Signature employees to operate the Signature branded FBO on our partner’s real estate. 

Following an RFP process during the second half of 2010, Signature was notified recently that its FBO lease at 
Miami International Airport would not be extended, although Signature won all the technical aspects of the 
RFP. Signature will continue to operate the FBO until mid-year, and the loss of this location is not expected to 
have a material impact on our expectations for Signature’s future financial performance. 

The extension of the Signature network has continued in the first quarter of 2011 with the agreement to 
acquire the Yellowstone Jetcenter FBO in Bozeman, Montana, a top resort destination for a cash 
consideration of $10.5 million. 
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Fresno, California: a Signature customer’s Gulfstream 550 attached to a 
GPU in preparation for flight. Preferential rates on GPU service across the 
network is one of the Signature Status™ customer benefits. 





 

 

 
 

 

  
 
 

 
 

 
 

ASIG
 Focused on growth 

ASIG’s growing capabilities and the addition of new locations and new services reflects the changing 
needs of the global commercial aviation market and underline ASIG’s status as a market leader. 

In 2010 ASIG extended its European reach with contracts at five new airports in the UK, including fuel 
facility management and aircraft refuelling at Belfast City Airport and Leeds Bradford International Airport. 
Elsewhere in Europe and the UK, ASIG has introduced new services including ground and passenger 
handling and ground support equipment maintenance, some as a direct result of its acquisition of 
SAS Ground Services UK in June. 

With the A380 super jumbo aircraft now in operation, ASIG has pioneered a bespoke service for airlines 
flying the A380 at both Manchester, the first regional airport in the world to operate the A380 daily, and 
London Heathrow airports. ASIG dedicates a team of at least 20 employees to each Emirates A380 
turnaround at Heathrow to ensure that the customer’s demand for excellence is met. In other parts of the 
airport, whether providing a premium service team to assist Emirates’ passengers, fuelling Singapore 
Airlines with up to 200,000 litres of fuel per plane, or de-icing a Qantas A380 ready for take off, ASIG is rising 
to the challenge of servicing the world’s largest aircraft across multiple contact points and locations. 

London Heathrow: ASIG fuels an Airbus A380 aircraft. ASIG fuels the A380 for all three airlines that fly the super jumbo aircraft into 
London Heathrow. 
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Key Facts	 ASIG is a world leading independent commercial aviation service provider, 
managing primary outsourced services for airlines, airports and oil companies: 

Size and scale	 Expertise and barriers Strong customer 
to entry relationships 

72 locations worldwide Brand strength Diverse customer base 
with over 350 customers 

37 of the top 100 hub Breadth of service Long-term 
and international relationships with 
airports major carriers 

Fuelling approximately Location-specifi c critical 
10,000 flights per day mass with labour 

fl exibility 

Industry-leading 
training and safety 
standards 
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Revenue 

Performance 

2010 2009 Inc/(dec) 20091 Inc/(dec) 
£m £m % £m % 

USA 183.1 177.4 3 178.6 3 

Europe & ROW 44.3 31.3 42 31.3 42 

Total 227.4 208.7 9 209.9 8 

1At constant exchange rates 

ASIG’s revenue grew by 9% to £227.4 million (2009: £208.7 million) and grew by 2% on an organic basis, 
excluding £2.3 million of fuel price inflation and the £10.6 million contribution from acquisitions made in 
the year. 

The organic revenue growth was delivered against the backdrop of a North American market where 
movements declined by 1% in the first half of the year and then began to increase in the second half. 
For the year as a whole, flight activity in both North America and Europe was flat. In Europe this was in part 
as a result of the European airspace closures in April and May. 

In the United Kingdom, ASIG won contracts to provide into-plane refuelling and fuel facility management at 
Belfast City Airport, aviation fuel services at Leeds Bradford Airport and fuel services and ground equipment 
repair and maintenance at Bournemouth and London City Airports. In June, ASIG acquired SAS Ground 
Services UK Limited (SGS) for a cash consideration of £2.5 million, giving ASIG access to the passenger and 
ground handling markets at Heathrow and at Aberdeen, which is a new location for ASIG. SGS contributed 
revenue of £10.6 million in the year and is expected to generate incremental revenues of approximately 
£19 million in the first full year of ownership and to be earnings enhancing. By the end of 2010 ASIG was 
operating at a total of 15 airports in Europe. 

In North America ASIG was successful in securing the outsourcing of American Eagle’s refuelling activity at 
Chicago O’Hare International Airport for a five-year period. At Los Angeles International Airport ASIG 
secured a technical services contract to provide equipment maintenance and operations services for 
Terminal 3’s passenger loading bridges and baggage handling system, building on its 25 years of experience 
offering similar services at Terminals 5 and 6. 

The ability to leverage ASIG’s capabilities and expertise beyond the normal boundaries of the airport 
environment has again proven successful. ASIG signed a five- year contract renewal with Walt Disney World 
to provide 20 area resorts and hotels and two cruise ships with luggage logistics services in Orlando. ASIG 
has also been leveraging its expertise in fuel transportation logistics by commencing third party jet fuel 
transportation services off -airport, resulting in new activity in Florida and California. As is usual, ASIG did 
experience some contract losses, but overall the net impact of US contract wins and losses is expected to 
be approximately $4.0 million of additional revenue annually. 

ASIG continues with its strategic expansion in new markets and at the end of the year ASIG was awarded a 
20-year licence to provide complete fuel services at Tocumen International Airport in Panama. This 
operation will be established during the course of 2011. 
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 London Heathrow: the A380 is a double-deck, wide-body, four-engine 
airliner that can fly up to 853 passengers. It has a fuel capacity of up to 
85,472 gallons. 
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 Aftermarket Services 
and Systems In Aftermarket Services and Systems, we service, manufacture 

and support engines and aerospace components, sub
systems and systems. 

Engine Repair and Overhaul is authorised to work on more 
than 80% of the engines powering the business and general 
aviation fleet. 

Legacy Support is the leading provider of high-quality, cost-
effective solutions in the continuing support of maturing 
aerospace platforms to the major aerospace OEMs and 
airframe operators. 

APPH is a niche landing gear and hydraulic sub-systems 
manufacturer, designing, engineering, manufacturing and 
supporting systems and sub-systems for original equipment 
and aftermarket applications. 

38 —  Directors  Report ’ 



  

   
   

 

   

 

 

  

  

  

   

 
  

  
 

 
   

 

   
  

2010 2009 Inc/(dec) 20091 Inc/(dec)Financial Summary 
£m £m % £m % 

Revenue 441.4 437.0 1 439.1 1 

Organic growth/(decline) 0% (17%) 

Underlying operating profit 48.0 48.5 (1) 48.7 (1) 

Operating profit margin 10.9% 11.1% 11.1% 

Operating cash flow 59.6 105.5 (44) 

Cash conversion ratio 124% 218% 

ROIC2 9.1% 8.9% 

1 At constant exchange rates 
2 Including goodwill and intangibles amortised or written off to reserves, based on 12 month rolling operating profit and annual average capital employed at 

constant currency 

Performance Summary Organic growth Cash conversion Return on invested capital 

0% 124% 9.1% 

In the first half of the year, activity in our later cycle Aftermarket Services and Systems division continued to decline as 
expected. It returned to growth in the second half of the year as the impact of increased flying hours over the prior 
6-9 months began to feed through to increased aftermarket demand. Organic growth of 3% in the second half offset 
the revenue decline in the first half, and for the year as a whole revenue of £441.4 million was broadly flat on an 
organic basis (2009: £437.0 million). Operating profits of £48.0 million were in line with the prior year (2009: 
£48.5 million) and operating margins were also broadly maintained at 10.9% (2009: 11.1%). Included within operating 
profit was a £3.0 million net pension curtailment gain realised in the first half and which partly offset the absence of a 
£4.6 million profit realised in 2009 on the accelerated sale of engines in ERO. 

Operating cash flow for the division was again strong at £59.6 million (2009: £105.5 million) representing a cash 
conversion ratio of 124% (2009: 218%). Included within the operating cash flow in 2009 was an inflow of £17.6 million 
in relation to the accelerated sale of engines. Return on invested capital improved slightly to 9.1% (2009: 8.9%). 
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BBA Aviation’s Aftermarket Service and Systems Network
 

ERO United States of America United Kingdom 
4 major repair and overhaul 
facilities and 12 regional 
turbine centres located in St. Paul Neosho 
regions with high business Premier Turbines 

jet populations. 

Regional turbine centre 

Regional turbine centre 

Pittsburgh 

Dayton 

St. Louis 

Regional turbine centre 

Regional turbine centre 

Regional turbine centre 

Dallas 

Millville 

Augusta 

Turb

Regional turbine centre 

Regional turbine centre 

Charlotte 
Regional turbine centre 

Phoenix Portsmouth 
W.H. Barrett Major repair and 

ine Engine Company overhaul facility 
Regional turbine centre West Palm Beach 

Regional turbine centre 

Wichita 

Major repair & overhaul facilities 
Regional turbine centre 

Brazil Number of business jets 

North America 11,863 

Europe 2,986 

Brazil 728 

Total 15,577 

Belo Horizonte 
Regional turbine centre 
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Legacy Support United States of America United Kingdom 
Supporting more than 1,000 
customers worldwide with 
licences for over 4,000 parts. 

Slough 
Ontic 

Houston 
Legacy Support 

Chatsworth 
Ontic 

Broomfield* 
International 
Governor Services 

* International Governor Services (IGS) 
was transferred from Legacy Support 
to ERO with effect from 1 January 2011 
to reflect its focus on component 
repair and overhaul. 

APPH United States of America United Kingdom 
Providing integrated logistics 
support for landing gear and 
hydraulic systems. 

Wichita 
APPH APPH 

Runcorn 

Nottingham 
APPH 

Basingstoke 
APPH 
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 Engine Repair and 
Overhaul (ERO) 

Market-leading new technology 

Fast response times and the ability to resolve customer problems quickly and effectively puts BBA 
Aviation’s engine support teams ahead of the competition. 

ERO’s state of the art F1RST SUPPORTSM command centre, based at Dallas Airmotive, utilises satellite-based 
tracking to provide real time information on the locations of field service personnel, mobile vehicles and 
assets including rental engines, tooling and engine stands. F1RST SUPPORTSM integrates this resource data 
with status data on field service activities, workshop capacity and availability as well as weather, regional 
events and flight tracking, enabling ERO managers to optimise scheduling and deliver an ultra-fast and 
efficient response to customers’ Aircraft on Ground (AOG) needs. 

The centre is staffed by highly skilled field service technical personnel who can manage all aspects of a 
customer’s request on contact. Offsite service personnel are electronically connected to the centre 
meaning the technical expertise of the whole ERO group can be utilised when required. With the new 
system in place, ERO’s initial response time – from customer call to agreed action plan – is regularly a  
fraction of that achieved previously. 

Grapevine, Texas: a Dallas Airmotive specialist engine technician performs an on-stand inspection of a 
Honeywell TFE731 turbofan engine. 
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Key Facts	 Engine Repair and Overhaul (ERO) is a leading independent OEM-authorised 
engine repair company, with over 75 years of experience: 

Size and scale	 Expertise and barriers Strong customer 
to entry relationships 

4 overhaul centres, OEM authorisations Global network 
12 regional turbine supporting 80% of of more than 
centres the B&GA fleet – broad 5,500 customers 

technical expertise 

100+ fi eld service Brand strength and Supporting customers’ 
personnel market leadership diverse engine 

requirements 

More than 2,500 Excellence in product 
engines processed support – AOG, field 
per annum service and network 
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Revenue 2010 2009 Inc/(dec) 20091 Inc/(dec) 

Performance 

£m £m % £m % 

USA 273.0 276.1 (1) 277.9 (2) 

Europe & ROW 63.2 58.3 8 58.3 8 

Total 336.2 334.4 1 336.2 – 

1At constant exchange rates 

In ERO revenue was broadly in line with the prior year at £336.2 million (2009: £334.4 million) although 
excluding the impact on revenue of the accelerated sale of engines in the prior year, revenue grew by 4% 
on a constant currency basis. As expected, overhaul activity began to grow in the second half at a modest 
pace in line with the increase in flying hours seen at the end of 2009. 

ERO has continued to work to enhance its market-leading role in global field service support for aircraft 
operators and during the year opened its F1RST SUPPORTSM centre which provides real-time tracking of 
aircraft, engine assets and personnel by integrated satellite linked data streaming. The centre is a first 
among independent aftermarket companies and gives ERO an advantage in providing ultra fast response 
to our customers’ aircraft on ground (AOG) situations. ERO continued to expand its field service capabilities 
with mobile response units and regional service representatives now numbering 11 and more than 100 
respectively around the world. 

New product Centres of Excellence (COEs) were established during the year. ERO’s Heritage Park facility in 
Dallas became the COE for Honeywell Engines and its Forest Park facility also in Dallas became the COE for 
Pratt & Whitney Canada and Rolls-Royce fixed-wing engines. The facility at Neosho Missouri was 
reconfigured to occupy a smaller footprint and dedicate its focus to Rolls-Royce 250 helicopter and General 
Electric fixed-wing engine services. The engine line for PT6T (Twin-Pac®) at Portsmouth, UK achieved all 
relevant authorisations and became fully operational in the year. 

In 2010 ERO also renewed its PW901 authorisation and added capabilities to support the PW901C, was 
awarded an Americas exclusive repair authorisation for the GE M601 turbo prop engine and early in 2011 
was authorised by Honeywell to carry out hot section inspections on the TFE731 in Brazil. ERO has also 
been awarded an authorisation by Honeywell for the Asia Pacific region. This authorisation covers major 
periodic inspections for TFE731 as well as additional line maintenance services to the existing regional  
Honeywell service network for APU and engine products. ERO will be establishing a regional presence in 
support of this authorisation during the course of 2011. 
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Grapevine, Texas: ERO s state of the art F1RST SUPPORTSM command centre 
integrates real time resource and asset data to deliver an ultra fast 
response to customer needs. 





 

 
 

  

 
 

  

 
 

 

 Legacy Support
 Flexible resources meeting industry needs 

The high degree of engineering capability of technicians based at Legacy Support Houston is replicated 
across the Legacy Support business and is vital to its success. 

BBA Aviation’s Legacy Support companies serve over 1,000 customers, including aircraft owner-operators, 
repair and overhaul shops and distributors, airframe manufacturers and military forces around the world. 
Customers come to Legacy Support’s business units, including Ontic, for pedigree parts that are 
manufactured to the original specification under licence from the original equipment manufacturer and 
are a quality product they can trust. 

Legacy Support’s flexible facilities and technical resources, along with the skill of employees and advanced 
stock forecasting capability, enable it to support a hugely diverse range of legacy components and end 
item assemblies. 

The venerable Hawker 700 and Hawker 800 business jets are typical examples of the classic, out-of
production aircraft in active service around the world thanks to the ready availability of legacy parts. 
Legacy Support Houston’s structures facility focuses on all series of the Hawker aircraft up to the 1000 
series, repairing or overhauling hundreds of structural parts – from wing leading edges to flight control 
actuators – every year. 

Houston, Texas: a centre leading edge section for the Hawker 800 undergoing inspection at Legacy Support’s structures unit. 
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Key Facts Legacy Support is a leading supplier of OEM-licensed legacy products, 
becoming the OEM for non-core, legacy products: 

Size and scale Expertise and barriers Strong customer 
to entry relationships 

More than 1,000 
customers worldwide 

Aftermarket focus with 
licence-based intellectual 
property rights 

Wide range of 
OEM licensors 

Licences for over 
4,000 parts 

Technical strength and 
product focus around 
engine accessories, 
electrical and 
mechanical components 

Diverse, global 
customer base 

Outsourcing of 
manufacture 
and supply chain 
management 

Experienced, 
cross-trained 
workforce 
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Revenue‡ 2010 2009 Inc/(dec) 20091 Inc/(dec) 

USA 

Europe & ROW 

Total 

1 At constant exchange rates 

£m £m % £m % 

58.9 51.8 14 52.2 13 

2.6 0.6 333 0.6 333 

61.5 52.4 17 52.8 16 

Performance 

‡ APPH Houston was transferred from APPH to Legacy Support with effect from 1 January 2010 to reflect its focus on legacy platform support. 
2009 revenues in Legacy Support and APPH have been restated in these results accordingly. 

Revenue for the Legacy Support business grew to £61.5 million (2009: £52.4 million), an organic increase of 
16% over the prior year. Softness experienced in the first half in IGS and Legacy Support Houston’s MRO 
activities abated in the second half and Ontic US experienced significant growth as a result of the ramp-up 
and the second half weighting of revenues from the Goodrich Landing Gear licence. Ontic UK benefited 
from a full year of revenue from the Kidde Graviner Gaseous Emergency Oxygen Equipment licence. 

Ontic US invested significantly in process enhancement to ensure that over the long term it can continue to 
deliver successfully the high growth rates we have seen since its acquisition in 2006. This bore fruit in 
the second half with four months of record revenues and improvements in key operational metrics. 

Ontic US demonstrated its capabilities in delivering on complex US Government contracts through the 
Goodrich Landing Gear licence execution and as a result of this it also won a competitive bid to supply parts 
to the US Army for the Apache helicopter. The order book continued to grow and at the end of 2010 it stood 
at a record $65 million (2009: $56 million). The opportunities to grow the Legacy Support business both in 
the US and the UK through sales from existing licences and new licences continue to be robust due to the 
life extension of military platforms and original equipment manufacturers seeking to rationalise their 
product and platform support off erings. 

In the first quarter of 2011 Legacy Support announced that it had agreed to acquire GE Aviation Systems’ fuel 
measurement business for a cash consideration of $62.5 million. The acquisition enhances Legacy Support’s 
exposure to the commercial aviation market, expands its non-US product portfolio and adds third 
generation electronics expertise, an increasingly important legacy market. 
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 Houston, Texas: a Legacy Support structures technician begins the process 
of repairing a main landing gear fairing for the Hawker 800. 
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APPH
 Delivering continuous improvement 

APPH’s rolling programme of continuous improvement gathered pace in 2010 with the combination of the 
Runcorn and Bolton hydraulics operations and the closure of the Bolton site to remove duplicated 
processes and drive down costs. In a challenging market, APPH is focused on maximising its operational 
efficiency in order to be well positioned for the future. 

Every APPH UK employee is trained in continuous improvement techniques through the company’s 
Continual Improvement Forum set up in 2007. These CI skills are utilised across APPH sites as part of 
development projects at all levels to add value and eliminate waste. This is true for all aspects of APPH’s 
business from large engineering projects down to smaller environmental initiatives. 

APPH’s improvement initiatives at its Runcorn sites are ongoing and it is currently addressing the layout of 
the Runcorn Landing Gear maintenance, repair and overhaul and engineering facilities to improve 
operational efficiency and ensure that the right skill sets are available at the point of need. 

Runcorn, UK: The C27J military transport aircraft main landing gear shock absorber – a large component designed and manufactured 
by APPH at its Runcorn facility. 
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Key Facts	 APPH has a niche focus and technical capability with significant intellectual 
property rights: 

Size and scale	 Expertise and barriers Strong customer 
to entry relationships 

Niche landing gear and 
associated hydraulic 
equipment provider 

Design, development, 
certifi cation and 
manufacture 

Core OEM 
relationships 

64% aftermarket 
support 

Integrated logistics 
support 

Long-term 
relationships with 
top 10 customers 

More than 70% of 
revenues from 
programmes 
where APPH owns 
the intellectual 
property rights 

Product life spans of 
40+ years 

56 — Directors’ Report 



 

  
  

  

  

 

   

 

 

Revenue‡ 2010 2009 Inc/(dec) 20091 Inc/(dec) 

Performance 

£m £m % £m % 

USA 8.3 8.9 (7) 8.9 (7) 

Europe & ROW 35.4 40.7 (13) 40.7 (13) 

Total 43.7 49.6 (12) 49.6 (12) 

1 At constant exchange rates 
‡ APPH Houston was transferred from APPH to Legacy Support with effect from 1 January 2010 to reflect its focus on legacy platform support. 
2009 revenues in Legacy Support and APPH have been restated in these results accordingly. 

As expected, our latest cycle business, APPH did not see any recovery in the year and revenue declined by 
13% organically to £43.7 million (2009: £49.6 million), although there was only a limited deterioration in the 
second half of the year. Demand for original equipment and spares remained subdued throughout the 
year although demand for MRO, particularly on the Hawk and EH101 platforms, did show signs of 
improvement during the year. 

We indicated in 2009 that we would keep the cost base of the business under review and, in the light of 
continued weakness in revenues, the decision was taken to transfer landing gear production from the 
Bolton facility into the Runcorn facility. The closure of the Bolton landing gear facility and transition of 
production to Runcorn was successfully completed in the second half of the year and the costs of closure 
have been included within exceptional items. 

APPH continued to build on its strong reputation for engineering capability and quality with important 
orders secured in the period for a new Hawk programme through BAE Systems supplying Hindustan 
Aeronautics in India and with Agusta Westland on the AW159 helicopter. The two programmes combined 
are expected to generate revenues of $25 million over the next 10 years. 
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Runcorn, UK: a Jas39 Gripen nose landing gear awaiting quality assurance 
clearance before being dispatched to a customer. APPH efficiently 
manages stocks of component parts through the use of bespoke storage 
facilities located immediately to hand. 





 

 

 
 
 
 

 
  

 
 
 
 

  

 
   
   
    

 
    

 
    

 
   

 

 
    

  
 

   
 

 

 
   

 
    

 

 

  
 
 
 

  
 
 
 

 

 

 
    

     
 

    
 

  

    
 
 

 

 
    

 

 
    

   

     
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Corporate Social 
Responsibility 

Sustainability and Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) are a fundamental part of BBA Aviation’s vision, 
mission and values and are key to achieving our goals. 

BBA Aviation’s Approach to CSR is driven by the Group’s values – Integrity, Responsibility, Safety, 
Service, People and Performance – which are a vital and integral part of everything we do. Our values are set 
out in more detail on page 14 and in this section of the Directors’ Report we set out some examples of what 
our approach to CSR means on the ground, as our employees put into practice our commitment to areas of 
Corporate Social Responsibility that are valued by our stakeholders. 

The Board is very pleased with the Group’s progress in each of its areas of CSR focus in 2010. Some of the 
highlights of the past year have been: 124 sites achieving a Recordable Incident Rate of zero; all ERO’s sites in 
the USA now holding ISO14001 accreditation; and starting to see the impact of a structured and Group-wide 
approach to community involvement. This is all further evidence that operating responsibly is becoming part 
of what each of our businesses and our employees think about and do every day. 

Mark Harper, Non-Executive Director 
and CSR Responsible Director 

BBA Aviation’s Approach to CSR 
Sustainability is core to BBA Aviation’s vision, mission, values and 
goals and to the way we do business. Sustainability requires us to 
manage our impact on, and contribute positively to, society and the 
environment and we do this by taking a responsible approach to the 
operation of our companies and the conduct of our personnel. 

Corporate Social Responsibility is incorporated within BBA 
Aviation’s vision, mission, values and goals. Through realising our 
vision to be a dynamic world-class supplier to the global aerospace 
industry, continuously delivering exceptional performance, we aim 
to deliver sustainable value creation in our business for all our 
stakeholders, benefiting local communities with the employment 
and career development opportunities within our operations. 

1. Business Ethics, Engagement & Transparency
 – We are committed to 

– running our business with integrity
 
–
 conducting our operations in compliance with national 

legislation in the countries where they are located 
– benchmarking ourselves against best practice standards and 

seeking to pursue a best practice approach wherever practical
 – We seek to understand the priorities of our stakeholders and 

solicit their feedback
 – We will report transparently in line with best practice standards 

of accountability 

2. Employees
 – We value the diversity of our employees and ensure an 

inclusive environment recognising the importance of equality 
of opportunity

 –	 We support employees through training and development, 
encouraging them to expand their capabilities and realise 
their potential 

3. Health and Safety
 – We are committed to achieving a working environment
 

which is safe and secure and supports healthy lifestyles
 
– We will aim to pursue, achieve and promote best practices
 

on Health and Safety specific to the aviation industry
 

4. Environment 
– We will manage, and strive to reduce, our environmental
 

impact through the more efficient use of the resources our
 
businesses consume
 

–	 We will support innovative developments in technologies that 
support our business objectives and can off er environmental, 
community and social benefits 

5. Human Rights 
– We respect the principles of the Universal Declaration of
 

Human Rights and the International Labour Organisation
 
core conventions and are guided by their provisions in the
 
conduct of our business
 

6. Suppliers 
– We will encourage the application of our Approach to
 

Corporate Social Responsibility by our suppliers
 

7. Customers 
– We will work with our customers in striving to deliver 

Corporate Social Responsibility objectives and sustainability 
in the aviation sector 

8. Community 
–	 We will identify opportunities to benefit local communities 

where we operate through community involvement and 
charitable giving 

Implementation 
We will assess and manage our key Corporate Social Responsibility 
risks and identify and plan the realisation of our key Corporate Social 
Responsibility opportunities, setting annual targets and long-term 
objectives at a local and corporate level, focusing on priority issues. 

Compliance 
Compliance with this approach will be treated in the same manner 
as compliance with other BBA Aviation-wide guidelines. All 
Managing Directors will be required to sign a disclosure statement 
twice each year (mid-year and year-end) acknowledging their 
receipt of a copy of this document; their dissemination of the 
document to their direct reports; and their disclosure of any known 
violations of the document, to the extent not previously reported. 
Compliance with this approach will be the subject of review as part 
of the BBA Aviation Internal Audit Programme. 

Approved by the Board of BBA Aviation plc on 29 July 2010 
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CSR leadership Group-wide 

Providing CSR leadership is the duty of all managers at BBA Aviation, 
each of them taking responsibility for encouraging the right activities 
and behaviours, communicating priorities and meeting objectives. 
Our management structures, reporting systems and internal audit 
practices support this process and allow us to take a Group approach 
to our core CSR areas of Health and Safety, People, Environment and 
Community; to collect consistent sets of key data and to target  
relevant improvements at each site. 

Taking a Group approach has significant benefits, as can be seen 
from BBA Aviation’s considerable progress in health and safety metrics 
in 2010 (see below). We are also proud of the external recognition 
achieved by some of our CSR projects this year, for example, ASIG UK’s 
Gold, Silver and Bronze awards in the Shell Goal Zero health and safety 
programme; Signature San Francisco’s attainment of LEED Gold CI 
certification and all ERO’s sites in the USA now holding ISO14001: 
Environmental Management Systems accreditation. 

Health and Safety 
Protecting the health and safety of our employees and all those 
affected by our business is a priority at BBA Aviation: safety and 
responsibility are two of our core values. 

Operational management are responsible for the management 
of, and continuous improvement in, health and safety performance. 
They are supported by a dedicated team of health and safety 
professionals, both senior level managers and numerous site-based 
managers who assess health and safety risks and who regularly 
evaluate site performance. Performance statistics such as near miss 
reporting, recordable incident data, lost workday case rates and 
workers’ compensation claims are compiled on a continuous basis, 
monitored closely through our management processes and 
presented in regular reports to the Executive Management 
Committee and to the Board. Our global web-based reporting, audit 
and training tools assist us in identifying trends and in developing and 
communicating plans to support further improvements in our health 
and safety performance. 

The Group-wide Recordable Incident Rate (RIR) at the end of 
2010 was 3.25, which is 22.25% lower than our RIR performance of 4.18 
in 2009. This represents the lowest rate for the current portfolio of our 
aviation businesses since we started to compile statistics in 2002. 124 
out of 211 BBA Aviation reporting locations achieved an RIR of zero in 
2010, continuing the improving trend, with 115 of our sites achieving 
an RIR of zero in 2009 and 101 in 2008. 

Each and every one of the 124 sites achieving an RIR of zero 
provides evidence of our progress towards our zero incident goal and 
demonstrates the growing maturity of our safety improvement 
programmes. Each year, as part of those safety improvement 
programmes, fresh targets are set for each business unit with a 
continuing focus on leading indicators. 

People 
People, performance and service are three of our core values and we 
appreciate the talent that each individual brings to BBA Aviation. 

It is important to us to help our employees develop their 
capabilities and realise their potential, and therefore investing in our 
people continues to be an area of focus for BBA Aviation. We began an 

executive education programme at Goizueta Business School, Emory 
University Atlanta in 2009 as part of a rolling programme of senior 
management development and the second class of senior executives 
completed that programme in 2010. 

However, development and training is important at a local as 
well as at a Group level. For example, ASIG’s 17-week ESOL (English for 
Speakers of Other Languages) pilot programme at their Orlando 
operation was expanded in 2010 into a new format and has been 
rolled out to employees at ASIG’s operation at New York’s JFK airport. 
Signature’s Learning Management System has been in use 
throughout 2010, enabling Signature to deliver training modules more 
consistently, more efficiently and in a more sustainable way. The 
system now has more than 85 modules covering topics such as  
orientation, health and safety and the customer service experience 
and 80% of Signature’s employees used at least one of the training 
modules within this system in 2010. 

With the appointment of Tina Everest as Vice President Head of 
Global Talent Management in January 2011, the Group’s talent 
development and training programmes will be further developed. 
The Group has a structured performance appraisal and development 
planning system in place for over 1,000 of our senior employees and 
in 2011 we plan to expand that so all salaried employees benefit from 
this system. 

The encouragement of training and development supports the 
continuous improvement of the calibre of our people, enhances the 
performance of our businesses and can impact positively on the world 
around us. Satisfying the highest ethical standards, complying with 
the law and exercising appropriate sensitivity to the needs of our 
employees, the communities in which we work and the environment 
must be integrated with our business goals in a complementary  
manner. This balance cannot be achieved unless all of our employees 
are engaged in this eff ort. 

Our people form the foundation of each BBA Aviation business. 
To sustain a committed, progressive workforce, it is critical that we  
treat our employees equitably. Part of this investment in our 
employees involves ensuring that we operate fairly at all times and do 
not permit discrimination against any employee or applicant for 
employment on the basis of race, religion or belief, colour, gender, 
disability, national origin, age, military service, veteran status, sexual 
orientation or marital status. This includes giving full and fair 
consideration to suitable applications from disabled persons for 
employment and making appropriate accommodations so that if 
existing employees become disabled they can continue to be  
employed, wherever practicable, in the same job or, if this is not 
practicable, making every effort to find suitable alternative 
employment and to provide relevant training. 

We believe in instilling this commitment to fairness in our entire 
staff and require that all our employees abide by the highest standards 
of ethical conduct. The training programme on our Code of Business 
Ethics has been supported in both the UK and the USA in 2010 by 
e-learning modules. The Code of Business Ethics and the policies on 
bribery and corruption and gifts and entertainments were reviewed 
and updated in 2010. They, along with the policies on disclosure of 
unethical conduct, equal opportunities and anti-harassment 
guidelines and competition law are contained in the Group Policies 
Manual. Compliance with all these policies and with the Group’s 
procedures concerning the appointment and remuneration of foreign 
agents is reviewed as part of the ongoing BBA Aviation Internal Audit 
Programme and the effectiveness of these policies is monitored 
alongside the risk review process described in item 1 of “Systems of 
Internal Control” on page 73. More details on Group policies and the 
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 Corporate Social 
Responsibility 
continued 

procedures supporting them, including the 24-hour “hotline” available 
to all employees in conjunction with the Group’s Disclosure of 
Unethical Conduct Policy, are set out in item 11 of “Systems of Internal 
Control” on page 74. 

We provide our employees with various opportunities to obtain 
information on matters of concern to them and to improve their 
awareness of the financial and economic factors that aff ect the 
performance of the Company. These include “all hands briefi ngs”, staff 
forums and meetings with trade unions that take place throughout 
the year. 

Environment 
Managing the impact of our business on the environment through 
the efficient and safe use of resources and the reduction of waste is a 
key responsibility of our executive team and of the operational 
management teams at each of our facilities. We have been operating a 
Group-wide environmental reporting system for all businesses since 
we became an aviation-focused group in 2006. Each site is required to 
record its own use of resources such as electricity, natural gas and 
water and report regularly, using the same global web-based 
reporting and audit tools employed to compile health and safety 
performance statistics. This system enables us to track and support 
measures to improve the efficient use of the resources our businesses 
consume. We have business, company and divisional-based 
performance targets for environmental measures and these measures 
are reviewed in the quarterly operating review meetings held by 
senior management with each business. We also engage external  
consultants to conduct routine review and validation of our 
environmental metrics and methodologies. 

Through annual self-assessments and site audits, our personnel 
develop site-specific improvement plans, which are reviewed annually 
by senior management. In addition, we also look for evidence of wider 
trends in regions or businesses and monitor developments that may 
have broader applicability, feeding these into Group-wide 
improvement plans . 

Our businesses continue to achieve and maintain external 
certification of environmental practices. This year all the ERO sites 
based in the USA achieved accreditation to ISO14001: Environmental 
Management Systems as did APPH Wichita, making a total of 13 ERO 
sites, three APPH sites and one Legacy Support site with this 
certification. We believe that operating to a recognised set of best 
practices will over time yield positive results. Sites which have 
achieved certification have  found that drawing together 
environmental requirements, programmes and objectives into a 
unified framework has assisted in making environmental matters part 
of the fabric of their daily business life. 

Sites currently holding external certificates include: 
ISO14001: Environmental Management Systems 
– Dallas Airmotive Forest Park 
– Dallas Airmotive Heritage Park 
– Dallas Airmotive Love Field 
– H+S Aviation 
– Premier Turbines Neosho 
– APPH Runcorn Landing Gear 
– APPH Runcorn Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul 
– APPH Wichita 
– Legacy Support Houston 

OHSAS18001: Health & Safety 
– ASIG Durham Tees Valley Airport 
– ASIG Stansted Airport 
– ASIG London Gatwick 
– ASIG London Heathrow 
– APPH Runcorn Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul 
– APPH Wichita 

It is always pleasing to receive external recognition of our  
achievements: as well as ASIG UK’s Gold, Silver and Bronze awards in 
the Shell Goal Zero health and safety programme; ASIG’s Denver 
International Airport operation, which manages the jet fuel facility 
on behalf of the airport’s airline consortium, was presented the 
24-Karat Gold Challenge Award by the State of Colorado for its 
commitment to sustainable environmental stewardship and 
environmental excellence; and at the end of 2010 ASIG became the 
recipient of the “Best Airport Fuel Operator” award for the fifth time. 
This award is based on an independent survey conducted by the 
Armbrust Aviation Group. 

Community 
Each of our sites and businesses recognises the importance of being a 
good neighbour and contributing to the community in which it 
operates. BBA Aviation’s businesses support their local communities 
by encouraging local employment and careers, by using local facilities 
and by playing an active role in a variety of local, regional and national 
organisations and charities. Charities and community projects 
supported are typically identified on a site by site basis; they may 
represent an area of interest for groups of employees or they may be 
particularly local to a site or relevant to BBA Aviation’s business  
activities. They may be supported by donations of time, resources 
or money. 

Giving our employees and businesses the opportunity to 
contribute to organisations in this way brings significant benefits to 
the Group. It motivates our employees, gives them personal 
development opportunities and enhances both our external 
relationships and the reputation of the Group in the communities in 
which we are based and with partners with whom we work. 

BBA Aviation’s Community Involvement and Charitable Giving 
Framework, launched in 2010, sets out the approach that the 
Company and its operating businesses will take with regard to 
projects and volunteering activities in the community and donations 
of time, resources and money. Taking a structured approach, in line 
with BBA Aviation’s values, will increase the impact of the eff orts made 
by the businesses, by focusing energies and moving away from the 
more fragmented activities of past years. Full details of BBA Aviation’s 
Community Involvement and Charitable Giving Framework can be 
found on our website www.bbaaviation.com. 

The range of community involvement events held across the 
Group in 2010 has been diverse. Some of these events have been held 
instead of a more traditional social or teambuilding activity prefacing a 
team conference, but all events have been linked by the theme of 
contributing to the community in which the team operates or meets. 
For example, members of the ERO North America sales team sorted 
clothing donation bags for a children’s charity in Boston; members of 
ASIG’s senior management team and staff refurbished an area in a 
domestic violence shelter in Orlando; and at our Senior Leadership 
Conference in Miami in March 2010 we built and donated 20 bicycles 
and helmets to the Boys and Girls Club of Coconut Grove, part of the 
Boys and Girls Club Miami-Dade network. 
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The Group also launched its new parent company charitable giving 
programme during the year to complement and enhance the 
community and charitable activities of its operating businesses. This 
new approach is intended to lend strength and scale to the eff orts 
already made by our businesses and sites at a local level and make a 
real and sustainable difference to initiatives within our industry and to 
the communities in which our employees live and work. 

Under the programme, BBA Aviation employees can, on behalf 
of a charity or not for profit organisation, apply to the BBA Aviation 
Charitable Giving Committee for a cash donation. In line with the  
Community Involvement and Charitable Giving Framework, priority is 
given to charities and not for profit organisations with a strong and 
current local connection to one of our sites and preference is given to 
organisations connected with aviation, engineering or education. 
Decisions on which organisations to support are made by the BBA 
Aviation Charitable Giving Committee, which has representatives from 
each of the operating businesses and cross-functional representation. 
During the year donations totalling £150,000 have been made by BBA 
Aviation under this programme to charities and not for profit 
organisations supported by our employees. 

The following are illustrative of the charitable donations made 
through this programme during 2010: 

Princess Alice Hospice is a UK hospice charity with close links to 
ASIG Europe through its UK corporate office. This donation of £8,250 
will fund 95 visits of a community nurse to patients in the area. 

Frontiers of Flight Museum in Texas is a National Air & Space Museum 
affiliate that uses aviation as a means of promoting education in 
science, engineering, maths and technology to young people in the 
Dallas-Fort Worth area. Dallas Airmotive has been supporting the 
Museum since 2004 and this donation of $23,550 has, among other 
things, made it possible for the Museum to increase by 22% the 
number of students participating in their school tours in the autumn 
term of 2010. 

Off the Record is an outreach and drop-in organisation with two 
centres supporting disadvantaged young people in the Havant/ 
Portsmouth area, UK. An Aero Engine Technician at H+S Aviation, one 
of the ERO businesses, has been a volunteer counsellor for the 
organisation since 2001 and H+S Aviation supported the organisation 
in 2010 by donating employee time and materials to assist in the  
refurbishing of one of its centres. BBA Aviation’s donation of 
£15,000 will be used to provide further training and support for Off the 
Record volunteers. 

Jason Naugle Memorial Scholarship Foundation funds scholarships 
for young people from the local community of Minneapolis-Saint Paul 
who wish to pursue a career in aviation and has been supported by 
local Signature employees since 1999. This donation of $10,000 will 
fund additional scholarships for the next two years. 

Fondation des Hôpitaux de Paris-Hôpitaux de France is a charitable 
organisation dedicated to improving the experience of people 
needing long-term hospital treatment and their families. Employees at 
Signature Paris Le Bourget have been supporting the charity in a 
variety of ways and this donation of €20,000 will be used to build a 
computer room and fund workshops at a new hospital facility 
especially for teenagers near the Le Bourget base. 

CSR Governance and Reporting 
Responsibility to the Board for relationships with all our stakeholders 
lies with the Group Chief Executive. Mark Harper, a non-executive 
director, is BBA Aviation’s CSR Responsible Director. The Group Health, 
Safety and Environment Director, Kimberly Tuyn reports directly to the 
Group Chief Executive and is responsible for delivering our Group 
Health, Safety and Environment strategy; the Group HR Director, 
Martin Filippides has responsibility for ensuring HR matters are 
co-ordinated at a Group level while the Group Secretary, Zillah Stone, 
has Group-level oversight of CSR activities through chairing the CSR 
Steering Committee. This Steering Committee, which includes 
representatives from our main operating companies as well as these 
functional representatives, provides a focus for CSR initiatives within 
the Group. Members take an active role in promoting CSR and 
influencing change within their individual businesses and functions 
and the Committee meets regularly to share best practice, generate 
new ideas and make recommendations for  new initiatives to the 
Executive Management Committee and to the Board. 

The Group’s Approach to CSR (set out on page 60) is a 
document that is reviewed annually by BBA Aviation’s Board and  
compliance is treated in the same manner as compliance with other 
BBA Aviation-wide guidelines, including being reviewed as part of the 
BBA Aviation Internal Audit Programme. Further details on the process 
for review of risks, including health, safety, environmental and other 
operational risks are set out in item 1 of “Systems of Internal Control” 
on page 73. 

BBA Aviation’s Group Internal Audit team includes a number of 
questions on CSR matters in the annual Control Risk Assessment 
questionnaire which is completed by each of the operating businesses. 
The responses are reviewed and collated by Group Internal Audit and 
then discussed by the CSR Steering Committee and used in the 
development of future CSR action plans. One of the items discussed 
in  2010 was the consistency in approach and understanding of 
CSR  matters across all the Group’s bases and facilities and, as a 
consequence, one of the CSR Steering Committee’s projects in 2010 
was to pilot a CSR guidance manual to help support greater 
consistency. Related projects are being planned by the Committee, 
including looking at ways of communicating the same key messages 
in  different ways, such as posters, presentation slides and screen 
messages. 

We have been a member of the FTSE4Good index since BBA 
Aviation plc was renamed after the demerger in 2006 and BBA Group plc 
had been a constituent of the index since 2001. This index incorporates 
companies that meet globally recognised corporate responsibility 
standards. We also participate in the Carbon Disclosure Project. 

BBA Aviation’s 2009-10 Corporate Social Responsibility Report 
can be found on the Company’s website www.bbaaviation.com. Once 
again we also produced a poster version of that CSR Report which was 
distributed to all our facilities and we plan to produce both a CSR 
Report and poster in 2011, as well as continuing to use CSR messages 
in regular employee shift briefi ngs to support the focus on operating 
responsibly at all levels in our organisation and in alignment with our 
Group’s values. 
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Financial Matters
 

Exchange Rate 
A substantial proportion of BBA Aviation’s revenues and costs are 
US dollar denominated. The US dollar exchange rates for the last three 
years were: 

2010 2009 2008 

US dollars – average 1.55 1.56 1.85
 – spot 1.57 1.61 1.44 

US dollar exchange rates had a limited impact on the comparison of 
the profit and loss figures with the prior year, with average rates for 
2010 of $1.55 compared to $1.56 in 2009, and a relatively small eff ect on 
the balance sheet, with a spot rate of $1.57 compared to $1.61 at the 
end of 2009. The change in the average rate had the eff ect of 
increasing the translated value of pre-tax earnings in the current year 
by £0.5 million compared to 2009. The decrease in the spot rate 
increased the value of our net debt by £12.0 million. 

Central Costs 
Unallocated central costs amounted to £10.8 million (2009: £9.8 million) 
as a result of higher professional fees. 

Exceptional Items 
In 2010 exceptional items amounted to £10.2 million (2009: £18.2 
million) of which £4.9 million was non-cash. The exceptional items 
include £4.2 million in restructuring expenses (2009: £6.0 million) 
associated primarily with the closure of APPH’s Bolton landing gear 
facility and £2.3 million of acquisition related costs (2009: £nil), of which 
£1.4 million related to acquisitions made in prior years. Amortisation of 
acquired intangibles amounted to £3.7 million (2009: £3.8 million). 

The prior period included a £5.5 million non-cash impairment 
charge against our investments in ASIG Thailand and a £1.5 million loss 
on the closure of a small engineering business. 

Acquisitions and Disposals 
In the first half of 2010 the Group acquired SAS Ground Services UK 
Limited for a cash consideration of £2.5 million, giving ASIG access to 
the passenger and ground handling markets at Heathrow and at 
Aberdeen which is a new location for ASIG. The fair market value of the 
assets acquired was £3.5 million, and the resulting gain on acquisitiion 
was £0.8 million. There were no disposals in 2010. 

The Group made no acquisitions in 2009, but disposed of an FBO 
at Indianapolis which had been obtained as part of the Hawker  
Beechcraft acquisition. It was disposed of on 21 August 2009 with  
gross proceeds of £3.3 million generating a gain on disposal of 
£1.1 million. 

Interest 
The net interest charge for the year reduced to £15.2 million (2009: 
£22.3 million). The reduction over the prior period was primarily due to 
the lower net debt and lower interest rates. Interest cover improved to 
9.8 times (2009: 6.2 times). 
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Tax and Dividends 
The normalised tax rate was largely unchanged at 21.2% (21.7%). 

The Board is recommending an increased final dividend of 5.7p 
increasing the total dividend for the year by 7% to 8.1p (2009: 7.6p). 
Dividend cover is increased to 2.2 times (2009: 1.9 times). The Group is 
proposing to offer a dividend re-investment plan (DRIP) in relation to 
the final dividend for 2010. 

Pensions 
The change in benefit accrual for the UK defined benefit pension 
scheme from a final salary basis to a career average re-valued earnings 
basis took effect from 1 March 2010 and as a result a net £3.0 million 
curtailment gain was realised in the first half of the year. This has been 
recognised within underlying profit as it represents a reversal of 
expenses previously charged to operating profi t. The credit has been 
included within the Aftermarket Services and Systems division since 
this is largely where the cost had previously been charged. As a result 
of the changes to benefit accrual, employer cash contribution rates 
have been reduced by approximately £1 million per annum with 
effect from July 2010. 

The 2009 valuation of the UK defined benefit pension scheme 
was also completed during the year, resulting in a £17 million deficit on 
a funding basis. The Company agreed to commence deficit 
contribution payments in 2011 with payments of £3.75 million per  
annum in 2011 and 2012 and £4.75 million in 2013 and 2014. In addition, 
the Company will pay the scheme expenses (circa £1 million per 
annum) on an as-incurred basis rather than capitalising them within 
the deficit as has been the case historically. The next triennial valuation 
is due to be undertaken during 2012. 

The combined accounting deficit for the UK and US pension 
schemes was broadly unchanged at £34.1 million (2009: £33.2 million). 
The UK defined benefit pension scheme showed a surplus of 
£5.2 million on an IAS 19 basis, but this surplus has not been recognised 
as there is insufficient certainty of the Group realising any benefit from 
this through a refund or reduced future contributions. Furthermore, a 
deficit of £15.3  million has been recognised on the UK scheme, 
reflecting the commitment to make deficit contribution payments as 
outlined above. 

Cash Flow and Debt 
We continued to focus on strongly converting operating profits into 
cash during 2010, reducing debt and improving our leverage position, 
so as to create the headroom to execute on the strategic  
opportunities we believe will become available. Cash flow from  
operating activities was again strong at £151.6 million (2009: £178.8 
million) and we generated a working capital inflow, partly as a result of 
our continuing focus on improving the working capital effi  ciency of 
the group but this also included a £13 million year-end timing benefit. 
We again converted operating profit into cash at more than 100%, and 
free cash flow amounted to £115.2 million (2009: £137.5 million). 

Net debt at the end of the year was £313.9 million (2009: £391.6 
million), with a net cash inflow of £89.7 million (2009: £107.2 million) 
and a foreign exchange translation loss of £12.0 million. The take up of 
the scrip dividend alternative meant that the cash dividend payment 
in the period was reduced to £17.4 million (2009: £21.9 million). 

Gross capital expenditure increased slightly to £27.8 million 
(2009: £18.7 million) representing 0.7 times depreciation (2009: 0.5 
times), with the increase in the year mainly attributable to the 
payment for the year PT6T (Twin-Pac®) engine overhaul authorisation 
for ERO in Europe. 



  
  

   
   

     
   

   
   

   

 

 

  
 
 
 

  
  

 
 

   
  

 
  

  
  

 
   

  
 
 
 

  
 

  

   

 
  

 
 

  
 

  
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A significant proportion of our debt is held in US dollars as a 
hedge against our US dollar assets. A profile by currency is shown  
in the table below: 

(Debt)/Cash Profile by Currency
 2010 2009
 £m £m 

Sterling  6 5 
US dollars  (331) (404) 
Euros  11  9 
Others  – (2) 

Total  (314) (392) 

The Group has a syndicated multi-currency revolving credit facility for 
$900 million which expires in September 2012 and a syndicated multi-
currency revolving credit facility for $175 million which expires in 
August 2011. 

The Group policy with respect to cash deposits is to only have 
deposits with pre-approved banks with short term credit ratings of 
A1/P1 and with limits on the amounts deposited with each institution 
dependent on their long term credit rating. Deposits are generally for 
short term maturity (less than three months). 

Financial Risk Management and Treasury Policies 
The main financial risks of the Group relate to funding and liquidity, 
interest rate fluctuations and currency exposures. A central treasury 
department that reports directly to the Group Finance Director and 
operates according to objectives, policies and authorities approved by 
the Board, performs the management of these risks. 

The overall policy objective is to use financial instruments to 
manage financial risks arising from the underlying business activities 
and therefore the Group does not undertake speculative transactions 
for which there is no underlying financial exposure. More details are 
set out in note 17 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Funding and Liquidity 
The Group’s operations are financed by a combination of retained 
profits, equity and borrowings. Borrowings are generally raised at 
Group level from banks and then lent to operating subsidiaries. The 
Group maintains sufficient available committed borrowing facilities to 
meet any forecasted funding requirements. 

At the end of 2010, the Group had two committed bank facilities 
totalling $1,075.0 million of which $606.0 million was drawn across 
them. These facilities are subject to cross-default. Given the level of 
headroom available on the $900 million facility, there is no 
requirement to refinance the $175 million facility. In addition, the 
Group maintains uncommitted facilities for daily working capital 
fluctuation purposes. At the end of 2010, the undrawn amount of 
these uncommitted facilities totalled $31.4 million. 

The rationale for preparing the financial statements on a going 
concern basis is set out on page 84. 

Interest Rate Risk Management 
The interest rate exposure arising from the Group’s borrowing and 
deposit activity is managed by using a combination of fixed and 
variable rate debt instruments and interest rate swaps. The Group’s 
policy with respect to interest rate risk management is to fi x portions 
of debt for varying periods based upon our debt maturity profi le and 
an assessment of interest rate trends. At the end of 2010,  
approximately 53% of the Group’s total borrowings were fixed at 
weighted average interest rates of 3.0% for varying terms of up to 
four years. 

Currency Risk Management 
The Group’s policy is to hedge all significant transactional currency 
exposures through the use of forward currency contracts. Historically 
it was the Group’s policy to hedge overseas capital employed, 
including recognised goodwill, between 50% and 85% by means of 
currency loans and currency swaps. In 2009 the Board undertook a 
review of our hedging policy. In light of the fact that shareholders’ 
funds are no longer as relevant in our banking covenants, and so as to 
minimise volatility in the leverage ratio, the decision was made to 
phase out the use of cross currency swaps in hedging our overseas net 
assets, and in future net assets will be hedged using underlying 
borrowings only. 
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Additional
 
Disclosures
 

Group Results and Dividends 
The results for the year ended 31 December 2010 are shown in the 
Consolidated Income Statement on page 86. 

The directors recommend the payment of a fi nal ordinary share 
dividend for 2010 of 5.7p net per share on 8 June 2011 to shareholders 
on the register at the close of business on 15 April 2011, which together 
with the interim dividend paid on 29 October 2010 makes a total of 8.1p 
net per ordinary share for the year (2009: 7.6p). Information concerning 
the dividend reinvestment plan available to shareholders will be sent to 
shareholders when this report is posted. It is not proposed to off er a 
scrip dividend alternative for the final dividend for 2010. 

Acquisitions and Disposals 
Acquisitions and disposals in the year are described on page 64. 

Events After the Balance Sheet Date 
Events after the balance sheet date are set out in note 27 to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Research and development 
The Group continues to devote effort and resources to research and 
development of new processes and products. Costs of £2.3 million 
have been charged to the income statement during the year. 

Market Value of Land and Buildings 
The directors are of the opinion that the market values of the Group’s 
properties are not substantially different from the values included in 
the Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Financial Risk Management and Treasury Policies 
The financial risk management and treasury policies of the Group 
are set out on page 65 and in notes 16 and 17 to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements. 

Board of Directors 
The current directors of the Company at the date of this report appear 
on pages 8 and 9. Other than Mark Hoad (who joined the Board on 
29  April 2010) they held office throughout the financial year under 
review. Andrew Wood and John Roques both retired from the Board 
on 29 April 2010. 

Directors’ Interests in Shares 
Directors’ interests in shares and share options are contained in the 
Directors’ Remuneration Report. 

Directors’ Indemnities 
The Company entered into deeds of indemnity in 2006, 2007 and 2009 
in favour of each of its then directors under which the Company 
agreed to indemnify each director against liabilities incurred by that 
director in respect of acts or omissions arising in the course of their 
office or otherwise by virtue of their office. On 29 April 2010 the 
Company entered into a deed of indemnity in identical terms in 
favour of Mark Hoad. In addition the Company has entered into an 
indemnity deed poll in substantially similar terms dated 19 March 2007, 
supplemented by supplemental deed polls dated 26 September 2008, 
29 April 2010, 9 July 2010 and 3 September 2010 in favour of members 
of the Executive Management Committee and other members of 
senior management. Where such deeds are for the benefit of directors 
they are qualifying third party indemnity provisions as defi ned by 
s309B of the Companies Act 1985 or s234 of the Companies Act 2006, 
as applicable. At the date of this report, these indemnities are therefore 
in force for the benefit of all the current directors of the Company and 
other members of senior management. 

On 1 November 2007 a subsidiary of the Company, BBA Aviation 
Finance, entered into qualifying third party indemnity provisions as 
defined by s234 of the Companies Act 2006 in favour of its directors 
under which each director is indemnified against liabilities incurred by 
that director in respect of acts or omissions arising in the course of 
their office or otherwise by virtue of their office and such provisions 
remain in force as at the date of this report. 

Agreements 
Under s992 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company discloses that in 
the event of a change of control in the Company: (i) the Company’s 
$900 million revolving credit facility dated 7 September 2007 and its 
$175 million revolving credit facility dated 27 August 2008 could 
become repayable; and the Engine Lease Agreement dated 29 June 
2009 (as amended) under which $36 million of aircraft engines have 
been leased to the ERO business could be terminated; and (ii) certain 
authorisations issued to the ERO business to carry out certain works on 
the authorising OEM’s engines could become terminable by the 
relevant OEM (OEMs include Rolls-Royce, Pratt & Whitney Canada, 
General Electric and Honeywell). Under s992 of the Companies Act 
2006 the Company also discloses an employment agreement 
between a subsidiary company and Keith Ryan entered into in July 
2002 which has provisions such that in certain circumstances relating 
to a change of control of the Company he could receive 
compensation upon termination of employment of up to a year’s  
remuneration, based on base salary, bonus, benefits in kind and 
pension rights during the notice period. 

Under s417 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company discloses 
that certain IT systems that support the ERO, Legacy Support and 
APPH businesses and the banking facilities referred to in the paragraph 
above are essential to the business of the Company. 

Management Report 
The management report required by the provisions of the Disclosure 
and Transparency Rules is included within this Directors’ Report and 
has been prepared in consultation with management. 
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Suppliers Payment Policy Substantial shareholdings 
The Company and Group’s policy is to settle terms of payment with The Company has been notified, as at 1 March 2011, of the following
 
suppliers when agreeing the terms of each transaction, to ensure that material interests in the voting rights of the Company under the
 
suppliers are made aware of the terms of payment and to abide by the provisions of the Disclosure and Transparency Rules:
 
terms of the payment.
 

% 

Share Capital 
Details of the Company’s share capital and changes to the share 
capital are shown in note 21 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 
That note also contains a summary of the rights attaching to each class 
of shares and details of the number of ordinary shares held in  
employee benefi t trusts. Awards granted under the Company’s share 
plans are satisfied either by shares held in the employee benefit trusts 
or by the issue of new shares when awards vest. The Remuneration 
Committee monitors the number of awards made under the various 
share plans and their potential impact on the relevant dilution limits 
recommended by the Association of British Insurers. Based on the 
Company’s issued share capital as at 31 December 2010 these were (in 
respect of the limit of 10% in any rolling 10-year period for all share 
plans) 4.9% and (in respect of the limit of 5% in any rolling 10-year 
period for discretionary share plans) 3.2%. 

The Company was given authority to purchase up to 14.99% of 
its existing ordinary share capital at the 2010 Annual General Meeting. 
That authority will expire at the conclusion of the Annual General 
Meeting in May 2011 unless renewed. Accordingly, a special resolution 
to renew the authority will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual 
General Meeting. 

The existing authority for directors to allot ordinary shares will 
expire at the conclusion of the 2011 Annual General Meeting. 
Accordingly, an ordinary resolution to renew this authority will be  
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. In addition, it 
will be proposed to give the directors further authority to allot 
ordinary shares in connection with a rights issue in favour of ordinary 
shareholders. This is in line with guidance issued by the Association of 
British Insurers. If the directors were to use such further authority in the 
year following the 2011 AGM, all directors wishing to remain in offi  ce 
would stand for re-election at the 2012 AGM. 

Details of these resolutions are included with the Notice of 
Annual General Meeting enclosed with this Report. 

Resolutions at the Annual General Meeting 
The Company’s Annual General Meeting will be held on 4 May 2011. 
Accompanying this report is the Notice of Annual General Meeting 
which sets out the resolutions to be considered and approved at the 
meeting. The resolutions are explained in a letter from the Chairman 
which accompanies the Notice and cover such routine matters as the 
renewal of authority to allot shares (referred to above), to disapply pre
emption rights and to purchase own shares. 

Aviva plc and its subsidiaries 9.85 
Standard Life Investments Ltd  7.861 
Prudential plc group of companies below 5 
Newton Investment Management Limited 4.98 
Black Rock, Inc. 4.97 
Jupiter Asset Management Limited 4.393 
Harris Associates L.P. 4.08 
William H. Gates III 4 
Legal & General Group Plc 3.95 
Barclays Global Investors 3.86 

Charitable and political donations 
Group donations to charities worldwide were £371,000 (2009: 
£149,000) with UK charities receiving £76,000 (2009: £30,000). No 
donations were made to any political party in either year. 

Auditors 
As required by s418 of the Companies Act 2006, each of the directors, 
at the date of the approval of this report, confi rms that: 

a) so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit  
information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware; and 

b) the director has taken all the steps that he ought to have 
taken as a director to make himself aware of any relevant audit 
information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of 
that information. 

Words and phrases used in this confirmation should be 
interpreted in accordance with s418 of the Companies Act 2006. 

A resolution to reappoint Deloitte LLP as auditors of the Company will 
be proposed at the Annual General Meeting. 

Directors’ Report approved by the Board on 1 March 2011 and signed 
on its behalf by: 

Zillah Stone 
Group Secretary 
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Directors’ I am pleased to introduce the Directors’ Corporate Governance Statement. The Board is committed to 
ensuring that appropriate standards of corporate governance are maintained at BBA Aviation and the Board Corporate 
regularly reviews its procedures in the light of emerging good practice; for example at the December meeting 
of the Nomination Committee we discussed the importance of diversity of background in the context of 

Governance 
Statement 

considering the range of skills and experience currently on the Company’s Board. 

The Board believes that good corporate governance helps to 
contribute to improved Group performance. The Board, as a body, 
takes responsibility for the long-term success of BBA Aviation and 
as  Chairman, I am responsible for leading the Board and ensuring 
its eff ectiveness. 

Every year, the Board targets a number of areas for improvement 
– for example succession planning or corporate social responsibility – 
against which progress is reviewed after 12 months and then new 
objectives set. This activity forms part of a broader annual process to 
evaluate the performance of the Board, its members and its main 
committees: more detail about this is included in section 8 below. 
In 2011 the Board is planning for its annual evaluation process to be led 
by an external facilitator, as suggested by the new UK Corporate 
Governance Code. 

Board members appreciate their interactions with shareholders 
and listen carefully to any comments. I welcome your comments on 
this Corporate Governance Statement, or the 2010 Annual Report 
more generally. 

Michael Harper 
Chairman 
1 March 2011 

1. Compliance 
The Board is committed to ensuring appropriate standards of 
corporate governance are maintained at BBA Aviation plc. 

The Company applies the principles of corporate governance 
set out in Section 1 of The Combined Code on Corporate Governance 
(the Code) which sets out the standards of good practice in relation to 
board leadership and effectiveness, remuneration, accountability and 
relations with shareholders. The Board has also been mindful of the 
principles that are stated in the UK Corporate Governance Code which 
was adopted by the Financial Reporting Council in June 2010 and 
which applies to companies with a financial year beginning after 29 
June 2010 (copies of both codes are available at www.frc.org.uk/ 
corporate). The Board monitors the evolution of corporate governance 
best practice, by reviewing and updating its procedures as required 
and  by  adopting, where relevant, recommendations of governance 
review bodies. 

The directors can confirm compliance throughout 2010 with all 
relevant provisions set out in the Code. 

The Independent Auditor’s Report concerning the Company’s 
compliance with the Code appears on page 85. 

2. The Board’s Role 
The Board provides effective leadership and agrees the Group’s 
strategic aims. Its role is to ensure that the Company’s obligations 
to its shareholders are met. 

The Board recognises its collective responsibility for the long-
term success of the Company. Its role includes providing eff ective 
leadership and agreeing the Group’s strategic aims. It assesses 
business opportunities and seeks to ensure that appropriate controls 
are in place to assess and manage risk. It is responsible for reviewing 
management’s performance and oversees senior level succession 
planning within the Group. The Board is responsible for setting the 
Company’s values and standards, ensuring the Company’s obligations 
to its shareholders are met. 

There were six scheduled Board meetings in 2010 and two 
meetings arranged at shorter notice. Details of attendance at 
scheduled Board and Board Committee meetings are shown in the 
table in section 3. Board meetings focus on strategy and fi nancial 
and  business performance and during the year there was also an 
additional meeting of Board members focusing on the longer term 
strategic direction of the Group. Additional meetings are called as 
required to deal with specific matters. The Board agenda is set by the 
Chairman in consultation with the Group Chief Executive, the Group 
Finance Director, other Board members and the Group Secretary. 
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The Board has a formal schedule of matters reserved to it for decision 
including approval of matters such as:

 – strategy and objectives
 – Group policies
 – annual budgets
 – dividends
 – acquisitions and disposals of businesses (over a certain size)
 – expenditure over a certain limit
 – fi nancial results
 – appointment and removal of directors and company secretary 

This schedule of matters is reviewed by the Board on an annual basis. 
Matters outside the scope of this formal schedule are decided by 
management in accordance with delegated authorities approved by 
the Board and Audit Committee. 

The Chairman and each of the non-executive directors has 
provided assurances to the Board that they remain fully committed to 
their respective roles and can dedicate the necessary amount of time 
to attend to the Company’s aff airs. 

3. 2010 Board and Board Committee meeting attendance 
The table below shows the attendance of Board and Board Committee 
members at scheduled meetings. It does not show attendance by non-
Committee members at meetings to which they were invited. 

Audit Remuneration Nomination 
Board Committee Committee Committee 

Number of scheduled meetings 6 4 4 2 
Michael Harper 6 2 
Simon Pryce 6 2 
Mark Hoad* 4 
Nick Land 6 4 4 2 
Mark Harper 6 4 4 2 
Peter Ratcliffe 6 4 4 2 
Hansel Tookes 6 4 2 
Andrew Wood+ 2 
John Roques++  1 1 1 

*Mark Hoad was appointed to the Board on 29 April 2010 and has attended all Board meetings since 
his appointment 
+Andrew Wood retired from the Board on 29 April 2010 
++John Roques retired from the Board on 29 April 2010 

Directors unable to attend scheduled meetings or those arranged at 
shorter notice discuss with the relevant chairman their views on the 
business of that meeting. 

4. The Board and Independence 
At the date of this report, the Board comprises the chairman, four 
independent non-executive directors and two executive directors 
who contribute a wide range of complementary skills and experience. 
Set out on page 9 is a short biography of each current director, 
including that of the Chairman, Michael Harper, who retired from the 
Board of Catlin Group Limited during the year. 

Andrew Wood and John Roques retired as directors of the 
Company on 29 April 2010. Mark Hoad was appointed as Group 
Finance Director on 29 April 2010. On the same date, Nick Land was 
appointed as Senior Independent Director and Michael Harper 
became Chairman of the Nomination Committee. 

The Board has determined that Nick Land, Mark Harper, Peter 
Ratcliffe and Hansel Tookes are independent in character and 
judgement. The Company has formal procedures in place to ensure 
that the Board’s powers to authorise conflicts are operated eff ectively 
and such procedures have been followed throughout 2010. 

The Board has decided that all Board members wishing to continue 
serving on the Board will retire and stand for re-election at the 2011 
AGM. The Board believes that each of the directors should be  
re-elected by shareholders because each continues to be eff ective and 
demonstrates commitment to the role that each of them performs. 

During the year the Chairman met the other non-executive 
directors without the attendance of the executive directors on a number 
of occasions and there was a formal meeting of the Senior Independent 
Director and non-executive directors without the Chairman present. 
There were several other occasions during the year when discussions 
between various directors took place on an informal basis. 

Executive directors must obtain the prior consent of the Board 
before accepting a non-executive directorship in any other company. 
Executive directors may retain the fees from any such directorship. 
No executive directors held non-executive directorships during 2010. 

5. Chairman and Group Chief Executive 
Michael Harper as the Chairman is primarily responsible for leading 
the Board and ensuring its effectiveness. Simon Pryce as the Group 
Chief Executive is responsible for the development and 
implementation of Board strategy and policy and the running of 
the Group’s business. 

Throughout 2010 there has continued to be a clear division of 
responsibilities between the Chairman and the Group Chief Executive. 
This is reinforced by a written statement of the division of 
responsibilities between the two positions which was reviewed and 
updated by the Board in December 2010. 

Michael Harper as Chairman is primarily responsible for leading 
the Board and ensuring its effectiveness. He is responsible for setting 
the Board agenda and ensuring the directors receive information in an 
accurate, clear and timely manner. He is responsible for promoting 
effective decision-making, ensuring the performance of the Board, its 
committees and individual directors are evaluated on an annual basis 
and that appropriate Board training and development occurs. 

Simon Pryce as Group Chief Executive is responsible for the 
development and implementation of Board strategy and policy and 
the running of the Group’s business. He is also responsible for ensuring 
that the business strategy and activities are eff ectively communicated 
and promoted within and outside the business and for building 
positive relationships with the Company’s stakeholders. 

6. Board Appointments 
The Board acknowledges its responsibility for planned and 
progressive refreshing of the Board. It believes that the necessary 
arrangements to manage succession issues promptly and eff ectively 
are in place. There is a formal and transparent procedure for the 
appointment of new directors to the Board, the prime responsibility 
for which is delegated to the Nomination Committee. Further details 
about that committee are set out in section 9 below. 

The Nomination Committee had two meetings in 2010 to 
discuss matters relating to succession planning (one meeting to 
discuss senior executive succession and development planning and 
one to discuss Board succession planning). 

There is a written framework for the induction of new directors 
which includes site visits, meetings with senior management and 
advisers and the provision of corporate documentation. The induction 
of Mark Hoad as a new Board member was mostly focused on the 
obligations and requirements of being the director of a listed 
company, whereas an induction for a non-executive director would 
be more focused on introducing the director to the businesses within 
BBA Aviation. New non-executive directors would also be available to 
meet major shareholders on request. 
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Appointments of non-executive directors are made by the Board for 
an initial term of three years. This term is subject to the usual regulatory 
provisions and continued satisfactory performance of duties following 
the Board’s annual performance evaluation. Re-appointment for a 
further term is not automatic but may be made by mutual agreement. 
In line with the practice adopted in 2010, all continuing directors of the 
Company will retire and stand for re-election at the 2011 Annual 
General Meeting. 

The fees of the non-executive directors are determined by the 
Board as a whole on the recommendation of the Group Chief 
Executive. No director is involved in deciding his own remuneration or 
fees. Details of the fees of non-executive directors in 2010 and 2011 are 
set out on page 81 of the Directors’ Remuneration Report. Letters of 
appointment for the non-executive directors are available for 
inspection by shareholders at each AGM and during normal business 
hours at the Company’s registered offi  ce. 

7. Information and Professional Development 
Board members meet regularly with members of the management 
team. Site visits are arranged for Board members at which they 
also meet employees in individual operations. 

The Chairman takes responsibility for ensuring the directors 
receive accurate, timely and clear information with Board and 
Committee papers being circulated sufficiently in advance of 
meetings. The Board and its Committees are kept informed of 
corporate governance and relevant regulatory developments as they 
arise and receive appropriate briefings. For example, in 2010, the Board 
discussed a presentation on the UK Bribery Act. The Audit Committee 
is routinely briefed on accounting and technical matters by senior 
management and the external auditors which in 2010 included 
discussions on the International Accounting Standards Board 
Exposure Drafts concerning lease accounting and revenue 
recognition. The Remuneration Committee receives updates on 
remuneration trends and market practices as part of its regularly 
scheduled business and in 2010 it was also updated on some of 
the proposed changes to pensions legislation in the UK. The Board 
has also met more informally with several of the Company’s 
corporate advisers. 

In addition to formal Board meetings, the Chairman maintains 
regular contact during the year with other directors to discuss 
specific  issues. Opportunities exist throughout the year for informal 
contact between Board members and with members of the 
senior management team. In addition the Board keeps itself informed 
about the Company’s activities through a structured programme of 
presentations to the Board from each of the businesses within the 
Group and from a number of Group functional leaders. Site visits are 
an important part of this programme enabling Board members to 
meet employees in individual operations. For example, in September 
2010 one of the Board’s scheduled meetings was held in California 
where the Board also toured Signature’s Van Nuys FBO and were 
introduced to ERO’s mobile response unit co-located there. They 
visited ASIG’s fuel farm and ground support equipment maintenance 
shops at Los Angeles International Airport as well as Ontic’s facility in 
Chatsworth, California. 

The Board believes that the identification of individual training 
and development needs is primarily the responsibility of each 
individual director. If particular training needs are identified during the 
annual Board performance evaluation, then plans are put in place and 
the Company provides appropriate resources for developing and 
updating the directors’ knowledge and skills. A more formal register of 
the training that individual directors undertake will be maintained in 

2011 and this register will be periodically reviewed by the Chairman 
with the director concerned as part of the Chairman’s regular review of 
their training and development needs. 

All directors have access to the advice and services of the Group 
Secretary and the Board has established a procedure whereby 
directors wishing to do so in furtherance of their duties may take 
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense. The 
Company arranges appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal 
actions against its directors. The Company has also entered into 
indemnities with its directors as described on page 66 of this 
Directors’ Report. 

8. Performance Evaluation 
In the autumn of 2010 the Chairman, in conjunction with the Senior 
Independent Director, led the performance evaluation and appraisal 
process for the Board, its members and its main Committees. The 
Chairman discussed with each director individually their replies to a 
questionnaire they had previously completed concerning the Board, 
its Committees and their operation; progress made on the action 
points agreed following the 2009 Board performance evaluation 
process; and any concerns the director had and the director’s own 
performance. In addition, the Senior Independent Director, in 
consultation with the other non-executive directors and taking into 
account the views of the executive directors, reviewed the 
performance of the Chairman and the performance evaluation and 
appraisal process as a whole. 

Overall the conclusion from the Board evaluation and appraisal 
process was positive, with each individual director contributing 
actively to the effective performance of the Board and the 
Committees of which he is a member. The Board discussed the main 
points arising from the evaluation and it was agreed that the two 
separate succession and development planning sessions held by the 
Nomination Committee in 2010 were particularly valuable and that  
this approach (one of the outcomes from the 2009 Board evaluation 
process) should be continued. The Board also benefited from 
corporate broker input prior to its annual strategy discussions in the 
autumn of 2010. 

The Board has reviewed the objectives it set itself in 2010 
relating to strategy, succession planning and corporate social 
responsibility, is pleased with the progress it has made and has set 
further objectives for 2011, when it is planned that the Board’s annual 
evaluation process will be led by an external facilitator. 

9. Board Committees 
The Board operates a Remuneration Committee, a Nomination 
Committee and an Audit Committee. Written terms of reference for 
each Committee are reviewed each year and are available on the 
Group’s website www.bbaaviation.com or on request from the 
Group Secretary. 
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a. Remuneration Committee 
Composition 
The composition of the Remuneration Committee during 2010 is set 
out in the table below. All committee members are independent non-
executive directors. 

During Year
 01/01/10 Resigned Appointed 31/12/10 01/03/11 

Mark Harper (Chairman)  – – 
Nick Land  – – 
Peter Ratcliffe – – 
John Roques 29/04/10 – – – 
Hansel Tookes – – 

During 2010 the Remuneration Committee had four scheduled 
meetings and met at shorter notice on three occasions. These 
meetings were minuted by the Group Secretary. Executive directors, 
the Group HR Director and Michael Harper attend Remuneration 
Committee meetings by invitation. 

Role 
The Remuneration Committee has two principal functions:

 – making recommendations to the Board on the framework and 
Board policy for the remuneration of executive directors and other 
designated senior executives; and

 – determining on behalf of the Board the specific remuneration 
package for each of the executive directors, including pension 
rights and any compensation payments. 

Further details of the work of the Remuneration Committee appear in 
the Directors’ Remuneration Report. 

b. Nomination Committee 
Composition 
The composition of the Nomination Committee during 2010 is set out 
in the table below. The Nomination Committee now comprises the 
Chairman, the Group Chief Executive and four independent non-
executive directors. 

During Year
 01/01/10 Resigned Appointed 31/12/10 01/03/11 

Michael Harper 
(Chairman)  – – 
Simon Pryce  – – 
Mark Harper  – – 
Nick Land  – – 
Peter Ratcliffe 29/04/10 
John Roques 29/04/10 – – – 
Hansel Tookes  – – 29/04/10 
Andrew Wood 29/04/10 – – – 

Other directors attend Nomination Committee meetings by invitation. 
The Nomination Committee meets as required. During 2010 the 
Committee had two scheduled meetings, and one arranged on 
shorter notice following consultation with all Committee members. 
This was supplemented by informal meetings, individual briefi ngs and 
meetings between Committee members. 

Role 
The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to:

 –	 make appropriate recommendations to the Board for the 
appointment of replacement or additional directors;

 –	 devise and consider succession planning arrangements 
for directors and senior executives; and

 –	 regularly review the structure, size and composition of the 
Board and make recommendations to the Board with regard 
to any changes. 

In making its appointment recommendations to the Board, the 
Committee reviews the overall balance of skills, diversity of 
background, knowledge and experience on the Board against 
current and future requirements of the Company and, as 
appropriate, draws up a list of required candidate attributes, 
including in the case of a non-executive appointment, the time 
commitment expected. 

The appointment process is initiated by identifying suitable 
external search consultants for the vacancy and preparing details of 
the role and capabilities required for the appointment. The process 
differs in its detail depending on whether the appointment is for an 
executive or non-executive position, but the essentials remain the 
same and it was followed prior to the appointment, with eff ect from 
29 April 2010, of Mark Hoad. The consultant draws up a list of 
potential candidates and a shortlist is created through consultation 
amongst Nomination Committee members. The Board as a whole is 
also regularly updated as to the status of the appointment process. 
Meetings as appropriate are arranged with Committee members 
and the Committee aims to ensure that each Board member 
is given the opportunity to meet any short-listed candidates. 
The Nomination Committee will then meet to fi nalise a 
recommendation to the Board regarding the appointment and the 
final appointment rests with the full Board. 
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c. Audit Committee 

The Audit Committee, as can be seen from the description of its 
role, discharges a number of key responsibilities on behalf of the 
Board and the Company, including monitoring BBA Aviation’s 
financial reporting processes, overseeing the work of the internal 
audit team and reporting on the independence and objectivity 
of the appointed external auditors. 

Nick Land 
Chairman of the Audit Committee 

Composition 
The composition of the Audit Committee during 2010 is set out in the 
table below. All members of the Audit Committee are independent 
non-executive directors. Nick Land, the Committee’s Chairman, has 
relevant and recent financial experience and a professional accountancy 
qualification as considered desirable by the Financial Reporting 
Council’s Guidance on Audit Committees issued in October 2008 
(Guidance on Audit Committees). In addition the other Committee 
members all have experience of corporate financial matters and Peter 
Ratcliffe has a professional accountancy qualifi cation. 

During Year
 01/01/10 Resigned Appointed 31/12/10 01/03/11 

–	 monitor the integrity and audit of the Company’s fi nancial 
statements and any formal announcements relating to the 
Company’s financial performance, including a review of the 
signifi cant financial reporting judgements contained within them;

 –	 establish and oversee the Company’s arrangements for employee 
disclosure and fraud prevention arrangements within the Company. 

The Committee reviews twice yearly reports on the Group’s key 
business risks and the Audit Committee (whose members are also 
members of the Remuneration Committee) is aware of the 
importance of keeping the appropriateness of incentive structures 
under review. The Committee assesses compliance with the directors’ 
responsibility statement. 

There is a twice yearly formal report to the Audit Committee on 
business ethics and compliance, which includes such matters as the 
review of the Group’s Disclosure of Unethical Conduct Policy under 
which staff may, in confidence, raise concerns about possible 
improprieties in matters of financial reporting or other matters. 

The Committee is responsible for making recommendations to 
the Board regarding the remuneration and appointment of its 
external auditors. While the appointment of external auditors is 
considered each year, it is the policy of the Audit Committee to review 
the appointment in greater detail at least every five years, taking into 
account a number of factors, including audit effectiveness at both 
operating company and Group-level; quality, continuity and depth of 
resources and expertise and competitiveness of fees. Such a more 
detailed review was completed in 2008. The appointment of Senior 
Statutory Auditor is also rotated every five years and the Committee 
discussed in 2010 the timing of the next rotation, as Nigel Mercer was 
appointed to this role for the 2008 audit. 

The Audit Committee discharges its responsibilities through the 
review of written reports circulated in advance of meetings and by 
discussing these reports and any other matters with the relevant 
auditors and management. Topics covered by the Audit Committee 
during 2010 and to date in 2011 included: review of any significant  
issues from reports from both the internal and external audits; 
consideration of the audit fee and the balance between audit and 
non-audit fees; assessment of the risk of the possible withdrawal of 
Deloitte LLP from the external auditor market; annual review of the 
terms of reference of the Committee, of the schedule of the 
Committee’s agenda items for the forthcoming year and of BBA 
Aviation’s matrix of authority levels; review of the lessons learned from 
the post-investment appraisals undertaken by management; 
consideration of the future of UK GAAP in view of the Accounting 
Standards Board Exposure Draft concerning this topic; and other 
topics that are described in more detail in section 10. 

In 2010 the Audit Committee held two confidential sessions 
without management present with the Head of Group Internal Audit 
and with the external auditors. 

10. Audit and Accountability 
a. Auditor Independence and Audit Eff ectiveness 
Central to the Audit Committee’s work is the review and monitoring of 
the external auditors’ independence and objectivity and the 
effectiveness of the audit process. The Audit Committee carried out a 
formal audit service assessment in respect of work carried out during 
the year including a review of audit plans and the qualifications, 
expertise, resources, eff ectiveness and independence of the external 
auditors. The Audit Committee has also carried out a self assessment 
and believes that it has satisfied the requirements of the Code and the 

Nick Land (Chairman)  – – 
Mark Harper  – – 
Peter Ratcliffe  – – 
John Roques 29/04/10 – – – 

During 2010 the Audit Committee had four scheduled meetings, 
generally coinciding with key dates in the financial reporting and audit 
cycle and met at shorter notice on one occasion. The external auditors 
and Head of Group Internal Audit regularly attend these meetings 
which are minuted by the Group Secretary. The Chairman, Group Chief 
Executive, Group Finance Director and Group Financial Controller also 
generally join at least part of the Audit Committee meetings by 
invitation. The Committee Chairman may call a meeting at the request 
of any director or the Company’s external auditors. 

Role 
The Audit Committee may consider any matter that might have a 
financial impact on the Group. However, its primary roles are to:

 –	 monitor and review the effectiveness of the Company’s internal 
control and risk assessment;

 – monitor the effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function;
 – review the Company’s external audit function including the annual 

audit plan and results of the external audit and the independence 
of the external auditors;
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Guidance on Audit Committees. The Audit Committee has confi rmed 
that during the year it had formal and transparent arrangements for 
considering financial reporting and internal control principles and 
maintaining an appropriate relationship with the Company’s auditors. 

One of the safeguards to ensure auditor objectivity and 
independence is the Group’s policy on the provision of non-audit 
services by its external auditors. The Committee is aware that the 
Accounting Practices Board has issued further guidance in this area to 
take effect from 30 April 2011 and the Company’s policy will be 
reviewed again in the light of the new guidance. At present the policy 
prohibits the Group’s external auditors from carrying out certain 
additional services for the Group including book-keeping, internal 
audit, valuations, actuarial services and financial systems design and 
implementation. Services which the external auditors may be 
permitted to carry out under the current policy include assurance 
services such as reporting accountant work and tax services. The 
Committee is satisfied that the majority of the tax services supplied by 
Deloitte LLP are compliance-related and represent a small proportion 
of Group tax fees. 

The Company’s policy is not to use the external auditors for 
acquisition and due diligence work. However, where the Group 
considers it appropriate or where conflicts arise, suppliers other than 
the preferred supplier may be asked to tender. This would only include 
the external auditors in unusual and exceptional circumstances. 

Non-audit fees paid or due to the external auditors are regularly 
reviewed by the Committee and those paid in 2010 are set out in 
note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

If fees for non-audit projects within the scope of permitted 
services are expected to exceed £250,000 in a particular year, then the 
Committee Chairman is required to pre-approve each project. In any 
event, specific project approval is required by the Committee 
Chairman for any such project where estimated fees exceed £100,000. 

Deloitte LLP have confirmed that all non-audit services they 
performed during the year were permitted by APB Ethical Standards 
and do not impair their independence or objectivity. On the basis of 
their own review of the services performed, the requirement of pre-
approval and the auditors’ confirmation, the Committee is satisfied 
that the non-audit services currently provided by Deloitte LLP do not 
impair their independence and objectivity. 

b. Systems of Internal Control 
Overall responsibility for the Group’s system of internal control and for 
reviewing its effectiveness rests with the directors. Management is 
accountable to the directors for monitoring this system and for 
providing assurance to the directors that it has done so. The system of 
internal control is essentially an ongoing process embedded in the 
Group’s businesses for identifying, evaluating and managing the 
significant risks faced by the Group, including social, environmental 
and ethical risks. The Group considers that it has adequate information 
to identify and assess significant risks and opportunities aff ecting its 
long and short-term value. 

This process has been in place for the year ended 31 December 
2010 and up to 1 March 2011 and the directors can therefore confi rm 
that they have reviewed the effectiveness in accordance with the 
internal control requirements of the Code throughout that period. 

The Group’s internal system of control is reviewed annually by 
the directors and accords with the guidance issued by the Financial 
Reporting Council in October 2005: “Internal Control: Revised 
Guidance for Directors on the Code”. The system is designed to 
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business 
objectives. It can provide reasonable but not absolute assurance 

against material misstatement or loss, to the extent that is appropriate, 
taking account of costs and benefits. 

The main features of the Group’s internal control and risk 
management systems are listed below. 

1.	 The risks identified through a detailed written self-assessment 
process carried out by division and by function are recorded on a 
risk register together with the mitigations in place. This covers a 
range of different types of risks, such as: 
– business; 
– fi nancial;
 
–
 compliance;
 
– operational; and
 
–
 other categories of risks including health, 

safety and environmental risks. 

In addition the risks identified are plotted on risk maps and both 
the self-assessments and the risk maps are reviewed by the internal 
audit department and by senior management at quarterly 
operating review meetings held with each business. The outcome 
from these reviews is then discussed twice each year at meetings of 
the Executive Management Committee, with the results being 
presented to the Audit Committee, which in turn reviews the 
effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal control on behalf of 
the Board. The Audit Committee receives a report at least twice a 
year from the Group Finance Director detailing the risks and the 
work undertaken in managing the risks faced by the Group. Based 
on this information the Board reviews the risks and confi rms they 
are satisfied that the risks are appropriately mitigated. If this is not 
the case they request that management take further action. 

The process to identify risks and their mitigation has been 
supplemented by externally facilitated risk workshops carried out within 
a number of operating units and with the Executive Management 
Committee and other members of senior management. 

2. 	  An organisational structure is in place at both head offi  ce and 
divisional level which clearly defines responsibilities for operational, 
accounting, taxation, treasury, legal, company secretarial and 
insurance functions. 

3.	 An internal audit function undertakes a programme of risk-based 
reviews of controls and business processes. The role of internal 
audit is defined in a Group Internal Audit Charter and this includes 
its terms of reference, the standards which it adheres to, the scope 
and coverage of its work and its reporting processes. The Audit 
Committee receives a report from internal audit at each meeting 
which includes opinions on the adequacy and eff ectiveness 
of controls by site, a summary of key issues, work schedules 
and details of any action required. In accordance with the Code, 
the Audit Committee regularly monitors and reviews the 
effectiveness of internal audit using outside specialists as well as 
self-assessment techniques. 

4. A Group Finance Manual details accounting policies and fi nancial 
controls applicable to all reporting units. The Group accounting 
policies are aligned with the latest International Financial Reporting 
Standards. Compliance with these policies is reviewed as part of the 
internal audit process. 
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5.	 An annual budgeting exercise is carried out to set targets for each 
of the Group’s reporting units. 

6. Detailed	 management accounts are submitted monthly to 
management which measure actual performance against budget 
and forecasts. The monthly forecasts of sales, profits and operating 
cash are updated on a quarterly basis. The integrity of these 
management accounts with the underlying financial records is 
subject to review as part of the internal audit process. A monthly 
report is provided to the Board, based on these management 
accounts, highlighting key issues and summarising the detailed 
financial information provided by the operating units. 

7.	 Capital expenditure is controlled by means of budgets, 
authorisation levels requiring the approval of major projects by the 
Group directors and by post-investment appraisals. The lessons 
learned from the post-investment appraisals are also shared with 
members of senior management. 

8. Defined procedures are laid down	 for investments, currency 
and commodity hedging, granting of guarantees and use of 
treasury products. 

9.	 A detailed matrix defines the levels of authority for the Group’s 
senior executives and their direct reports in relation to acquisitions, 
capital expenditure, commercial and employee contracts and 
treasury matters. This matrix is authorised by the Audit Committee 
on behalf of the Board and is reviewed on an annual basis.  
Compliance with the authority matrix is reviewed as part of the  
internal audit process. 

10. All significant	 acquisitions and disposals of companies or 
businesses are approved by the Board. 

11. A Group policies manual sets	 out policies and procedures 
concerning: business ethics, bribery and corruption, gifts and 
entertainments, equal opportunities and anti-harassment 
guidelines, competition law, legal policy, market disclosure and 
communications and share dealing. A bi-annual review of 
compliance with such policies by Group companies is carried out 
and senior executives are also required to confirm compliance with 
certain policies twice a year. Group policies are complemented by 
divisional and company-led initiatives and are supplemented by 
the Group’s Disclosure of Unethical Conduct Policy which includes 
a 24-hour “hotline” available to all employees, supported by a 
formal investigation protocol and regular reporting to the Audit 
Committee as part of the twice yearly report to the Audit 
Committee on Business Ethics and Compliance. 

12. A Group Safety Management System Manual details policies, 
standards and procedures which are applicable throughout the 
Group. Further details about Health, Safety and Environmental 
(HSE) matters are set out on pages 61 and 62 and on the BBA 
Aviation website. Annual self-assessment and/or audits are carried 
out at company level against these Group standards. An executive 
summary HSE report is reviewed at each meeting of the Executive 
Management Committee. The Board also receives this summary  
HSE report in addition to updates on HSE activities. These reports 
cover all Group companies and are prepared by the internal Group 
HSE function. Senior managers’ performance and related fi nancial 
incentives are tied in part to their success against selected annual 
HSE improvement objectives. 

11. Shareholder Relations 
The Board as a whole is routinely kept up to date on corporate 
governance developments and the views of BBA Aviation’s major 
shareholders. This was achieved in 2010 through regular meetings 
between the Group Chief Executive, the Group Finance Director and 
major shareholders, which are then reported to the Board as a whole. 
The Board also receives formal written reports from its brokers 
regarding the views of its principal shareholders following its 
preliminary and half yearly results announcements and at other times 
as appropriate. All non-executive directors, including the Senior 
Independent Director, are available to meet with major shareholders 
and in addition, prior to the AGM in 2010, the Chairman also contacted 
the principal shareholders at that time, formally offering them the 
opportunity to raise any issues or questions. The Board considers that 
its non-executive directors, including its current Senior Independent 
Director, Nick Land, have a good level of understanding of the issues 
and concerns of major shareholders, as required by the Code. 

A programme of meetings with institutional shareholders, fund 
managers and analysts takes place each year. The directors seek to 
encourage a continuing dialogue. For example the Company held an 
investor seminar in November 2010 attended by a range of  
institutional shareholders, fund managers and analysts at which the 
Group Chief Executive, Group Finance Director and business heads 
spoke. The Company maintains contact as required with its principal 
shareholders about directors’ remuneration in the same way as it does 
for other matters. 

The Company’s AGM is used as an opportunity to communicate 
with private investors. It is intended that notice of the AGM and related 
papers are sent to shareholders at least 20 working days before the 
meeting. Michael Harper as Chairman of the Board and the 
Nomination Committee, Nick Land as Chairman of the Audit  
Committee and Senior Independent Director, and Mark Harper as 
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and CSR Responsible 
Director will each be available to answer questions, as appropriate, at 
the AGM. Shareholders are given the opportunity of voting separately 
on each proposal. The Company counts all proxy votes cast in respect 
of the AGM and makes available the proxy voting figures (for, against, 
at discretion and “vote withheld”) on each resolution. The voting 
results of the AGM, together with the details of proxy votes cast prior 
to the meeting, are made available on request and on the Company’s 
website. The results of the AGM are announced to the market via a 
Regulatory News Service. 

Directors’ Corporate Governance Statement approved by the Board 
on 1 March 2011 and signed on its behalf by: 

Michael Harper 
Chairman 



 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
 

   

   
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

  
 

  
 

   
 

  
 
 
 
 
 

  
  

 
 

   

  
 

  
 
 

 
  

 
 
 

 

Directors’ Remuneration Report
 

I am pleased to introduce our Directors’ Remuneration Report for 2010, which over the following pages sets 
out the policy, principles and implementation in practice for directors’ remuneration, covering each of the 
constituent elements of their remuneration in turn. I trust you will fi nd the format of this year’s report easy 
to follow. 

The Committee appreciates the dialogue and support it receives from 
investors and welcomes the constructive feedback that investors have 
been able to provide. As you know from our report last year BBA  
Aviation’s Remuneration Committee conducted a major review of the 
structure of the remuneration packages of the Company’s senior 
executives at the end of 2009. As part of the review process, the 
Committee discussed with shareholders, representing over 45% of the 
Company’s share register, our proposals to better align executive 
remuneration with the strategic objectives of the Group and therefore 
the interests of shareholders. As a consequence of the review a 
number of changes were introduced to the structure and balance of 
the key elements of the Company’s remuneration packages in 2010. 
In particular:

 – the 2010 annual bonus plan was weighted to focus on the Group’s 
operating profits;

 – half of any 2010 annual bonus payable to executive directors is 
required to be deferred into the Deferred Bonus Plan;

 – the LTIP awards that will be made in 2011 will have an earnings per 
share performance condition measured over a three-year 
performance period, while the matching awards made under the 
Deferred Bonus Plan in 2011 will have a return on invested capital 
performance condition, also measured over three years. 

The operation of these is described in this year’s report. We believe 
that the changes that were introduced in 2010 and which were 
described fully in last year’s annual report are in the best interests of 
both the Company and all its stakeholders. They are designed to 
reward long-term sustainable performance effectively and to 
encourage retention of key employees and the Committee will 
continue to monitor their impact over the coming years. 

In formulating remuneration policy and its implementation, the 
Committee recognises the need for BBA Aviation to compete 
effectively for executive talent in the different markets in which it 
operates. We  therefore continue to place high importance on the  
need for remuneration to be competitive while reflecting the business 
strategy of the Group. The annual and long-term incentive 
arrangements are designed to drive business strategy and align our 
executive directors with sustainable value creation for our 
shareholders. We also take into account UK best practice for listed 
companies and understand that this and the views of stakeholders are 
constantly evolving and that different market participants have 
different views of best practice. An example of this is the diff ering 
views on what is the most appropriate use of benchmarking data. 

Following the 2010 AGM, we met some shareholders whose shares 
had been voted against the 2010 Remuneration Report and they have 
confirmed that they too are now satisfied with the Group’s 
remuneration structure and practice. 

Mark Hoad was promoted to the Board on his appointment as 
Group Finance Director in April 2010 and this report describes his 
remuneration arrangements in detail for the first time. Andrew Wood 
retired as Group Finance Director on 29 April 2010 and details of his 
remuneration on leaving the Company’s employment are also 
contained in this report. 

The Committee looks forward to contributing to the promotion 
of the long-term success of the Company by ensuring that executive 
directors and other designated senior executives are provided with 
appropriate incentives to encourage enhanced performance that will 
support the growth of the business. 

Mark Harper 
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee 
1 March 2011 
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Directors’ 
Remuneration 
Report 
continued 

Introduction 
This Report details the Company’s remuneration policy and includes 
information on the remuneration of directors for the fi nancial year 
ended 31 December 2010, as well as other specific disclosures required 
such as those relating to directors’ shareholdings and other interests. 

Information in this report is unaudited other than that which is 
required to be audited and that is stated as such in the relevant table. 
This report has been prepared taking into account the provisions of 
The Combined Code on Corporate Governance (the Code) and in 
accordance with the requirements of the Large and Medium-Sized 
Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 and 
the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority. 

This report will be submitted to shareholders for an advisory  
vote at the BBA Aviation AGM in May 2011. 

1. Remuneration Committee 
Although the Board considers itself ultimately responsible for 
remuneration, policy and practice, it has delegated prime 
responsibility for executive remuneration to the Remuneration 
Committee. The Remuneration Committee is a Committee of the 
Board consisting exclusively of non-executive directors and its 
meetings are minuted by the Group Secretary. No Director is directly 
involved in the determination of, or votes on, any matter relating to 
their own remuneration. 

The Committee is responsible for determining executive 
directors’ remuneration (including targets for the annual bonus) and 
reviewing proposals in respect of other senior executives. It also 
determines the targets for longer-term performance-related share 
schemes operated by the Company and oversees any major changes 
in employee benefit structures throughout the Group. Further 
information on the work of the Remuneration Committee and details 
of the Committee’s membership are set out on page 71. 

During the year the Committee received advice from Towers 
Watson as the Committee’s appointed remuneration advisers. In 2010 
Towers Watson provided benchmarking information relating to the 
executive directors and other senior executives. In addition, Towers 
Watson provided general advice in relation to remuneration strategy, 
background information about remuneration trends and calculations 
of total shareholder return in connection with the BBA 2006 Deferred 
Bonus and Long-Term Incentive Plans. 

Towers Watson also provides advice to the Company in respect 
of individuals outside the terms of reference of the Remuneration 
Committee, including advice on human resource policies, 
benchmarking information including on non-executive directors’ fees, 
advice on healthcare and benefits provision, pension administration 
and actuarial services. Towers Watson is a member of the 
Remuneration Consultants Group and is committed to that Group’s 
voluntary code of practice for remuneration consultants in the UK. This 
includes processes for ensuring integrity and objectivity of advice to 
the Remuneration Committee. 

During the year, the Committee also consulted the Chairman, 
the Group Chief Executive, the Group Finance Director, the Group HR 
Director and the Group Secretary in connection with the Committee’s 
work. It is expected that the Committee will wish to continue to  
consult with them in 2011 and that they will continue to be invited 
to attend Committee meetings. 

2. Remuneration Policy 
The Committee believes that a significant element of executive 
directors’ remuneration should be linked to performance-related 
long-term incentives. 

The Group’s remuneration policy is intended to ensure that the 
remuneration of executive directors and other senior executives 
properly reflects their duties and responsibilities and is suffi  cient to 
attract, retain and motivate high calibre senior management capable 
collectively of delivering the goals of the Company. 

The policy of the Committee is to provide base salaries that are 
positioned around mid-market when compared with relevant local  
market data to ensure that it can retain and recruit suitable talent. In 
determining short and long-term incentives, reference is made to the 
wider, regional and global markets. 

The Remuneration Committee believes that a significant 
element of executive directors’ remuneration should be linked to 
performance-related long-term incentives and that alignment 
between Group strategy and the remuneration of its senior executives 
is critical. 

This policy is reflected in the Deferred Bonus Plan where the 
Matching Awards will only vest if demanding Return on Invested 
Capital (ROIC) targets are met (see below for more detail). The 
compulsory requirement to defer bonus ties the long-term value of 
executive remuneration closely to the Company’s performance. 

Total executive remuneration is structured to create the  
potential for upper quartile rewards based on the delivery of superior 
performance with a significant proportion of variable pay subject to 
stretching performance targets. The Committee believes that the 
remuneration packages of the executive directors contain a suitable 
balance of directly performance-related remuneration which links 
both the short-term financial performance of the Group and long-
term shareholder returns with the executives’ total remuneration. 

In connection with the ABI Responsible Investment Disclosure 
Guidelines, the Remuneration Committee confirms that it considers 
corporate performance on environmental, social and governance 
issues when setting the remuneration of executive directors. The 
Committee also believes that the incentive structure for senior 
management does not raise environmental, social or governance risks 
by inadvertently motivating irresponsible behaviour and is compatible 
with the Company’s risk policies and systems. 

To ensure that the Company offers the best available incentives 
to enhance shareholder value, the Committee assesses the constituent 
elements of the remuneration of the executive directors: 

Fixed elements: 

– salary, benefits and service contract 
– pension 

Variable elements 
– annual bonus 
– deferred bonus plan 
– long-term incentive plan and executive share option plan 

In determining remuneration, consideration is given to reward levels 
throughout the organisation as well as in the external employment 
market. The Committee aims to reward employees fairly based on 
their role, their experience, their performance and salary levels in the 
wider market. 

The remuneration policy described in this report will be kept 
under review, but the current intention is that the policy should 
continue to apply in future fi nancial years. 
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The following chart shows the balance between fixed and variable 
elements of the remuneration package for executive directors. The 
upper bar shows the position (labelled target) if half of the maximum 
potential variable remuneration was received. The lower bar shows 
the position (labelled stretch) if all of the maximum potential variable 
remuneration was received. The targets for variable remuneration are 
strongly aligned to the Company’s strategic objective of creating 
long-term sustainable value and the proportion of total remuneration 
that is variable remuneration increases as more of the stretching  
performance conditions and targets are achieved. 

Remuneration mix 

Simon Pryce: target 

stretch 

broadly in line with the salary increases given to those in the wider 
employee workforce who have performed strongly. In relation to Mark 
Hoad the Remuneration Committee agreed (with eff ect from 
1 January 2011) a 10% increase in base salary to £275,000 reflecting the 
progression of his experience and performance in his new role. 

In addition to base salary, executive directors receive traditional 
benefits, principally a company car allowance, private medical 
insurance, retirement and death in service benefits. 

It is the Committee’s policy to make new executive director 
appointments with a rolling service agreement which can be 
terminated by the Company on giving 12 months’ notice and this 
policy was applied when Mark Hoad joined the Board in April 2010. 

Set out below are the contractual notice periods for executive 
directors who served during the year. 

Months’  Notice  
Contract By To 

Date Company Company 

Mark Hoad: target 

stretch 
0 25 50 75 100 

Fixed remuneration: includes base salary, benefits and contribution
 
to pension
 
Variable remuneration: annual bonus


  Variable remuneration: long-term incentives
 

The actual value of performance-related incentives will depend on 
actual performance. If the respective minimum performance 
conditions are not met then the incentive will have no value and if the 
share-based incentives vest, then the share price of the Company at 
that time will determine the actual value on vesting of such incentives. 

The Remuneration Committee is satisfied that the award levels under 
both the Long-Term Incentive Plan and the Deferred Bonus Plan are 
not excessive. In making awards under each of these plans the 
Remuneration Committee took account of the then prevailing 
remuneration practice and the wish for a significant portion of 
the executive remuneration to be linked to performance, as well as  
the importance of ensuring that high calibre senior management 
are  retained and motivated to deliver the business strategy of 
BBA Aviation. 

The Committee believes that the two performance measures 
chosen for its long-term incentive schemes for awards from 2010 
onwards – earnings per share (EPS) and ROIC – are the best available 
indication of the long-term financial success of the Company, due to 
the lack of an effective comparator group, and are well aligned with 
the long-term interests of shareholders. 

3. Executive Directors’ Remuneration 
a. Salary, Benefits and Service Contract 
Salary reflects the role and contribution to the Company of the 
executives in terms of skills and experience. 

Base salaries are reviewed annually by reference to comparator 
groups selected on the basis of comparable business size, geographic 
spread and business focus. Individual salary decisions take into  
account market conditions, business performance, personal 
contribution and the level of pay awards and conditions elsewhere in 
the Group. 

Following a review at the end of 2010 the Remuneration 
Committee approved (with effect from 1 January 2011) a 3.2% increase 
in base salary to £542,000 for Simon Pryce, a percentage increase  

Simon Pryce 23/04/07 12 12 
Andrew Wood* 13/02/01 12 6 
Mark Hoad 29/04/10 12 6 

*A Wood retired as a director on 29 April 2010 

In the event of early termination, the Remuneration Committee will, 
within legal constraints, determine the approach to be taken 
according to the circumstances of each individual case, taking account 
of the departing director’s obligation to mitigate his loss. In certain 
circumstances, and other than for termination for non-performance, 
the executive directors may receive compensation upon early 
termination of a contract which could, depending on the 
circumstances at the relevant time, amount to up to one year’s 
remuneration based on base salary, bonus, benefits in kind and  
pension rights during the notice period. Any payment of bonus in 
these circumstances would depend on the facts at the time as there 
are no guaranteed bonus provisions. 

Table 1 (on page 81) sets out details of the executive 
directors’ salaries. 

b. Annual Bonus 
The annual bonus provides focus on the delivery of stretching 
and strategically aligned annual financial targets and 
personal objectives. 

The Company’s annual bonus plan seeks to provide executive 
directors, members of the Executive Management Committee and 
senior managers with the opportunity to increase overall 
remuneration levels for achieving demanding performance targets. 

2010 Annual Bonus arrangements 
The structure for the 2010 annual bonus included both fi nancial and 
personal objectives and provided a maximum bonus opportunity for 
executive directors of up to 125% of salary: 105% being based on 
financial objectives (with a maximum of 35% for achievement of 
Group free cash flow targets and 70% for achievement of Group 
operating profit targets) and the remaining 20% based on measurable 
personal objectives. For the annual bonus that will be paid in 2011 in 
respect of the year ended 31 December 2010, 50% of any bonus paid 
to Simon Pryce and 50% of any bonus paid to Mark Hoad will be 
compulsorily deferred into BBA Aviation shares under the Deferred 
Bonus Plan described below. A further 50% is eligible to be deferred 
voluntarily at the director’s discretion. 
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Directors’ 
Remuneration 
Report 
continued 

The annual bonus payments in respect of 2010 are included in table 1 
on page 81. Both Simon Pryce and Mark Hoad received 70.6% of their 
salary in respect of the performance against the fi nancial objectives 
set (35.6% in respect of partial achievement of Group operating profit 
targets, 35% in respect of full achievement of Group free cash flow 
targets). Andrew Wood also received 70.6% of his salary in respect of 
achievement of financial objectives and 20% in respect of 
achievement of personal objectives, prorated to reflect his retirement 
at the end of April 2010. Simon Pryce received 17% and Mark Hoad 
received 19% in respect of achievement of their respective personal 
objectives. 

2011 Annual Bonus arrangements 
The structure for the 2011 annual bonus follows that of the 2010 
annual bonus. Of the maximum bonus opportunity for executive 
directors of up to 125% of salary: 105% will be based on fi nancial 
objectives (with a maximum of 35% for achievement of Group free 
cash flow targets and 70% for achievement of Group operating profit 
targets) and the remaining 20% based on measurable personal 
objectives. As was the case for the 2010 annual bonus, 50% of any 
bonus paid to Simon Pryce and Mark Hoad in 2012 in respect of the 
2011 annual bonus will be compulsorily deferred into BBA Aviation  
shares under the Deferred Bonus Plan described below. A further 50% 
will be eligible to be deferred voluntarily at the director’s discretion. 

While the Committee had concluded in 2009 that the changed 
economic environment at that time meant that it was appropriate to 
increase the weighting given to cash flow in the 2009 annual bonus, in 
2010 and again in 2011 the Committee has concluded that a significant 
weighting on operating profit targets is now appropriate in the 
current economic environment. 

c. Longer-term performance incentives – Deferred Bonus Plan 
The structure of deferred bonuses, paid in shares, places increased 
focus on long-term alignment with shareholder value creation and 
encourages the retention of key employees. 

The Remuneration Committee believes that it is important to 
encourage personal investment and ongoing shareholding in BBA 
Aviation plc. The Company has had a deferred bonus plan since 2006 
and this plan enables a significant proportion of executive directors’ 
remuneration to be deferred and linked to performance-related long-
term incentives. The structure of deferred bonuses, paid in shares 
under this plan, places increased focus on long-term alignment 
with shareholders’ interests, reinforces the critical importance of 
maintaining performance and aids retention. 

A fixed percentage of the annual bonus awarded to executive 
directors and other senior management has to be deferred into BBA 
Aviation’s shares for a period of three years. Executive directors and 
other senior management may voluntarily defer a further percentage 
of their annual bonus into shares held under the terms of the Deferred 
Bonus Plan. The Company makes a matching award of shares (on a 
one to one basis) calculated by reference to the total amount of bonus 
deferred (whether voluntarily or compulsorily). These matching 
awards are subject to a performance condition that is tested at the end 
of the three-year performance period and the awards will lapse if the 
condition is not met. 

The overall effect is to defer the payment of at least 50% of the annual 
bonus earned by executive directors as shown by the timeline below: 

Timeline for 2010 annual bonus: 

2010 Annual bonus targets set 

2011 

2012 

2013 

2010 bonus targets measured and 
performance conditions set for 
matching award 

Year 1 of deferred 2010 bonus 

Year 2 of deferred 2010 bonus 

2014 Deferred 2010 bonus released in 
shares and depending on performance 
condition being satisfied related 
matching shares released 

The performance condition that was used for the matching awards 
that were granted in 2010 in relation to the 2009 annual bonus was  
comparative TSR and this performance condition too will be measured 
over a three-year performance period. Further details of that condition 
are shown on page 79. As disclosed in last year’s remuneration report, 
the Committee believes that it is appropriate to move to the more  
relevant Company financial measure of ROIC in respect to the matching 
awards that will be made under the Deferred Bonus Plan in March 2011. 

It is intended that the ROIC performance condition used for the 
matching award in 2011, and measured over a three-year performance 
period, will result in full vesting if average pretax ROIC over the  
three-year period is 11.5%, with 25% of the award vesting if average 
pretax ROIC over the three years is 10% and pro-rata vesting between 
25% and 100% for average pretax ROIC between 10% and 11.5%. 
As ROIC for the first half of 2010 was 8.8% and ROIC for the full year was 
below 10% the Committee is of the view that this proposed target 
is suitably stretching. 

For the 2010 bonus paid in 2011 and for future bonuses, if at any 
time before the third anniversary of the deferral into shares the 
employee leaves the Group (other than due to injury, disability, 
retirement, redundancy, death or their employing company ceasing to 
be a part of the Group) then that part of the bonus compulsorily  
deferred into shares and still subject to restrictions would be forfeited, 
subject to the rules of the Deferred Bonus Plan. The forfeiture 
restrictions would in general be lifted as to a third on each anniversary 
of the deferral into shares. On the third anniversary of the deferral into 
shares, the shares would be released to the employee. If an employee 
left before the third anniversary any voluntarily deferred portion of the 
bonus would be retained by the individual, though the related 
matching award would usually lapse on their departure. 

The Committee considers the award levels under the Deferred 
Bonus Plan to be appropriate, when viewed in the context of the 
structure of the total remuneration package including the increased 
element of compulsory deferral of bonus forfeitable if the individual 
leaves within three years, and to support and reinforce its policy to 
reward sustained and superior performance with potential upper 
quartile remuneration. 
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d. Longer-term performance incentives – 
Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) and 
Executive Share Option Plan (ESOP) 

The Company’s longer-term performance incentives reward 
achievement of longer-term strategic objectives and provide 
the  executive directors with accountability for the delivery of 
that strategy. 

LTIP 
Under the LTIP, conditional awards of shares can be made of up to one 
times the executive’s base salary or up to two times base salary if the 
Remuneration Committee determines that the executive will not be 
granted options in that year. In 2010, conditional awards made to 
Simon Pryce were one times base salary, while those made to Mark 
Hoad were half times base salary. This approach will be continued for 
the awards planned to be made in 2011. 

The conditional share awards made under the LTIP in 2007 
lapsed during 2010 as neither the TSR nor the EPS element of the 
performance conditions was satisfied. Details of awards made in 2010 
to the executive directors under the LTIP are set out in table 3 on 
page 82, which also shows the lapsing of the 2007 awards. 

ESOP 
Under the ESOP, the maximum value of options which an executive 
may be granted in any year is limited to three times base salary, or four 
times base salary if the Remuneration Committee determines that an 
executive will not receive an award under the LTIP in that year. There is 
no intention to grant unapproved options under the ESOP. 

In March 2010, a total of 201,916 HMRC approved options were 
granted under the ESOP to eleven UK taxpayers in conjunction with 
awards made under the LTIP. The combination of the award of HMRC 
approved options and the awards made under the LTIP did not exceed 
the economic value of that which would have been delivered under 
the previous arrangements of a conditional share award alone. 
The number of HMRC approved options granted to Simon Pryce in 
March 2010 is shown in table 4 on page 82. No participant can be 
granted approved options with a value of more than £30,000 
(calculated at the date of grant) and any gain that is made on the  
approved options by a UK taxpayer will be subject to the capital gains 
tax regime rather than income tax, but this does not aff ect the 
Company’s own tax bill. 

The comparator group in respect of the TSR performance condition 
for the 2008 and 2009 LTIP awards and the 2008, 2009 and 2010 
matching awards: 

TSR comparator group* 

Arriva+ Go-Ahead Group 
Avis Europe Meggitt 
BAE Systems National Express 
BBA Aviation Northgate 
British Airways QinetiQ Group 
Carnival Rolls-Royce Group 
Chemring Group Smiths Group 
Cobham Stagecoach Group 
EasyJet Thomas Cook Group 
First Group TUI Travel 
Forth Ports Ultra Electronics Holdings
 VT Group+ 

*Reflects the composition of the comparator group at the date of grant 
+Companies have delisted from the London Stock Exchange 

TSR is measured by reference to the six months before the start of the 
three-year performance period and the three months after the end of 
the performance period and therefore the TSR element of any 
performance condition cannot usually be tested before April of the 
relevant year. 

The conditional share awards made in 2008 will be tested and if 
vesting will be released to participants in March/April 2011, while those 
made in 2009 will be tested and if vesting will be released to participants 
in March/April 2012 and those made in 2010 (having only an EPS 
condition), if vesting, will be released to participants in March  2013. 

The TSR performance conditions in respect of the awards of 
conditional shares made in 2007, 2008 and 2009 and the matching 
awards made in 2008, 2009 and 2010 are measured over a three-year 
performance period: 

Percentage of TSR part of 
TSR ranking in comparator group award vesting 

At or above 75th percentile 100%
 
Between median and 75th percentile Pro rata between 25% and 100%
 
At median 25%
 
Below median Nil
 

Performance conditions and other terms 
The conditional awards of shares made in 2008 and 2009 under the 
LTIP are subject to two performance conditions measured over three-
year periods. One half of each award is subject to a performance 
condition that measures the Company’s TSR against a comparator 
group of companies. The other half of each award is subject to an 
adjusted EPS performance condition. 

After consultation with the Company’s major shareholders in 
2009, it was agreed that the performance condition for share awards 
under the LTIP (and any associated share options) made in 2010 would 
be solely EPS-based. 

The EPS performance condition in respect of awards of conditional 
shares made in 2007, 2008 and 2009 are measured over a three-year 
performance period: 

Percentage of EPS part of 
EPS growth per annum award vesting 

At or above retail price index (RPI) 
increase plus 7% per annum 100% 
Between RPI plus 3% and  Pro rata between 
7% per annum 33% and 100% 
At RPI increase plus 3% per annum 33% 
Less than RPI increase plus 
3% per annum Nil 
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The EPS performance condition in respect of the award of conditional 
shares made in 2010 and any award of conditional shares to be made 
under the LTIP in 2011 is measured over a three-year performance 
period: 

EPS growth per annum Percentage of award vesting 

At or above RPI increase plus 
8% per annum 100% 
Between RPI plus 4% and  Pro rata between 
8% per annum 33% and 100% 
At RPI increase plus 4% per annum 33% 
Less than RPI increase plus 
4% per annum Nil 

In setting this EPS performance condition the Committee took into 
account both the growth prospects in the current market conditions 
and the wider economic environment including infl ation trends. 

The details of the exact numbers of the awards to be made in 
2011 are not known at the date of this report, as they are calculated 
based on the share price at the time of the award, which is expected to 
be in March 2011. 

There is no retesting of performance conditions. 
All unvested share scheme awards made since 2010 to Executive 

Management Committee members are subject to provisions 
concerning cancellation and reduction in the event of material fi nancial 
mis-statement. 

In line with the method used to test the satisfaction of 
performance conditions under previous awards, the Remuneration 
Committee has chosen to have the benefit of the expertise of 
an independent remuneration consulting firm, Towers Watson, to 
calculate TSR and the external auditors will perform certain agreed 
procedures on the EPS calculation. The EPS growth is calculated on a 
constant exchange rate basis. 

At present, awards made under either the LTIP or ESOP or the 
Deferred Bonus Plan lapse (subject to the rules of the relevant share 
scheme) when an employee leaves the Company, except when the 
Remuneration Committee exercises its discretion to permit awards (in 
part or whole) to be retained and tested at the end of the performance 
period. The exercise of such discretion is guided by the principles 
(including reduction by a service factor) set out in a leaver matrix 
approved by the Remuneration Committee outlining proposed 
treatment of awards when an employee dies, is made redundant or 
leaves due to injury, disability, retirement or their employing company 
ceasing to be a part of the Group and is always subject to the rules of 
the relevant share scheme. It is intended that this practice will continue 
to apply to awards made (under the LTIP, the ESOP and also the 
Deferred Bonus Plan) in 2011 and beyond. 

BBA Group longer-term incentive plans prior to 2005 
The BBA Group 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan (the 2004 Plan) 
provided for awards of options, conditional shares and matching 
shares. Some options granted under the 2004 Plan remain exercisable 
as do some executive options awarded by the Company prior to 2005 
which were made under the BBA Group 1994 Executive Share Option 

Scheme which expired in April 2004. Prior to March 2002 the BBA 
Group 1995 Executive Share Appreciation Rights Plan was used to 
facilitate the grant of options to US executives on the same basis as the 
1994 Executive Share Option Scheme. 

BBA Group 2004 Savings-Related Share Option Scheme 
Executive directors may be eligible to participate in the BBA Group 
2004 Savings-Related Share Option Scheme, which is open to all 
eligible UK employees. Options are granted under three or five-year 
SAYE contracts at a 20% discount to the stock market price at the off er 
date. The maximum overall employee contribution is £250 per month. 

Share ownership requirements 
As part of its strategy to align shareholders’ and directors’ interests, the 
Remuneration Committee expects all executive directors to build and 
maintain from shares vesting under the long-term incentive plans a 
holding of shares with a value at least equal to their base salary. 

In recognition of the forfeiture of potential bonus and other 
incentive awards from his previous employer, on Simon Pryce’s joining 
BBA Aviation plc he was made an award of 213,700 shares on 18 June 
2007. This award which was neither pensionable nor transferable was 
made in accordance with the provisions of the Financial Services  
Authority’s Listing Rule 9.4.2 which permits a company to enter into a 
bespoke long-term incentive plan arrangement without requiring 
formal shareholder approval in order to facilitate the recruitment of an 
individual in unusual circumstances. The shares subject to this award 
were released in tranches to Simon Pryce, with the fi nal tranche being 
released on 11 June 2010 and these shares are included in the figures 
in table 3 on page 82. 

Performance Charts 
The charts on page 81 show the Company’s total shareholder return 
over the last five financial years compared with the equivalent 
information for the FTSE 350 Industrial Transportation sector which the 
Committee considers, for the purposes of the regulatory requirement 
to include such charts in the report, to be a suitable broad-based equity 
market index of which the Company is a constituent. The graph on the 
left shows the annual change in total shareholder return for the 
Company and the index, while the graph on the right shows the 
cumulative change in total shareholder return from January 2006. 
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Table 1 – Emoluments and fees (audited)

Michael Harper 
Simon Pryce 
Mark Hoad4 

Mark Harper 
Nick Land 
Peter Ratcliffe 
Hansel Tookes 
Andrew Wood8 

John Roques8 

Total 

 Basic salary 
 and fees 
 £000

179 
525 
168 

54 
55 
42 
546 

116 
16 

1,209 

Car Other 
allowance emoluments 

 £000 £000

– – 
14 1052

9 345

– – 
– – 
– – 
– – 
5 327 

– – 

28 171 

Benefits1

 £000

– 
5 
2 
– 
– 
– 
– 
– 
– 

7 

Annual 
 bonus 

 £000

– 
4603

2243

– 
– 
– 
– 

106 
– 

790 

Total
2010

 £000

179
 1,109
 437

54
55
42
546

259
16

2,205

 Total
 2009
 £000 

177 
1,089 

– 
52 
51 
41 
68 

732 
47 

2,257 

1 	 Benefits include benefits in kind such as life assurance and private medical insurance. 
2 	 Amount paid by the Company into Simon Pryce’s Self Invested Personal Pension. 
3 	 50% of the 2010 annual bonus is subject to compulsory deferral and also subject to forfeiture in the circumstances described in page 78. 
4 	 From date of appointment 29 April 2010. 
5 	 Amount paid by the Company into Mark Hoad’s stakeholder-style Defined Contribution Plan. 
6 	 The non-executive director fee paid to Hansel Tookes is a US dollar-based fee of US$84,000 p.a. The sterling amount paid dur ing 2010 has decreased from that paid in 2009 as a result of the 

change in the sterling/US dollar exchange rate. An exchange rate is set at the end of March each year and an exchange rate based adjustment is made in the following March. 
7 	 The Company’s contributions to Andrew Wood’s FURBS ceased on 5 April 2006 and following the change in UK pension law he elected to receive a cash replacement equivalent to the 

FURBS benefit (£31,510). 
8	 To date of retirement as a director on 29 April 2010. 

Table 2 – Directors’ interests in share capital (includes interests held by a director’s spouse)
 Ordinary 2916/21p shares Ordinary 2916/21p shares 

1 Jan 2010 31 Dec 2010
 Beneficial Beneficial 

Michael  Harper  144,397 150,965 
Simon  Pryce  603,333 731,823 
Mark  Hoad  46,673* 48,498 
Mark  Harper  20,000 20,000 
Nick  Land  10,000 10,000 
Peter  Ratcliffe  – 15,000 
Hansel  Tookes  30,167 30,167 
Andrew  Wood  253,925 253,925** 
John  Roques  20,920 20,920** 

There were no changes in directors’ interests in share capital between 31 December 2010 and 1 March 2011. 

* As at date of appointment 29 April 2010. 
** To date of retirement as a director on 29 April 2010. 
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Table 3 – Award of Ordinary, Conditional, Matching and Linked Shares (audited) 
Awarded Vested Lapsed 

1 Jan during during during Award 31 Dec 
Award 2010 the year the year the year date 2010 

Simon Pryce Ordinary 58,934 – 58,9341 18/06/07  –
 Conditional 1,860,100 303,144 – 347,9002 05/03/10 1,815,344 

Matching 202,433 120,045 – – 16/03/10 322,478 
Linked – 18,356 – – 05/03/10 18,356 

Mark Hoad Conditional 348,5443 – – –  – 348,544 
Matching 27,6913 – – –  – 27,691 

Linked 18,3563 – – – 05/03/10 18,356 
Andrew Wood Conditional 788,400 – – 116,4002 06/03/09 672,0004 

Matching 85,785 – – – 17/03/09 85,7854 

1 On 11 June 2010 58,934 ordinary shares were released to Simon Pryce at nil cost and on that day 30,057 shares were sold at 188.9p per share and 28,877 shares were transferred to him. This is the final 
release relating to an award of shares made to Simon Pryce on 18 June 2007 under which equal 33.3% tranches were released to him after one, two and three years of service. 

2 	 The performance conditions in respect of the conditional awards made in 2007 were not satisfied and no vesting occurred at t he end of the three-year performance period. The awards made to 
participants lapsed. 

3 	 As at date of appointment 29 April 2010. 
4	 As at date of retirement as a director on 29 April 2010. 

Additional notes 
i 	 Conditional awards made in 2007, 2008, 2009 and made during the year are subject to the performance conditions set out on pag es 79 and 80. 
ii	 The average of the mid-market price of a BBA Aviation plc ordinary 29 16/21p share on 2, 3 and 4 March 2010 was 163.43p. This was the price used to determine the number of conditional shares 

awarded on 5 March 2010. On 5 March 2010 the mid-market price of a BBA Aviation plc ordinary 2916/21p share was 170.1p. 
iii	 Matching shares awarded in 2008, 2009 and during the year are subject to the performance conditions set out on page 79. T he purchase price of a BBA Aviation plc ordinary 2916/21p share on 

16 March 2010 was 188.5474p. This was the price used to determine the number of matching shares awarded on 16 March 2010. 
iv	 Under normal circumstances, a Linked Award will only vest to the extent needed to provide suffi cient funds to meet the exercise price of an Approved Share Option under the 2006 Executive Share 

Option Plan (as described on page 79). The numbers stated in table 3 will be the maximum number of shares that will vest under the Linked Award which is linked to the number (noted in table 4 
below) of Approved Share Options granted under the 2006 Executive Share Option Plan. Fewer shares will vest under the Linked Award if the share price increases between the date of grant and 
vesting as fewer shares will be required to cover the exercise price of the Approved Share Option. 

Table 4 – Options to acquire ordinary shares (audited) 

1 Jan 
2010

Granted 
during

 the year

Exercised/  
lapsed 

 during 
 the year 

31 Dec
2010

Exercise 
price per 

 share 
 pence 

Exercisable 
from 

Expiry 
date 

Simon Pryce 
1 – 18,356 – 18,356 163.43 20135 20135 

2 27,456 – – 27,456 57.00 01/05/14 01/11/14

 27,456 18,356 – 45,812 

Mark Hoad 
4
1
2
2

 40,259* 
18,356* 

8,026* 
13,728* 

– 
– 
– 
– 

– 
– 
– 
– 

40,259
18,356

8,026
13,728

 298.75 23/05/08 23/05/15 
163.43 20135 20135 

 57.00 01/05/12 01/11/12 
 57.00 01/05/14 01/11/14

 80,369* – – 80,369 

Andrew Wood 
3 
3 
3 
3 
4 

10,409 
96,991 

360,000 
271,000 
199,900 

– 
– 
– 
– 
– 

– 
– 
– 
– 
– 

10,409** 288.20 25/03/05 30/04/11 
96,991** 288.20 25/03/05 31/10/11 

360,000** 153.00 13/03/06 31/10/11 
271,000** 275.25 01/03/07 31/10/11 
199,900** 298.75 23/05/08 31/10/11 

938,300 – – 938,300** 

1 	 2006 Executive Share Option Plan. 
2 	 2004 Savings-Related Share Option Scheme. 
3 	 1994 (amended 2001) Executive Share Option Scheme. 
4 	 BBA Group 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan (2004 Plan). 
5 	 Options granted under the 2006 Executive Share Option Plan are only exercisable on the day when the conditional share awards  they are associated with vest and if the performance conditions as 

set out on page 80 are satisfied. 

* As at date of appointment 29 April 2010.
 
** As at date of retirement as a director on 29 April 2010.
 

Additional notes 
i 	 BBA Aviation plc ordinary 29 16/21p shares: mid-market price on 31 December 2010 was 221.6p. Mid-market price for 2010 was in the range 158p to 221.6p. 
ii	 There were no changes in the directors’ options to acquire ordinary shares between 31 December 2010 and 1 March 2011. 
iii	 Options granted under the 1994 (amended 2001) Executive Share Option Scheme vested and became exercisable as the growth in  the Company’s earnings per share, as adjusted, for any period of 

three consecutive years was at least 9% greater than the growth in inflation. 
iv	 Options granted under the 2004 Plan became exercisable after the third anniversary of the date of grant to the extent that t he performance conditions were satisfied. 



 
   

 
 

 
   

 

  
  

  
   

   
 
 
 

  
  

   
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
 

  
  

 
 

  
 

 
          
           
          
      
      
  

 

  
  
 
   

 

 
 

  
 

  
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 

 

 
 

  
 

 

   
   

 
  

 
 
 

 

  

e. Pension: policy and implementation 
All the Company’s UK Defined Benefit Plans were closed to new 
entrants from April 2002; new employees from that date have the 
option to join a Company-sponsored stakeholder-style Defi ned 
Contribution Plan provided through an external investment manager. 

Simon Pryce does not participate in that Defi ned Contribution 
Plan and a sum equal to 20% of his base salary is paid by the Company 
into his own Self Invested Personal Pension. 

Mark Hoad does participate in the Company-sponsored  
stakeholder-style Defined Contribution Plan and the Company pays a 
sum equal to 20% of his base salary into that plan. 

Andrew Wood, who had joined the Board in January 2001, 
participated in the Company’s UK Defined Benefit Plan (Plan) between 
the start of the year and his retirement as a director on 29 April 2010. 
It has been the Committee’s policy since April 2000 that the bonus of 
any new director joining the Company’s Plan would not be 
pensionable and accordingly pensionable earnings for Andrew Wood 
comprised salary only. 

Andrew Wood’s normal retirement age under the Defi ned 
Benefit Plan was his 62nd birthday in line with that of existing directors 
who were members of the Defined Benefit Plan when he joined. In 
the  case of death before retirement, a contingent widow’s pension 
equal to two-thirds of the member’s prospective pension would have 
been payable. Other dependants’ pensions may also be paid. The Plan 
rules guarantee pension increases in retirement by the increase in RPI 
up to 5% on pension accrued before 1 March 2010 and by the increase 
in RPI up to 2.5% on pension accrued after 1 March 2010. However, at 

Table 5 – UK Defi ned Benefit Schemes (audited) 
Accrued Transfer 

Director’s Director’s pension at value at 
age at contribution 31 Dec 31 Dec 

31 Dec during year 2009 2009 
2010 £000 £000 £000

retirement Andrew Wood opted to exchange part of his headline rate 
of pension for guaranteed annual increases of 5% on the part of his 
pension accrued before 1 March 2010. 

Under the pensions legislation that was in force prior to April 
2006 Andrew Wood’s pensionable salary was further restricted by the 
state earnings cap. Prior to the changes which came into eff ect on 
6 April 2006 the Company off ered directors a top up to their pension 
benefits through a Funded Unapproved Pension Scheme (FURBS). 
The  Company’s FURBS contributions were closely related to the 
contribution the Company made to the approved Defi ned Benefi ts 
Plan less expenses and any special funding. The rate of contribution for 
Andrew Wood was 36% per annum of pensionable earnings in excess 
of the earnings cap. On 5 April 2006 the FURBS arrangements ceased as 
a result of the “Simplifi cation” regulations under the Finance Act 2004. 
From 6 April 2006 revised arrangements applied to all the Company’s 
UK pension arrangements as a result of both the Finance Acts 2004 and 
2005 and the Pensions Act 2004. The Company and the Plan Trustee in 
respect of the Defined Benefit Plan agreed that a “Notional Earnings 
Cap” should be implemented in place of the state earnings cap in order 
to limit the Company’s exposure to increases in both Defi ned Benefi t 
liabilities and additional matching Defined Contribution contributions. 
Directors and other employees whose earnings were above the 
Notional Earnings Cap were given a choice of receiving either a 
contribution to the Defined Contribution Plan or a cash replacement 
equivalent to the contribution that would have been paid to a FURBS. 
Andrew Wood elected to receive a cash replacement equivalent. 

Transfer  value  Increase  
Real of real increase in transfer Accrued Transfer 

increase in Increase in in pension values less pension at value at 
accrued accrued  (less director’s director’s 31 Dec 31 Dec 
pension pension  contributions) contributions 2010 2010 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Andrew Wood 59 2 37 860 (18) (17) (511) (112) 20 750 

Additional notes 
i 	 The pension entitlement shown at 31 December 2009 is that which would have been paid annually on normal retirement based on service to and pensionable salary at 31 December 2009. 
ii	 The pension entitlement shown at 31 December 2010 is the actual pension in payment at that date, following Andrew Wood’s retirement from the Company on 30 April 2010. 
iii	 The transfer values have been calculated in accordance with legislative requirements and based on assumptions agreed by the trustees of the Plan. 
iv	 The decrease in transfer values between 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2010 is largely as a result of Andrew Wood electin g under the rules of the Plan to receive a portion of his pension as a 

pension commencement lump sum of £136,579 at retirement, in return for receiving a lower pension in payment. 

4. Non-Executive Directors’ Remuneration 
The non-executive directors each have a letter of appointment which is 
available for inspection by shareholders at each AGM and during 
normal business hours at the Company’s registered offi  ce. No 
compensation would be payable for the early termination of the 
appointment of any non-executive director. 

The level of fees for non-executive directors is determined by the 
Board as a whole on the recommendation of the Group Chief 
Executive. Non-executive directors’ fees were reviewed in December 
2010, by reference to independent market surveys and benchmarking 
data, having last been reviewed 12 months earlier when the basic fees 
for non-executive directors were not increased. With eff ect from 
1  January 2011 the non-executive directors’ basic fee was increased 
from £42,000 to £45,000, with the fee paid to the Chairman being 
increased from £178,500 to £185,000. The annual supplements remain 
the same: that for the Chairman of the Audit and Remuneration 
Committees is £9,500, that for the Senior Independent Director £5,000 
and the annual supplement for the CSR Responsible Director is £2,500. 
These supplements reflect the increased commitments and demands 
placed upon each of the non-executive directors in performing their 
duties on the Board and its principal committees. 

Details of the non-executive directors’ fees for 2010 are set out in table 1 
(page 81). 

The dates of appointment or subsequent re-appointment and 
unexpired term of the non-executive directors as at 1 March 2011 are 
set out below: 

Date of appointment/ Unexpired term as at 
re-appointed  1 March 2011 

Michael Harper 01/07/2010 28 months 
Nick Land 01/08/2009 17 months 
Mark Harper 01/12/2009 21 months 
Peter Ratcliffe 09/01/2009 10 months 
Hansel Tookes 19/02/2010 23 months 

The non-executive directors do not participate in the Company’s 
incentive plans or pension arrangements. 

Directors’ Remuneration Report approved by the Board on 
1 March 2011 and signed on its behalf by: 

Mark Harper 
Chairman, Remuneration Committee 
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Going Concern 
The Group’s business activities together with the factors likely to aff ect 
its future development, performance and position are set out in the 
Directors’ Report on pages 3 to 84. The fi nancial position of the Group, 
its cash flows and liquidity position are described on pages 64 and 65. In 
addition, note 17 of the Consolidated Financial Statements include the 
Group’s objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital; its 
financial risk management objectives; details of its fi nancial instruments 
and hedging activities; and its exposure to credit risk and liquidity risk. 

The Group has $1,075 million of banking facilities of which 
$606 million was drawn across them at 31 December 2010. These facilities 
are subject to cross default. Further details relating to these facilities are 
provided in note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The  
primary $900 million facility does not expire until September 2012. The 
$175 million facility is due to expire in August 2011 but the Directors  
expect the Group to have sufficient headroom without replacing this 
facility. The Group’s banking facilities are subject to two main fi nancial 
covenants: maximum net debt to underlying EBITDA of 3.5 times and 
minimum net interest cover of 3.0 times EBITDA. The Directors expect the 
Group to comply with these covenants for the foreseeable future. 

The Group’s forecasts and projections taking account of 
reasonably possible changes in trading performance show that the 
Group should be able to operate within the level of its current facilities. 

The principal risks and uncertainties affecting the forecasts and 
projections, to which the Group is exposed, relate to the number of 
hours of flying activity, principally in B&GA, but also to a lesser extent in 
commercial and military aviation. Flying hours largely dictate the drivers 
of revenue, namely fuel volumes in Signature, aircraft movements in 
ASIG, engine overhaul cycles in ERO and demand for components in 
Legacy Support and APPH. Further details of these risks and 
uncertainties are provided on page 17. 

The directors have carried out a critical review of the Group’s 2011 
budget and medium-term plans, with due regard for the risks and 
uncertainties to which the Group is exposed and the impact that these 
could have on trading performance. The key assumptions used in 
constructing the budget were that: 
— Signature, ASIG and ERO continue their gradual recovery in 2011 

and  beyond; 
— Legacy Support remains stable with modest revenue growth and 

operational improvements; and 
— APPH will be relatively stable in 2011 with no further weakening 

followed by a gradual recovery, commencing during 2012. 

The directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the 
Group have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for 
the foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the going concern 
basis of accounting in preparing the annual fi nancial statements. 

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities 
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, Directors’ 
Remuneration Report and the financial statements in accordance with 
applicable law and regulations. 

Company law requires the directors to prepare fi nancial 
statements for each financial year. The directors are required by the IAS 
Regulation to prepare the Group financial statements under 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the 
European Union. The Group financial statements are also required by 
law to be properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act  
2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. 

International Accounting Standard 1 requires that IFRS fi nancial 
statements present fairly for each financial year the Company’s fi nancial 
position, fi nancial performance and cash fl ows. This requires the faithful 
representation of the effects of transactions, other events and conditions 

in accordance with the definitions and recognition criteria for assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses set out in the International Accounting 
Standards Board’s “Framework for the preparation and presentation of 
financial statements”. In virtually all circumstances, a fair presentation will 
be achieved by compliance with all applicable International Financial  
Reporting Standards. However, directors are also required to: 
— properly select and apply accounting policies; 
— present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that 

provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable 
information; 

— provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specifi c 
requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users to understand 
the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on 
the entity’s financial position and financial performance; and 

— make an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. 

The directors have elected to prepare the parent company fi nancial 
statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted  
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and 
applicable law). The parent company financial statements are required 
by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company. 
In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to: 
— select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
— make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
— state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been 

followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained 
in the financial statements; and 

— prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis 
unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue 
in business. 

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records 
that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the fi nancial position 
of the Company and enable them to ensure that the parent company 
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also 
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for 
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and 
other irregularities. 

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of 
the corporate and financial information included on the Company’s 
website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation 
and dissemination of fi nancial statements may differ from legislation in 
other jurisdictions. 

A procedure is in place to enable the directors to provide the 
confirmation regarding audit information required under s418 of the 
Companies Act 2006. This confirmation is set out on page 67 of the 
Directors’ Report – Additional Disclosures. 

The directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge: 
(a)  	the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the 

applicable set of accounting standards, give a true and fair view of 
the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the  
Group and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken 
as a whole; and 

(b) 	 the Directors’ Report includes a fair review of the development 
and performance of the business and the position of the 
Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation 
taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal risks 
and uncertainties that they face. 

Signed on behalf of the Board 

Simon Pryce Mark Hoad 
Group Chief Executive Group Finance Director 
1 March 2011 1 March 2011 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
to the members of BBA Aviation plc 
We have audited the Group financial statements of BBA Aviation plc 
for the year ended 31 December 2010 which comprise the 
Consolidated Income Statement, the Consolidated Statement of 
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the 
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, the Consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the related notes 1 to 27. The fi nancial reporting 
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law 
and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by 
the European Union. 

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, 
in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. 
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the 
Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them 
in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent 
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to 
anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as 
a  body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we 
have formed. 

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor 
As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, 
the directors are responsible for the preparation of the Group fi nancial 
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. 
Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the Group 
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and 
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards 
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical 
Standards for Auditors. 

Scope of the audit of the fi nancial statements 
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable 
assurance that the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an  
assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the 
Group’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and 
adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting  
estimates made by the directors; and the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non
financial information in the annual report to identify material 
inconsistency with the audited financial statements. If we become 
aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we 
consider the implications for our report. 

Opinion on fi nancial statements 
In our opinion the Group fi nancial statements: 
— give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s affairs as at 

31 December 2010 and of its profit for the year then ended; 
— have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted 

by the European Union; and 
— have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the 

Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. 

Separate opinion in relation to IFRSs as issued by the IASB 
As explained in the Accounting Policies on pages 91 to 94 of the Group 
financial statements, the Group in addition to complying with its legal 
obligation to apply IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, has also 
applied IFRSs as issued by the International Accounting Standards 
Board (IASB). 

In our opinion the Group financial statements comply with IFRSs 
as issued by the IASB. 

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 
In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report for the 
financial year for which the Group financial statements are prepared is 
consistent with the Group fi nancial statements. 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following: 

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, 
in our opinion: 
— certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are 

not made; or 
— we have not received all the information and explanations we 

require for our audit. 

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review: 
— the directors’ statement, contained within the Directors’ Report on 

page 84, in relation to going concern; 
— the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the 

Company’s compliance with the nine provisions of the June 2008 
Combined Code specified for our review; and 

— certain elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on 
directors’ remuneration. 

Other matter 
We have reported separately on the parent company fi nancial 
statements of BBA Aviation plc for the year ended 31 December 2010 
and on the information in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that is 
described as having been audited. 

Nigel Mercer ACA (Senior Statutory Auditor) 
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP 
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor 
London, United Kingdom 
1 March 2011 
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Financial statements Consolidated Income Statement
85 Independent Auditor’s 

Report to the Members of 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect  2010 2009  
of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements  Underlying* 

Exceptional 
Items Total Underlying* 

Exceptional
Items Total 

86 Consolidated Income Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m 
Statement 

87 Consolidated Statement of 
Comprehensive Income 

Revenue 
Cost of sales

1 1,183.0 
(955.7) 

– 
– 

1,183.0 
(955.7)

 1,080.8 
(875.5) 

– 
– 

1,080.8 
(875.5) 

88 Consolidated Balance Sheet Gross profit  227.3 – 227.3 205.3 – 205.3 
89 Consolidated Cash Flow 

Statement Distribution costs  (21.0) – (21.0) (18.3) – (18.3) 
90 

91 

Consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Equity 

Accounting Policies of 
the Group 

Administrative expenses
Other operating income
Share of profit of associates

 (100.0) 
3.3 
1.1 

(3.7) 
– 
– 

(103.7)
 3.3 
1.1 

(87.6) 
0.7 
1.1 

(3.8) 
– 
– 

(91.4) 
0.7 
1.1 

95 Notes to the Consolidated Other operating expenses (0.1) (2.3) (2.4) (0.7) (8.0) (8.7) 
Financial Statements Restructuring costs  – (4.2) (4.2) – (6.0) (6.0) 

126  Independent Auditor’s 
Report to the Members of 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect 

Loss on disposal of businesses

Operating profit 1,2 

– 

110.6 

– 

(10.2) 

–

 100.4 

– 

100.5 

(0.4) 

(18.2) 

(0.4) 

82.3 
of the Parent Company 
Financial Statements 

127 

128 

Company Balance sheet 

Accounting Policies of 

Investment income 
Finance costs 

3
3 

4.2 
(19.4) 

– 
– 

4.2 
(19.4)

 7.9 
(30.2) 

– 
– 

7.9 
(30.2) 

the Company Profit before tax  95.4 (10.2) 85.2 78.2 (18.2) 60.0 
129 Notes to the Company 

Financial Statements Tax 4 (20.3) 0.1 (20.2) (17.0) 2.5 (14.5) 
134  Principal Subsidiary 

Undertakings Profit for the period  75.1 (10.1) 65.0 61.2 (15.7) 45.5 
135 Five Year Summary 

136  Shareholder Information	 Attributable to: 
Equity holders of the parent  75.2 (10.1) 65.1 61.1 (13.2) 47.9 
Non-controlling interest  (0.1) – (0.1)  0.1 (2.5) (2.4)

 75.1 (10.1) 65.0 61.2 (15.7) 45.5 

Earnings per share

Basic 

Diluted 

6 

6 

 Adjusted

 17.6p 

17.0p 

 Unadjusted

 15.2p 

14.7p 

 Adjusted

 14.6p 

14.3p 

 Unadjusted 

11.4p 

11.2p 

* Before exceptional items 
Exceptional items are items which are material or non-recurring in nature, costs relating to acquisitions and the amortisation of acquired intangibles, as set out in note 2 to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements. 
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
 
2010 2009 

£m £m 

Profit for the period 65.0 45.5 

Other comprehensive income: 
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations 22.8 (121.4) 
(Losses)/gains  on  net  investment  hedges  (22.3) 100.6 
Fair value movements in foreign exchange cash flow hedges (2.9) 6.9 
Transfer to profit or loss from equity on foreign exchange cash flow hedges 3.6 5.6 
Fair value movements in interest rate cash flow hedges (12.7) 0.1 
Transfer to profit or loss from equity on interest rate cash flow hedges 6.7 7.7 
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension schemes (7.0) (13.4) 
Tax relating to components of other comprehensive income 1.3 (3.2) 

Total comprehensive income for the period 54.5 28.4 

Attributable to: 
Shareholders  of  BBA  Aviation  plc  54.6 30.8 
Non-controlling  interests  (0.1) (2.4) 

54.5 28.4 
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Financial statements Consolidated Balance Sheet
85 	Independent Auditor’s 

Report to the Members of  31 December 31 December 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect 2010 2009 
of the Consolidated Notes  £m £m 
Financial Statements 

Non-current assets 
86	 Consolidated Income 

Statement Goodwill  8  485.0 474.9 
87 Consolidated Statement of Licences  and  other  intangible  assets  8  95.0 98.1 

Comprehensive Income Property, plant and equipment 9 327.5 334.7 
88 Consolidated Balance Sheet Interests  in  associates  10  1.9 1.9 
89 Consolidated Cash Flow Trade and other receivables 12 16.5 18.2 

Statement 
1 925.9 927.8 

90	 Consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Equity Current assets 

91	 Accounting Policies of Inventories  11  136.2 137.9 
the Group Trade and other receivables 	 12 197.8 194.2 

95 	 Notes to the Consolidated Cash  and  cash  equivalents 	  107.7 115.4
Financial Statements 

Tax  recoverable 	  0.1 0.2 
126  	Independent Auditor’s 

Report to the Members of 441.8 447.7 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect 
of the Parent Company Total assets 1 1,367.7 1,375.5
Financial Statements 

127 	 Company Balance sheet 
Current liabilities 

128 Accounting Policies of 
the Company Trade and other payables 13 (254.1) (230.7) 

129 Notes to the Company Tax  liabilities  (50.3) (45.6) 
Financial Statements Obligations under finance leases 14 (0.9) (0.9) 

134  Principal Subsidiary Bank overdrafts and loans 16 (98.7) (33.1)
Undertakings Provisions 	  18  (0.9) (0.8) 

135	 Five Year Summary 
(404.9) (311.1)

136  	Shareholder Information 
Net current assets	 36.9 136.6 

Non-current liabilities 
Bank  loans  16  (319.2) (469.4) 
Other payables due after one year 13 (62.8) (60.8) 
Retirement benefit obligations 19 (34.1) (33.2) 
Obligations under finance leases 14 (2.8) (3.6) 
Deferred tax liabilities 20 (42.2) (29.9) 
Provisions  18  (19.3) (20.4)

 (480.4) (617.3) 

Total liabilities	 1 (885.3) (928.4) 

Net assets	 1 482.4 447.1 

Equity 
Share capital 21 128.7 126.0 
Share premium account 21 340.7 343.4 
Other  reserves  21  3.9 3.9 
Treasury  reserve  21  (5.8) (3.2) 
Capital reserve 21 20.9 19.8 
Hedging and translation reserves 21 5.6 10.4 
Retained  earnings  21  (9.0) (51.6) 

Equity attributable to shareholders of BBA Aviation plc 485.0 448.7 
Non-controlling  interest  (2.6) (1.6) 

Total equity 482.4 447.1 

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 1 March 2011 and signed on its behalf by 

Simon Pryce  Mark Hoad 
Group Chief Executive  Group Finance Director 
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 

2010 2009 
Notes  £m £m 

Operating activities 
Net cash flow from operating activities 23  151.6  178.8 

Investing activities 
Dividends  received  from  associates  1.1  1.2 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (20.4) (14.2) 
Purchase  of  intangible  assets  (7.4) (13.6) 
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 5.0 0.7 
Acquisition  of  subsidiaries  24  (3.6) – 
Proceeds  from  disposal  of  businesses  – 3.7 
Deferred consideration on prior year acquisitions (1.3) (2.0) 

Net cash outflow from investing activities (26.6) (24.2) 

Financing activities 
Interest  received  3.5  17.5 
Interest  paid  (17.8) (41.3) 
Interest  element  of  finance  leases  paid  (0.4) (0.7) 
Dividends  paid  (17.4) (21.9) 
Losses  from  realised  foreign  exchange  contracts  (0.5) (1.0) 
Proceeds  from  issue  of  ordinary  shares  0.1 – 
Purchase  of  own  shares  (2.8) – 
Decrease  in  loans  (96.7) (78.6) 
Decrease  in  finance  leases  (0.9) (27.2) 
(Decrease)/increase  in  overdrafts  (5.3) 31.6 

Net cash outflow from financing activities  (138.2) (121.6) 

(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (13.2) 33.0 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 115.4 98.4 
Exchange  adjustments  5.5 (16.0) 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 107.7 115.4 

Net debt at beginning of year  (391.6) (554.4) 
(Increase)/decrease in cash and cash equivalents (13.2) 33.0 
Decrease  in  loans  96.7 78.6 
Decrease  in  finance  leases  0.9 27.2 
Decrease/(increase)  in  overdrafts  5.3 (31.6) 
Exchange  adjustments  (12.0) 55.6 

Net debt at end of year  (313.9) (391.6) 
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Financial statements Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 
85 Independent Auditor’s 

Report to the Members of 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect 
of the Consolidated 

Share 
capital 

Share 
premium 

Retained 
earnings 

Other 
reserves 

Non-
controlling 

interests 
Total 

equity
Financial Statements £m £m £m £m £m £m 

86 

87 

Consolidated Income 
Statement 

Consolidated Statement of 
Comprehensive Income 

Balance at 1 January 2009
Total comprehensive income for the period
Equity dividends 

122.7 
– 
– 

346.4 
– 
– 

(62.1) 
31.3 

(21.9) 

30.2 
(0.5) 

– 

0.8 
(2.4) 

– 

438.0 
28.4 

(21.9) 

88 Consolidated Balance Sheet Issue of share capital and scrip dividend  3.3 (3.0) – – – 0.3 

89 Consolidated Cash Flow Movement on treasury reserve – – – (0.2) – (0.2) 
Statement Credit to equity for equity-settled share-based payments  – – – 2.5 – 2.5 

90 Consolidated Statement of Transfer to retained earnings  – – 1.1 (1.1) – – 

91 

Changes in Equity 

Accounting Policies of 
Balance at 31 December 2009 126.0 343.4 (51.6) 30.9 (1.6) 447.1 

the Group 

95 Notes to the Consolidated Balance at 1 January 2010  126.0 343.4 (51.6) 30.9 (1.6) 447.1 
Financial Statements Total comprehensive income for the period – – 59.4 (4.8) (0.1) 54.5 

126  Independent Auditor’s 
Report to the Members of 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect 

Equity dividends 
Issue of share capital and scrip dividend

 – 
2.7 

– 
(2.7) 

(17.4) 
– 

– 
– 

– 
– 

(17.4) 
– 

of the Parent Company 
Financial Statements 

127 Company Balance sheet 

128 Accounting Policies of 
the Company 

Movement on treasury reserve
Credit to equity for equity-settled share-based payments
Changes in non-controlling interests 
Transfer to retained earnings 

– 
– 
– 
– 

– 
– 
– 
– 

– 
– 

(0.5) 
1.1 

(2.8) 
2.4 

– 
(1.1) 

– 
– 

(0.9) 
– 

(2.8) 
2.4 

(1.4) 
– 

129 	 Notes to the Company Balance at 31 December 2010  128.7 340.7 (9.0) 24.6 (2.6) 482.4 
Financial Statements 

134  	Principal Subsidiary 
Undertakings 

135	 Five Year Summary 

136  	Shareholder Information 
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Accounting Policies 

Basis of Accounting 
The financial statements have been prepared using the historical cost 
convention adjusted for the revaluation of certain fi nancial instruments. 
The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below which 
have been consistently applied with the prior year except where noted.
 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) adopted for use 
in the European Union and therefore comply with Article 4 of the EU 
IAS Regulation. They have also been prepared in accordance with IFRS 
as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. 

There are no new Standards issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board that are effective in the current period. 

The following amendments to existing Standards are eff ective 
for the current period: 

IFRS 3 Business Combinations (revised) 
IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (revised) 
Amendment to IAS 39 Eligible Hedged Items 
Amendment to IFRS 2 Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment 
Transactions 

The adoption of these Amendments has not had a material impact on 
the Group’s financial statements, apart from the adoption of IFRS 3 
Business Combinations (revised) which has had the following eff ect 
on the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010; 

As a result of the acquisition of SAS Ground Services UK Ltd (see 
note 24 for details) in the year, £0.5 million of acquisition related 
costs have been charged to Other Operating Expenses. Prior to the 
adoption of IFRS 3 these would have been included in goodwill. 

There are no new interpretations issued by the International 
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee that are eff ective for 
the current period and have not been previously applied in the 
Group’s fi nancial statements. 

At the date of authorisation of these fi nancial statements, 
the following Standards and Interpretations which have not been 
applied in these financial statements were in issue but not 
yet eff ective: 

IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (revised) 
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 
Amendment to IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation: 
Classification of Rights Issues 
IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with 
Equity Instruments 
Amendment to IFRIC 14 – IAS 19 Prepayments of a Minimum 
Funding Requirement 

The adoption of IFRS 9 which the Group plans to adopt for the year 
beginning on 1 January 2013 will impact both the measurement and 
disclosures of fi nancial instruments. 

The directors anticipate that the adoption of the remaining 
Standards above, in future periods, will not have a material impact on 
the financial statements of the Group. 

Basis of Consolidation 
The Group financial statements incorporate the fi nancial statements 
of the parent company and all subsidiary undertakings under the 
acquisition method of accounting. 

The results of subsidiary undertakings acquired or sold during the year 
are included in the consolidated income statement from the eff ective 
date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal as  
appropriate. Control is achieved where the company has the power 
to govern the financial and operating policies of an investee so as to 
obtain benefits from activities. 

Goodwill on acquisitions, being the excess of the fair value of the 
consideration paid, the non-controlling interest, and the fair value of 
any previously held equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of 
the identifiable net assets and liabilities acquired, is capitalised and 
tested for impairment on an annual basis. 

Associated undertakings are those investments other than 
subsidiary undertakings where the Group is in a position to exercise a 
signifi cant influence, typically through participation in the fi nancial 
and operating policy decisions of the investee. The consolidated 
fi nancial statements include the Group’s share of the post-acquisition 
reserves of all such companies. 

Going Concern 
The directors have, at the time of approving the fi nancial statements, 
a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have 
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the 
foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the going concern 
basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements. Further 
detail is contained in the directors’ statement of going concern on 
page 84 of the Directors’ Report. 

Investments 
In the Group’s financial statements, investments in associated 
undertakings are stated at cost plus the Group’s share of post-
acquisition reserves less provision for impairment. 

Foreign Currencies 
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rate 
of exchange at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and  
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date 
are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at that date. Any gain 
or loss arising from a change in exchange rates subsequent to the date 
of transaction is recognised in the income statement. 

The income statements of overseas operations are translated 
into sterling at the average exchange rates for the year and their 
balance sheets are translated into sterling at the exchange rates ruling 
at the balance sheet date. All exchange differences arising on 
consolidation are taken to equity. All other translation diff erences are 
taken to the income statement, with the exception of diff erences 
on foreign currency borrowing and derivative instruments to 
the extent that they are used to provide a hedge against the 
Group’s equity investments in overseas operations, which are taken to 
equity together with the exchange difference on the net investment 
in those operations. 

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising from the acquisition 
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign 
entity and translated at the closing rate. 

Operating Profit 
Operating profit is stated after charging exceptional items and after 
the share of results of associates but before investment income and 
fi nance costs. 

Exceptional items are items which are material or non-recurring 
in nature, costs relating to acquisitions and the amortisation of 
acquired intangibles. 
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Financial statements 

85 	Independent Auditor’s 
Report to the Members of 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect 
of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

86	 Consolidated Income 
Statement 

87	 Consolidated Statement of 
Comprehensive Income 

88	 Consolidated Balance Sheet 

89	 Consolidated Cash Flow 
Statement 

90	 Consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Equity 

91	 Accounting Policies of 
the Group 

95 	 Notes to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

126  	Independent Auditor’s 
Report to the Members of 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect 
of the Parent Company 
Financial Statements 

127 	 Company Balance sheet 

128	 Accounting Policies of 
the Company 

129 	 Notes to the Company 
Financial Statements 

134  	Principal Subsidiary 
Undertakings 

135	 Five Year Summary 

136  	Shareholder Information 

Accounting Policies – continued 

Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedge Accounting 
Derivative financial instruments utilised by the Group comprise 
interest rates swaps, cross-currency swaps and foreign exchange 
contracts. All such instruments are used for hedging purposes to 
manage the risk profile of an underlying exposure of the Group in line 
with the Group’s risk management policies. All derivative instruments 
are recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. Recognition of gains or 
losses on derivative instruments depends on whether the instrument 
is designated as a hedge and the type of exposure it is designed  
to hedge.
 The effective portion of gains or losses on cash flow hedges are 
deferred in equity until the impact from the hedged item  is 
recognised in the income statement. The ineff ective portion of such 
gains and losses is recognised in the income statement immediately, 
and is included in the “other gains and losses” line of the income 
statement. 

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted 
for similarly to cash flow hedges. Any gain or loss on the hedging 
instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognised 
in equity in the foreign currency translation reserve. The gain or loss 
relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately, and is 
included in the operating profit line of the income statement. Gains 
and losses deferred in the foreign currency translation reserve are 
recognised in profit or loss on disposal of the foreign operation. 

Changes in the fair value of the derivative fi nancial instruments 
classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) and those that do 
not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the income 
statement as they arise, and are included in the operating profit line of 
the income statement. Any interest earned or paid on fi nancial 
instruments at FVTPL is charged to net interest. Fair value is 
determined in the manner described in note 17. 

Financial Instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Group’s 
balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are accounted for at the 
trade date. 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and deemed 
deposits, and other short-term highly-liquid investments that are 
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value. 

Trade receivables 
Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their 
nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated 
irrecoverable amounts. 

Financial liabilities and equity 
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to 
the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into. 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest 
in the assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities. 

Bank borrowings 
Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the 
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Finance charges, including 
premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue 
costs, are accounted for on an accrual basis to the profit and loss 
account using effective interest method and are added to the carrying 
amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the 
period in which they arise. 

Trade payables 
Trade payables are not interest bearing and are stated at their 
nominal value. 

Equity instruments 
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the 
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. 

Revenue Recognition 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or 
receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods supplied and 
services provided by the Group excluding intercompany transactions, 
sales by associated undertakings and sales taxes. 

Within the engine overhauls business, turnover and associated 
profit are recognised on a percentage of completion basis once the 
terms of the contract have been agreed with the customer and  
the ultimate profitability of the contract can be determined with 
reasonable certainty. The percentage of completion is based on 
hours incurred. 

Research and Development Expenditure 
Research expenditure is charged against income in the year in which it 
is incurred. An internally-generated intangible asset arising from the 
Group’s development expenditure is recognised only if the asset can 
be separately identified, it is probable that the asset will generate  
future economic benefits and the development costs of the asset can 
be measured reliably. 

Post-Retirement Benefits 
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are 
charged as an expense as they fall due.
 For defined benefit retirement benefit schemes, the cost is 
determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial 
valuations being carried out annually on 31 December. Actuarial gains 
and losses are recognised in full in the period in which they occur. 
They are recognised outside profit or loss and presented in the 
statement of comprehensive income. 

Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that 
the benefits are already vested, and otherwise is amortised on 
a straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits 
become vested. 

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance 
sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as 
adjusted for unrecognised past service costs, and reduced by the fair 
value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is 
limited to past service cost, plus the present value of available refunds 
and reductions in future contributions to the plan. 

Retirement benefit scheme contribution levels are determined 
by valuations undertaken by independent qualified actuaries. 
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Property, Plant and Equipment 
Property, plant and equipment is stated in the balance sheet at cost 
less accumualted depreciation and provision for impairments. 
Depreciation is provided on the cost of property, plant and equipment 
less estimated residual value and is calculated on a straight-line basis 
over the following estimated useful lives of the assets: 

Land not depreciated 
Buildings 40 years maximum 
Plant and machinery (including essential 
commissioning costs) 3-18 years 

Tooling, vehicles, computer and office equipment are categorised 
within plant and machinery. 

Finance costs which are directly attributable to the construction 
of major items of property, plant and equipment are capitalised as part 
of those assets. The commencement of capitalisation begins when 
both finance costs and expenditures for the asset are being incurred 
and activities that are necessary to get the asset ready for use are in 
progress. Capitalisation ceases when substantially all the activities that 
are necessary to get the asset ready for use are complete. 

Impairment of Assets 
At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying value of its 
tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any 
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any 
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is 
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss. 
Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent 
from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the 
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. An intangible asset 
with an indefinite life is tested for impairment annually and whenever 
there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell 
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash 
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of 
future cash flows have not been adjusted. 

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is 
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of 
the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount. 
An impairment loss is recognised immediately. 

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying 
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the revised 
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset or 
cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is 
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried 
at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment 
loss is treated as a revaluation increase. 

Intangible Assets 
Licences are shown at amortised cost. Amortisation provided on the 
cost of licences is calculated on a straight-line basis over the useful life 
of the licences. Where a licence has an indefinite life, the licence is not 
amortised until such time as the remaining life of the associated 
platform is estimated to be twenty years at which point amortisation 
commences over the remaining useful life of the licence. 

Where computer software is not an integral part of a related item of 
computer hardware, the software is treated as an intangible asset. 
Computer software is capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to 
acquire and bring to use the specific software. Amortisation is 
provided on the cost of software and is calculated on a straight-line 
basis over the useful life of the software. 

The Group makes an assessment of the fair value of intangible 
assets arising on acquisitions. An intangible asset will be recognised as 
long as the asset is separable or arises from contractual or other legal 
rights, and its fair value can be measured reliably. Amortisation is 
provided on the fair value of the asset and is calculated on a straight-
line basis over its useful life. 

Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation 
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the 
Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate 
can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the 
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the balance 
sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding 
the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows 
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the 
present value of those cash flows. 

When some or all of the economic benefi ts required to settle a 
provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable 
is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will 
be received on settlement of a related provision and the amount of 
the receivable can be measured reliably. 

Restructuring 
A restructuring provision is recognised when the Group has 
developed a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and has raised 
a  valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the 
restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its 
main features to those affected by it. The measurement of a 
restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising 
from the restructuring, which are those amounts that are both 
necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated with the 
ongoing activities of the entity. 

Onerous contracts 
Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised 
and measured as provisions. An onerous contract is considered to exist 
where the Group has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of 
meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic 
benefits expected to be received under it. 

Share-Based Payments 
The Group operates a number of cash and equity-settled share-based 
compensation plans. The fair value of the compensation is recognised 
in the income statement as an expense. The total amount to be 
expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference to the 
fair value of the options granted and calculated using the valuation 
technique most appropriate to each type of award. These include  
Black-Scholes calculations and Monte Carlo simulations. For cash-
settled options, the fair value of the option is revisited at each balance 
sheet date. For both cash and equity-settled options, the Group 
revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to 
become exercisable at each balance sheet date. 
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Accounting Policies – continued 

Leases 
Where assets are financed by lease agreements that give rights similar 
to ownership (finance leases), the assets are treated as if they had been 
purchased and the leasing commitments are shown as obligations to 
the lessors. The capitalisation values of the assets are written off on a 
straight-line basis over the shorter of the periods of the leases or the 
useful lives of the assets concerned. The capital elements of future 
leases are recorded as liabilities, while the interest elements are 
charged to the income statement over the period of the leases to 
produce a constant rate of charge on the balance of capital payments 
outstanding. 

For all other leases (operating leases) the rental payments are 
charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lives 
of the leases. 

Inventory 
Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
Cost comprises the cost of raw materials and an appropriate 
proportion of labour and overheads in the case of work in progress 
and finished goods. Cost is calculated using the first in fi rst out 
method in the Flight Support segment, and weighted average 
method in the Aftermarket Services and Systems segment. Provision is 
made for slow moving or obsolete inventory as appropriate. 

Taxation 
The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the year and takes 
into account taxation deferred due to temporary diff erences between 
the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes. 
Current tax is calculated at tax rates which have been enacted or 
substantially enacted at the balance sheet date. 

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on 
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in 
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases in the 
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance 
sheet liability method. 

No provision is made for temporary diff erences on unremitted 
earnings of foreign subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates where the 
Group has control and the reversal of the temporary difference is not 
foreseeable. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each 
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that suffi  cient taxable profits will be available to allow all or 
part of the asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax is calculated at tax rates which have been enacted 
or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date and that are 
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset 
is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income 
statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited to 
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity. 

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation 
Uncertainty 
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of 
estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a 
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying  
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are 
discussed below. The judgements used by management in the 
application of the Group’s accounting policies in respect of these 
key areas of estimation are considered to be the most significant. 

Impairment of goodwill, intangible and tangible fi xed assets 
Determining whether goodwill, intangible or tangible fixed assets are 
impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which the goodwill has been allocated or the 
individual assets. The value in use calculation requires the entity to 
estimate future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating 
unit or asset and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present 
value. The carrying amount of goodwill, intangible and tangible fixed 
assets at the balance sheet date was £485.0 million, £95.0 million and 
£327.5 million respectively. Details regarding the goodwill and 
tangible fixed asset carrying value and assumptions used in carrying 
out the impairment reviews are provided in notes 8 and 9. 

Pensions and other post-retirement benefi ts 
Determining the present value of future obligations of pension and 
other post-retirement benefit schemes requires an estimation of 
future mortality rates, future changes in employee benefits and length 
of service. These assumptions are determined in association with 
qualified actuaries. The net pension liability related to defi ned benefi t 
type schemes at the balance sheet date was £34.1 million. Details 
regarding the carrying value and assumptions used in arriving at the 
carrying values are provided in note 19. 

Taxation 
As part of the process for preparing the Group’s fi nancial statements, 
management is required to calculate income tax accruals. This process 
involves estimates of the current tax exposures together with assessing 
temporary differences resulting from differing treatment of items for 
tax and accounting purposes. These differences result in deferred tax 
assets and liabilities, which are included in the balance sheet. 

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had a corporate tax liability 
of £50.3 million (2009: £45.6 million). While the Group aims to ensure 
the accruals for its tax liabilities are accurate, the process of agreeing 
tax liabilities with the tax authorities can take several years. 
Management judgement is therefore required in determining the 
provision for income tax and the recognition of deferred tax assets and 
liabilities; however, the actual tax liabilities could differ from the 
amounts accrued. 

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had a net deferred tax 
liability of £42.2 million (2009: £29.9 million). 

Provisions 
The Group exercises judgement in measuring and recognising 
provisions and the exposures to contingent liabilities related to 
pending litigation or other outstanding claims subject to negotiated 
settlement, mediation, arbitration or government regulation, as well as 
other contingent liabilities (see note 25 to the consolidated fi nancial 
statements). Judgement is necessary in assessing the likelihood that a 
pending claim will succeed, or a liability will arise, and to quantify the 
possible range of the financial settlement. Because of the inherent 
uncertainty in this evaluation process, actual losses may be diff erent 
from the originally estimated provision. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

1. Segmental information 
IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed 
by the Chief Executive to allocate resources to the segments and to assess their performance. 

The Group provides information to the Chief Executive on the basis of components that are substantially similar within the segments in the 
following aspects: 
— the nature of the long-term fi nancial performance 
— the nature of the products and services 
— the nature of the production processes 
— the type of class of customer for the products and services 
— the nature of the regulatory environment 

Based on the above, the primary reportable segments of the Group have been deemed to be Flight Support, which comprises Signature Flight 
Support and ASIG, and Aftermarket Services and Systems, which comprises Engine Repair and Overhaul, Legacy and APPH. The components of 
these two segments are deemed to be the primary segments of the Group. 

The businesses within the Flight Support segment provide refuelling, ground handling and other services to the business, general and 
commercial aviation markets. 

The businesses within the Aftermarket Services and Systems segment maintain, manufacture and support engines and aerospace components, 
sub-systems and systems. 

Sales between segments are immaterial. 
Aftermarket 

Flight  Services  &  Unallocated  Total  
Support Systems Total Corporate Continuing 

Business Segments  £m £m £m £m £m 

2010 
External  revenue  741.6 441.4 1,183.0 – 1,183.0 

Underlying operating profit  73.4 48.0 121.4 (10.8) 110.6 
Exceptional items (5.3) (4.3) (9.6) (0.6) (10.2) 

Segment result* 68.1 43.7 111.8 (11.4) 100.4 
Underlying operating margin 9.9% 10.9% 10.3% – 9.3% 

* Segment result includes £1.1 million profit of associates within Flight Support. 

Other information 

Capital additions* 9.8 13.0 22.8 – 22.8 

Depreciation and amortisation  29.7 12.3 42.0 0.2 42.2 


* Capital additions represent net cash expenditures in the year. 

Balance sheet 

Total  assets  790.2 459.3 1,249.5 118.2 1,367.7 
Total liabilities (114.8) (98.5) (213.3) (672.0) (885.3)

 Net assets  675.4 360.8 1,036.2 (553.8) 482.4 
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Financial statements Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements – continued 
85 Independent Auditor’s 

Report to the Members of 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect 
of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

86 Consolidated Income 

1. Segmental information – continued 

Business Segments 

Aftermarket  
Flight  Services  &  

Support Systems 
£m £m 

Unallocated  
Total Corporate 

£m £m 
Total 

£m 
Statement 

87 Consolidated Statement of 
2009 

Comprehensive Income External revenue 643.8 437.0 1,080.8 – 1,080.8 
88 Consolidated Balance Sheet 

89 Consolidated Cash Flow Underlying operating profit 61.8 48.5 110.3 (9.8) 100.5 
Statement Exceptional items (9.9) (5.1) (15.0) (3.2) (18.2) 

90 Consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Equity 

91 Accounting Policies of 

Segment result* 
Underlying operating margin 

51.9 43.4 
9.6% 11.1% 

95.3 (13.0) 
10.2% – 

82.3 
9.3% 

the Group 

95 Notes to the Consolidated * Segment result includes £1.1 million profit of associates within Flight Support. 

Financial Statements 

126  Independent Auditor’s Other information 
Report to the Members of 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect Capital additions* 11.0 16.7 27.7 0.1 27.8 
of the Parent Company 
Financial Statements 

Depreciation and amortisation  30.8 11.6 42.4 0.2 42.6 

127 Company Balance sheet * Capital additions represent net cash expenditures in the year. 
128 Accounting Policies of 

the Company Balance sheet 
129 Notes to the Company 

Financial Statements Total assets  785.5 455.1 1,240.6 134.9 1,375.5 
134  Principal Subsidiary Total liabilities (120.4) (87.6) (208.0) (720.4) (928.4)

Undertakings  Net assets  665.1 367.5 1,032.6 (585.5) 447.1 
135 Five Year Summary 

136  Shareholder Information Revenue  Non-
by  Revenue  Capital  current  

destination by origin additions assets 
Geographical Segments £m £m £m £m 

2010 
United Kingdom  140.7 214.4 4.7 103.0 
Mainland  Europe  86.7 28.4 0.2 28.9 
North America 896.5 936.9 18.0 790.0 
Rest  of  World  59.1 3.3 – 4.0 

Total  1,183.0 1,183.0 22.9 925.9 

2009 
United Kingdom  125.1 191.5 4.0 104.6 
Mainland Europe  81.3 29.0 0.2 31.5 
North America 814.4 857.1 23.6 788.3 
Rest of World 60.0 3.2 – 3.4 

Total 1,080.8 1,080.8 27.8 927.8 

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows: 
Revenue  from  Revenue  from  
sales  of  goods  services  

£m  £m £m £m 
2010 2009 2010 2009 

Flight  Support  431.2 343.1 310.5  300.7 
Aftermarket Service and Systems 119.0  121.5 322.3  315.5 

550.2 464.6 632.8  616.2 

A portion of the Group’s revenue from the sale of goods and services denominated in foreign currencies is cash flow hedged. The amounts 
disclosed above for revenue from the sale of goods include the recycling of the effective amount of the foreign currency derivatives that are used 
to hedge foreign currency revenue. The amount included in revenue is a loss of £3.6 million (2009: loss £5.5 million). 
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2. Profit for the year 
Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting): 

Exceptional items 
Exceptional items included within operating profit amounted to a net charge of £10.2 million (2009: £18.2 million). The main items included 
within this are: 

2010: Administrative expenses of £3.7 million related to amortisation of intangible assets acquired and valued in accordance with IFRS 3. 
Restructuring costs of £4.2 million associated primarily with the closure of APPH Bolton of £2.5 million and severance costs at Dallas Airmotive of 
£1.5 million. Other operating expenses of £2.3 million includes acquisition costs of £1.5 million of which £1.4 million related to acquisitions made 
in prior years and other costs of £0.8 million which include costs related to businesses previously disposed of. 

2009: Administrative expenses of £3.8 million relating to amortisation of intangible assets acquired and valued in accordance with IFRS 3 
and restructuring costs of £6.0 million relating to a number of restructuring initiatives, other operatings expenses of £8.0 million which relate 
principally to an impairment of £5.5 million of our investment in ASIG Thailand and costs of £2.3 million relating to an onerous lease; and a net loss 
on the disposal of businesses of £0.4 million. 

Underlying profit is shown before exceptional items on the face of the income statement because the directors consider that this gives a 
useful indication of underlying performance. 

Other 
2010 2009 

£m £m 

Net  foreign  exchange(gains)/losses  (0.3) 0.1 

Research  and  development  costs  2.3 1.2 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 33.6 35.2 
Amortisation of intangible assets (included in cost of sales)  1.7  1.6 
Amortisation of intangible assets (included in administration expenses)  6.9 5.8 

Total depreciation and amortisation expense  42.2 42.6 

Impairment of property, plant and equipment – 4.6 

Total  employee  costs  306.6 300.5 

Cost of inventories recognised as an expense within cost of sales  568.8 514.4 

The analysis of auditor’s remuneration is as follows: 
2010 2009 

£m £m 

Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for the audit of the Group’s annual accounts  1.5  1.4 

Fees payable to the Company’s auditors and their associates for other services to the Group 
The audit of the Company’s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 0.1 0.1 

Total  audit  fees  1.6 1.5 

Other services pursuant to legislation 
Tax  services  0.1  0.1 

0.1 0.1 

Total fees payable to the Company’s auditors  1.7 1.6 
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Financial statements Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements – continued 
85 	Independent Auditor’s 

Report to the Members of 3. Investment income, finance costs and other gains and losses BBA Aviation plc in Respect 
2010 2009 of the Consolidated 

£m £mFinancial Statements 

86	 Consolidated Income Interest  on  bank  deposits  4.1  7.9 
Statement Net finance income from pension schemes 	 0.1 – 

87	 Consolidated Statement of 
Comprehensive Income Total  investment  income  4.2 7.9 

88	 Consolidated Balance Sheet 

89	 Consolidated Cash Flow Interest  on  bank  loans  and  overdrafts  (11.2) (19.8) 
Statement Interest on obligations under finance leases	 (0.4) (0.7) 

90	 Consolidated Statement of Net finance expense from pension schemes 	 – (1.5)
Changes in Equity 

Other  finance  costs 	  (1.3) (0.9)
91	 Accounting Policies of 

the Group Total  borrowing  costs  (12.9) (22.9) 
95 	 Notes to the Consolidated 

Financial Statements Less amounts included in the cost of qualifying assets	  0.2 0.4 
126  	Independent Auditor’s Fair value losses on interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges transferred from equity	 (6.7) (7.7)

Report to the Members of
 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect
 Total  finance  costs 	  (19.4) (30.2)
of the Parent Company
 
Financial Statements
 

Borrowing costs included in the cost of qualifying assets during the year arose on the general borrowing pool and are calculated by applying a 
127 	 Company Balance sheet 

capitalisation rate of 2.0% (2009: 3.2%) to expenditure on such assets, which represents the weighted average interest rate for the currency in 
128	 Accounting Policies of 

the Company which expenditure has been made. 
129 	 Notes to the Company 

Financial Statements 4. Income tax expense 
134  	Principal Subsidiary 2010 2009 

Undertakings £m £m 

135	 Five Year Summary Current  tax 	  12.4 11.5 
136  	Shareholder Information Adjustments in respect of prior years – current tax  (4.5) 0.7 

Deferred  tax  (note  20)  8.0 3.9 
Adjustments in respect of prior years – deferred tax 4.3 (1.6) 

Income tax expense for the year 	 20.2 14.5 

Domestic income tax is calculated at 28% (2009: 28%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated 
at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. 

The total charge for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows: 
2010 2009 

£m £m 

Profit  before  tax: 	  85.2  60.0
 

Tax at the rates prevailing in the relevant tax jurisdictions 23.9% (2009: 22.7%)  20.3  13.6
 
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 2.7 9.9
 
Items on which deferred tax has not been recognised (4.2) (7.8)
 
Tax  rate  changes  0.1 – 

Difference  in  tax  rates  on  overseas  earnings  1.5 (0.3)
 
Adjustments in respect of prior years (0.2) (0.9)
 

Tax expense for the year 	 20.2 14.5 

The applicable tax rate of 23.9% (2009: 22.7%) represents a blend of the tax rates of the jurisdictions in which taxable profits have arisen. 
The change on prior year is due to a change in the proportion of taxable profits that have arisen in each jurisdiction and the benefi ts associated 
with certain financing structures implemented . 

In addition to the income tax expense charged to profit or loss, a current tax credit of £0.7 million (2009: charge £1.7 million) and a  deferred 
tax credit of £0.6 million (2009: charge £1.5 million) has been recognised in equity in the year. These changes primarily represent pension and 
foreign exchange movements recognised through equity. 
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5. Dividends 
On 21 May 2010, the 2009 final dividend of 5.3p per share (total dividend £22.4 million) was paid to shareholders. During 2010 and 2009 the 
Company operated a Scrip Dividend Scheme which provided shareholders with the opportunity to receive their dividends in the form of new 
ordinary shares in the Company instead of cash. £10.8 million of the 2009 final dividend was taken up in the form of shares under the Scrip 
Dividend Scheme. In May 2009, the 2008 final dividend paid was 5.3p per share (total dividend £21.9 million). 

On 29 October 2010, the 2010 interim dividend of 2.4p per share (total dividend £10.3 million) was paid to shareholders. £4.5 million of the 
2010 interim dividend was taken up in the form of shares under the Scrip Dividend Scheme. In November 2009, the 2009 interim dividend paid 
was 2.3p per share (total dividend £9.7 million). 

In respect of the current year, the directors propose that a final dividend of 5.7p per share will be paid to shareholders on 8 June 2011.  This 
dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and in accordance with IAS 10 “Events after the Reporting Period” 
has not been included as a liability in these financial statements. The proposed dividend is payable to all shareholders on the register of members 
on 15 April 2011. The total estimated dividend to be paid is £22.4 million. 

Dividend payments to minority shareholders during the year totalled £0.1 million (2009: £0.1 million). 

6. Earnings per share 
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following data: 

2010 2009 
£m £m 

Basic: 
Earnings 
Profit  for  the  period
Non-controlling  interests

 65.0 
0.1 

45.5 
2.4 

Basic  earnings  attributable  to  ordinary  shareholders
Exceptional  items  (net  of  tax)

 65.1 
10.1

47.9 
13.2 

Adjusted  earnings  75.2 61.1 

Diluted: 
Earnings 
Basic  earnings  attributable  to  ordinary  shareholders  65.1 47.9 

Diluted  earnings  attributable  to  ordinary  shareholders
Exceptional  items  (net  of  tax)

 65.1 
10.1

47.9 
13.2 

Adjusted  diluted  earnings  75.2 61.1 

Number of shares 
Weighted average number of 2916/21 p ordinary shares: 
For basic earnings per share 
Exercise  of  share  options

 427.7 
14.0 

418.4 
9.8 

For diluted earnings per share 441.7  428.2 

Earnings per share 
Basic: 
Adjusted  
Unadjusted  

17.6p 
15.2p 

14.6p 
11.4p 

Diluted: 
Adjusted  
Unadjusted  

17.0p 
14.7p 

14.3p 
11.2p 

Adjusted earnings per share is shown calculated on earnings before exceptional items because the directors consider that this gives a useful 
indication of underlying performance. 

The dilutive earnings per share for the comparative period has been restated due to an adjustment required for the expected exercise of 
share options. 
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Financial statements Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements – continued 
85 Independent Auditor’s 

Report to the Members of 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect 
of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

7. Employees 
2010

number
 2009 
 number 

86 

87 

88 

89 

Consolidated Income 
Statement 

Consolidated Statement of 
Comprehensive Income 

Consolidated Balance Sheet 

Consolidated Cash Flow 

Average monthly number (including Executive Directors) 
By segment 
Flight  Support
Aftermarket  Services  &  Systems

 7,889 
1,820 

9,709 

7,793 
1,901 

9,694 
Statement By region 

90 

91 

Consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Equity 

Accounting Policies of 
the Group 

United  Kingdom
Mainland  Europe
North  America

 2,340
 135 

7,182 

2,005 
153 

7,485 

95 Notes to the Consolidated Rest  of  World  52 51 
Financial Statements 9,709  9,694 

126  Independent Auditor’s 
Report to the Members of £m £m 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect 

127 

128 

of the Parent Company 
Financial Statements 

Company Balance sheet 

Accounting Policies of 
the Company 

Employment costs 
Wages  and  salaries
Social  security  costs
Pension costs (note 19) 

274.2 
24.7
 7.7 

268.9 
23.7 

7.9 

129 Notes to the Company 306.6  300.5 
Financial Statements 

134  

135 

Principal Subsidiary 
Undertakings 

Five Year Summary 

8. Intangible assets
 Goodwill 

 Licences 
& Other Total Goodwill 

Licences
& Other Total

136  Shareholder Information  2010 2010 2010 2009 2009 2009
 £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Cost 
Beginning of year  474.9 127.0 601.9  526.8 137.0 663.8 
Exchange adjustments  10.1 2.6 12.7 (50.9) (12.9) (63.8) 
Acquisitions – 1.0 1.0 – – – 
Additions – 2.5 2.5 – 5.9 5.9 
Disposals  – (0.2) (0.2)  – (1.0) (1.0) 
Disposals of businesses  – – – – (2.3) (2.3) 
Transfers (to)/from other asset categories – (0.3) (0.3)  – 0.3 0.3 
Acquisitions in prior years – – – (1.0) – (1.0) 

End of year  485.0 132.6 617.6 474.9 127.0 601.9 

Amortisation 
Beginning of year  – (28.9) (28.9)  – (24.7) (24.7) 
Exchange adjustments  – (0.5) (0.5)  – 2.2 2.2 
Amortisation charge for the year – (8.6) (8.6)  – (7.4) (7.4) 
Disposals  – 0.2 0.2 – 1.0 1.0 
Disposals of businesses  – – – – 0.2 0.2 
Transfers to/(from) other asset categories – 0.2 0.2  – (0.2) (0.2) 

End of year  – (37.6) (37.6)  – (28.9) (28.9) 

Carrying amount 
End  of  year  485.0 95.0 580.0  474.9 98.1 573.0 

Beginning  of  year  474.9 98.1 573.0 526.8 112.3 639.1 

Licences are amortised over the period to which they relate, which is on average 16 years (2009: 18 years). Where a licence has an indefi nite life, 
the licence is not amortised until such time as the remaining life of the associated platform is estimated to be 20 years, at which point 
amortisation commences over the remaining useful life of the licence. Other intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives 
which is on average 18 years. 
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8. Intangible assets – continued 
The £1.0 million change to goodwill in 2009 on acquisitions in prior years arose as a result of the finalisation of fair value exercises. 

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the cash-generating units (CGUs) that are expected to benefit 
from the business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated as follows: 

2010 2009 
£m £m 

Flight Support: 
ASIG  (US,  Europe  and  rest  of  world)  106.0 103.6 
Signature  US  222.0  216.5 
Other  –  (several  CGUs)  34.1 34.7 

Aftermarket Services & Systems: 
Dallas  Airmotive  53.3 52.0 
Ontic Engineering & Manufacturing 26.7  26.0 
Other  –  (several  CGUs)  42.9 42.1 

485.0  474.9 

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired.
 
The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are
 
those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling prices and direct costs during the period. Management
 
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and any risks specific to the CGUs.
 
The growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past practices and expectations
 
of future changes in the market.
 

The key assumptions in constructing the 2011-2013 plans were that:
 
— Signature, ASIG and ERO continue their gradual recovery in 2011 and beyond ; 
— Legacy Support remains stable with modest revenue growth and operational improvements; and 
— APPH will be relatively stable in 2011 with no further weakening followed by a gradual recovery, commencing during 2012. 

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets approved by management for the next three years. Cash 
flow projections beyond three years are based on internal management forecasts over the long-term business cycle and assume a growth rate 
not exceeding gross domestic product for the respective countries. The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows for all CGUs is 10.3% and this 
approximates to the Group’s weighted average cost of capital which is deemed applicable for all CGU’s, given the similarity of risk profi les. 

Consolidated Financial Statements — 101 



 

          
        
     
     

          
       

     
        

      
       

      
      

     

       
       

     
       

      
     

      

      

      

    

         
         

       

  

  
  

 
 

 
 

   

   

  

   

   

   

  

 
 

 
 

 

   

  

 

  

Financial statements Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements – continued 
85 Independent Auditor’s 

Report to the Members of 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect 
of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

9. Property, plant and equipment 
Land and Fixtures and 

 buildings equipment 
 2010 2010

Total
 2010

Land and Fixtures and
 buildings equipment 
 2009 2009 

Total
2009

86 Consolidated Income £m £m £m £m £m £m 
Statement 

87 Consolidated Statement of 
Comprehensive Income 

Cost or valuation 
Beginning  of  year  366.2 266.5 632.7  405.9 307.6 713.5 

88 Consolidated Balance Sheet Exchange adjustments  8.7 5.0 13.7 (40.1) (24.9) (65.0) 

89 Consolidated Cash Flow Transfers from/(to) other asset categories 7.0 (3.6) 3.4 0.1 (18.8) (18.7) 
Statement Acquisition of businesses  – 1.4 1.4  – – – 

90 Consolidated Statement of Additions 6.5 14.5 21.0 4.4 13.2 17.6 
Changes in Equity Disposals  (1.9) (4.9) (6.8) (0.8) (3.4) (4.2) 

91 

95 

Accounting Policies of 
the Group 

Notes to the Consolidated 

Asset write downs 
Disposals of businesses

 (6.4) 
– 

(7.7) 
– 

(14.1) 
– 

(2.7) 
(0.6) 

(6.9) 
(0.3) 

(9.6) 
(0.9) 

Financial Statements End of year 380.1 271.2 651.3 366.2 266.5 632.7 
126  Independent Auditor’s 

Report to the Members of 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect 
of the Parent Company 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment 
Beginning of year  (140.8) (157.2) (298.0) (140.7) (165.1) (305.8) 

Financial Statements Exchange adjustments  (3.5) (3.1) (6.6) 14.6 13.3 27.9 
127 Company Balance sheet Transfers (to)/from other asset categories (5.0) 0.8 (4.2) – 7.3 7.3 
128 

129 

Accounting Policies of 
the Company 

Notes to the Company 
Financial Statements 

Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals
Asset write downs 

(16.2) 
1.1 
6.0 

(17.4) 
4.0 
7.5 

(33.6) 
5.1

 13.5

(16.5) 
0.8 
0.5 

(18.7) 
2.4 
3.4 

(35.2) 
3.2 
3.9 

134  Principal Subsidiary 
Disposals of businesses  – – – 0.5 0.2 0.7 

Undertakings End of year (158.4) (165.4) (323.8)  (140.8) (157.2) (298.0) 
135 Five Year Summary 

136  Shareholder Information Carrying amount 
End of year 221.7 105.8 327.5  225.4 109.3 334.7 

Beginning of year  225.4 109.3 334.7 265.2 142.5 407.7 

Capital commitments 
2010

£m
 2009 

£m 

Capital expenditure contracted but not provided for 5.8 2.5 

The carrying amount of the Group’s fixtures and equipment includes an amount of £1.3 million (2009: £1.8 million) in respect of assets held under 
fi nance leases. 

Where assets have been written down or impaired the recoverable amount has been determined by reference to its value in use, 
estimated using the forecast cash flows over the remaining life of the asset and discounted using a rate of 10.3% which approximates to the 
Group’s weighted average cost of capital. 
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10. Investments in associates 
2010

£m
 2009 

£m 

Cost  of  investment  in  associates  
Share of post-acquisition profit, net of dividends received 

Group share of net assets of associates 

0.8 
1.1 

1.9 

0.8 
1.1 

1.9 

The investments in associates relates to a number of small investments within the Flight Support segment. 

Aggregated amounts relating to associates 
2010

£m
 2009 

£m 

Total  assets
Total  liabilities  

Net  assets

 18.2 
(15.1) 

3.1 

12.7 
(9.0) 

3.7 

2010
£m

 2009 
£m 

Revenue  
Profit for the year 

Group’s share of profit for the year 

207.3 
3.3 

1.1 

109.4 
3.1 

1.1 

11. Inventories 
2010

£m
 2009 

£m 

Raw  materials
Work-in-progress
Finished  goods

 91.1 
15.4 
29.7 

136.2 

95.8 
13.1 
29.0 

137.9 

12. Other fi nancial assets 
Trade and other receivables Note  

2010
£m

 2009 
£m 

Amounts due within one year 
Trade  receivables  
Other receivables, prepayments and accrued income 
Derivative financial instruments 17 

141.3 
55.8 

0.7 

134.8 
58.3 

1.1 

Trade and other receivables due within one year 197.8 194.2 

Amounts due after one year 
Trade and other receivables 
Derivative financial instruments 17 

16.4 
0.1 

16.8 
1.4 

Trade and other receivables due after one year 16.5 

214.3 

18.2 

212.4 
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Financial statements Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements – continued 
85 	Independent Auditor’s 

Report to the Members of 12. Other financial assets – continued BBA Aviation plc in Respect
 
of the Consolidated Trade receivables
 
Financial Statements
 An allowance has been made for estimated irrecoverable amounts from the sale of goods and services of £4.2 million (2009: £3.1 million). 

86	 Consolidated Income This allowance has been determined by reference to past default experience and current expectations. 
Statement 

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balances are debtors with a carrying amount of £27.0 million (2009: £36.4 million) which are past 
87	 Consolidated Statement of 

Comprehensive Income due at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are 
still considered recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. The average age of these overdue receivables is 58 days 
(2009: 61 days). 

88	 Consolidated Balance Sheet 

89	 Consolidated Cash Flow 
Statement 

2010 2009 
90 Consolidated Statement of £m £m 

Changes in Equity 
Ageing of past due but not impaired receivables 

91	 Accounting Policies of 
the Group 30  –  60  days  20.2 24.8 

95 	 Notes to the Consolidated 60  –  90  days  3.7 7.1 
Financial Statements 90  –  120  days  1.5 1.0 

126  Independent Auditor’s over  120  days  1.6 3.5 
Report to the Members of 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect 27.0 36.4 
of the Parent Company 
Financial Statements 

2010 2009 
127 	 Company Balance sheet £m £m 
128 Accounting Policies of 

the Company Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts 
129 Notes to the Company Beginning  of  year  (3.1) (5.1) 

Financial Statements Exchange  adjustments  (0.1) 0.5 
134  Principal Subsidiary Disposals  of  businesses  – 0.2 

Undertakings 
Amounts written off as uncollectable 	 1.6 1.3 

135	 Five Year Summary Charged  in  the  year 	  (2.6) – 
136  	Shareholder Information 

End  of  year 	  (4.2) (3.1) 

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade receivable from the date 
credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the customer base being large and 
unrelated. Accordingly, the directors believe that there is no further credit provision required in excess of the allowance for doubtful debts. The 
directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value. 

2010 2009 
£m £m 

Ageing of impaired trade receivables 
90  –  120  days  – 0.6 
Over  120  days  3.1 0.2 

3.1 0.8 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. 
The carrying amount of these assets approximates their fair value. 

Credit risk 
The Group’s principal financial assets are bank balances and cash, trade and other receivables, finance lease receivables and investments. 

The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings 
assigned by international credit-rating agencies. 

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and finance lease receivables. The amounts presented in the balance sheet are net of 
allowances for doubtful receivables. An allowance for impairment is made where there is an identified loss event which, based on previous 
experience, is evidence of a reduction of the cash flows. 

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of counterparties and customers. 
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13. Trade and other payables
 

Note  
2010

£m
 2009 

£m 

Amounts due within one year 
Trade  payables
Other  taxation  and  social  security
Other  payables
Accruals  and  deferred  income
Derivative financial instruments 17 

104.6 
5.2

 37.9
 89.7 
16.7

99.9 
4.8 

32.7 
89.7 

3.6 

254.1 230.7 

Amounts due after one year 
Trade  and  other  payables
Derivative financial instruments 17 

8.7 
54.1 

6.6 
54.2 

62.8 60.8 

Total trade and other payables 316.9  291.5 

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to their fair value. 

The average age of trade creditors was 40 days (2009: 42 days). 

14. Obligations under fi nance leases 
Minimum lease 

payments  

2010 2009 
£m £m 

Present  value  of  
minimum lease 

payments  

2010 2009 
£m £m 

Amounts payable under finance leases 
Within  one  year  1.2 1.2 0.9 0.9 
In the second to fifth years inclusive 3.1 4.2 2.8 3.6 
After  five  years  – – – – 

Less: future finance charges 

Present value of lease obligations 

4.3 
(0.6)

3.7 

5.4 
(0.9) 

4.5 

3.7 
N/A

3.7 

4.5 
N/A 

4.5 

Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months (shown under current liabilities) (0.9)

2.8 

(0.9) 

3.6 

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its fixtures and equipment under finance leases. The average lease term is five years for equipment and 
20 years for FBO leasehold improvements. For the year ended 31 December 2010, the average effective borrowing rate for continuing operations 
was 9.7% (2009: 8.2%). Interest rates are fixed at the contract date or vary based on prevailing interest rates. 

All of the Group’s finance lease obligations are denominated in US Dollars.
 

The fair value of the Group’s lease obligations approximates their carrying amount.
 

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors’ charges over the leased assets.
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Financial statements Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements – continued 
85 Independent Auditor’s 

Report to the Members of 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect 
of the Consolidated 

15. Operating lease arrangements 
The Group as lessee 

Financial Statements 2010 2009 

86 Consolidated Income 
£m £m 

Statement Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised as an expense in the year 49.9 51.2 
87 Consolidated Statement of 

Comprehensive Income At the balance sheet date, the Group has outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows: 
88 Consolidated Balance Sheet 

89 Consolidated Cash Flow 
Statement 

2010
£m

 2009 
£m 

90 Consolidated Statement of Within  one  year  59.7 56.0 
Changes in Equity In the second to fifth years inclusive 200.1 189.8 

91 Accounting Policies of 
the Group 

After  five  years  455.2 457.5 

95 Notes to the Consolidated 715.0 703.3 
Financial Statements 

126  	Independent Auditor’s 
Report to the Members of 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect 
of the Parent Company 
Financial Statements 

127 	 Company Balance sheet 

128	 Accounting Policies of 
the Company 

129 	 Notes to the Company 
Financial Statements 

134  	Principal Subsidiary 
Undertakings 

135	 Five Year Summary 

136  	Shareholder Information 

Operating lease payments represent amounts payable by the Group for certain of its office properties, plants, FBOs, and equipment. Leases are 
negotiated for an average term of 11 years for office properties, six years for plants and warehouses, 26 years for FBOs, and five years for 
equipment. Rentals are generally fixed or adjusted based on infl ation. 

The total future minimum sub-lease payments expected to be received under non-cancellable sub-leases at 31 December 2010 were 
£52.9 million (2009: £37.6 million). 

16. Bank overdraft and loans 
2010 2009 

£m £m 

Bank  overdrafts  
Bank  loans  
Loans  other  than  from  banks  

29.4
387.2

1.3

 31.7 
468.9 

1.9 

417.9 502.5 

The borrowings are repayable as follows: 
On demand or within one year 
In  the  second  year  
In the third to fifth years inclusive 
After  five  years  

Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months (shown within current liabilities) 

Amount due for settlement after 12 months 

98.7 
319.0 

– 
0.2 

417.9 
(98.7) 

319.2

33.1 
67.8 

401.4 
0.2 

502.5 
(33.1) 

469.4 

The fair value of the Group’s borrowings are not materially different from their carrying values. 

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the following currencies: 

Sterling
£m 

 US Dollar 
£m 

Euro 
£m 

Other 
£m 

Total 
£m 

31 December 2010 
Bank  overdrafts  22.1 3.4 3.0 0.9 29.4 
Bank  loans  – 386.1 – 1.1 387.2 
Loans other than from banks 0.2 0.8 – 0.3 1.3 

22.3 390.3 3.0 2.3 417.9 

31 December 2009 
Bank overdrafts  20.1 7.9 2.9 0.8 31.7 
Bank loans 10.0 457.1 – 1.8 468.9 
Loans other than from banks 0.2 1.5 – 0.2 1.9 

30.3 466.5 2.9 2.8 502.5 
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16. Bank overdraft and loans – continued 
The average floating interest rates on borrowings are as follows: 

2010 2009 

Sterling  1.5% 1.6% 
US  Dollar  1.0% 1.7% 
Euros  0.9% 1.3% 

All borrowings are arranged at floating rates exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. This cash flow interest rate risk is managed by the 
use of interest rate swaps in accordance with pre-agreed policies and authority limits. As at 31 December 2010, 53% of the Group’s borrowings 
were fixed at a weighted average interest rate of 3.0% for a weighted average period of 2.9 years. The Group’s cash flow interest rate exposure also 
includes finances leases and cross currency swaps and as at 31 December 2010, 47% of the Group’s total interest rate risk exposure was fixed. 

Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand. All bank loans are unsecured. 

The effective interest rates on borrowings are not materially different from their nominal interest rates. 

The Group has two bank loan facilities totalling $1,075.0 million (2009: $1,075.0 million). The primary facility is a multicurrency revolving credit 
facility dated 7 September 2007 for $900.0 million which is due to expire in September 2012. In addition, the Group has a $175.0 million 
multicurrency revolving credit facility dated 27 August 2008 which is due to expire in August 2011. These facilities are unsecured committed bank 
facilities and are subject to cross-default. 

At 31 December 2010, the Group had available $469.0 million (2009: $322.9 million) of undrawn committed borrowing facilities in respect of 
which all conditions precedent had been met. 

17. Derivative fi nancial instruments 
Categories of Financial Instruments 
The table below details the categories of financial instruments across the Group and the carrying values of each category: 

2010 2009 
Carrying Carrying 

value value 
£m £m 

Financial assets: 
Fair value through profit and loss – held for trading†  0.4 0.1 
Derivative instruments in designated hedge accounting relationships  0.4 2.4 
Loans and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents) 250.5  251.3 

251.3  253.8 

Financial liabilities 
Fair value through profit and loss – held for trading†  (0.8) (0.1) 
Derivative instruments in designated hedge accounting relationships  (70.0) (57.7) 
Amortised  cost  (541.3) (617.0)

 (612.1) (674.8) 

† The amounts detailed above as fair value through profit and loss – held for trading do not relate to speculative transactions. They relate to foreign exchange contracts which are not designated in a 
formal hedging relationship and are used to hedge foreign currency flows through the BBA Aviation plc Company bank accounts and to ensure that the Group is not exposed to foreign exchange risk 
through the management of its international cash management structure. 

Derivative Financial Instruments 
The fair values of all derivative financial instruments shown in the table below are based on market values of equivalent instruments at the 
balance sheet date and are held as assets and liabilities within other receivables and other payables. The notional amounts of the derivative 
financial instruments detailed in the table below are based on the contractual gross amounts as at the balance sheet date. The fair values of all 
derivative financial instruments in the table below are categorised within level 1 of the fair value hierarchy as confirmation that the fair values 
have been calculated based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. The Group does not have any derivative fi nancial 
instruments which would be categorised as level 2 or level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. 
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Financial statements Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements – continued 
85 	Independent Auditor’s 

Report to the Members of 17. Derivative financial instruments – continued BBA Aviation plc in Respect 
of the Consolidated Financial assets measured at fair value 
Financial Statements	 2010 2009 

86 Consolidated Income Notional  Notional 
Statement amount Fair value amount Fair value 

£m £m £m £m
87	 Consolidated Statement of 

Comprehensive Income Cash flow hedges 
88	 Consolidated Balance Sheet Interest rate swaps  – – (124.2) 1.3 
89 Consolidated Cash Flow Foreign exchange forward contracts (17.0) 0.4  (9.3) 1.1 

Statement 

90	 Consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Equity Derivatives not in a formal hedge relationship 

Foreign exchange forward contracts 	 79.7 0.4  18.6 0.191	 Accounting Policies of 
the Group 62.7 0.8  (114.9) 2.5 

95 	 Notes to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements Financial liabilities measured at fair value 

126  	Independent Auditor’s 2010 2009 
Report to the Members of 

Notional  Notional BBA Aviation plc in Respect 
amount Fair value amount Fair value of the Parent Company 

£m £m £m £mFinancial Statements 

127 Company Balance sheet 

128 Accounting Policies of 
the Company 

129 Notes to the Company 
Financial Statements 

134  Principal Subsidiary 
Undertakings 

135 Five Year Summary 

136  Shareholder Information 

Cash flow hedges 
Interest  rate  swaps  (222.9) (11.3)  (205.0) (6.6) 
Foreign exchange forward contracts (104.8) (2.8)  (41.7) (3.4) 

Net investment hedges 
Cross-currency  swaps 	  (297.5) (55.9)  (292.7) (47.7) 

Derivatives not in a formal hedge relationship 
Foreign exchange forward contracts 	 48.5 (0.8)  36.3 (0.1)

 (576.7) (70.8)  (503.1) (57.8) 

The maturity of derivative financial instruments is as follows: 
2010 2009 

Asset Liability Asset Liability 
fair value fair value fair value fair value 

£m £m £m £m 

Current
 
Less  than  1  year  0.7 (16.7)  1.1 (3.6)
 

Total  current 	  0.7 (16.7)  1.1 (3.6) 

Non-current
 
1 – 2 years 0.1 (20.4)  0.1 (25.0)
 
2 – 3 years – (30.0)  – (16.8)
 
3 – 4 years – (3.7)  – (12.4)
 
4 – 5 years – – 1.3 –
 
More than 5 years – – – – 


Total non-current 	 0.1 (54.1)  1.4 (54.2)

 0.8 (70.8)  2.5 (57.8) 

Collateral 
As part of the Group’s management of its insurable risks, a proportion of this risk is managed through self insurance programmes operated by its 
captive insurance company, BBA Aviation Insurances Limited, based in the Isle of Man. This company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group 
and premiums paid are held to meet future claims. The cash balances held by the company are reported on the balance sheet within cash and 
cash equivalents. As is usual practice for captive insurance companies some of this cash is used as collateral against contingent liabilities (standby 
letters of credit) that have been provided to certain external insurance companies. 
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17. Derivative financial instruments – continued 
The table below details the contractual amount and maturity of the cash balances that have been pledged as collateral for these 
contingent liabilities: 

2010 2009  

US Dollar Sterling Total US Dollar Sterling Total 
£m £m £m £m £m £m 

BBA Aviation Insurances Limited  9.6 1.0 10.6 7.6 1.0 8.6 

Total  9.6 1.0 10.6 7.6 1.0 8.6 

Current  
Less than 1 year 9.6 1.0 10.6 7.6 1.0 8.6 

Total current 9.6 1.0 10.6 7.6 1.0 8.6 

The standby letters of credit have been issued via bank facilities that BBA Aviation Insurances Limited has in place. The amount of these facilities 
correspond to the amounts pledged as detailed in the table above. The amounts pledged are usually for less than one year and are secured by a 
legal charge, to the bank providing the letters of credit, over the cash balances of BBA Aviation Insurances Limited corresponding to the amount 
of the standby letters of credit. 

Financial Risk Factors 
Our activities expose us to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk and cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity 
risk. Overall, our risk management policies and procedures focus on the uncertainty of financial markets and seeks to manage and minimise 
potential financial risks through the use of derivative financial instruments. The Group does not undertake speculative transactions for which 
there is no underlying fi nancial exposure. 

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury department under policies approved by the Board of Directors of BBA Aviation plc. 
This department identifi es, evaluates and hedges fi nancial risks in close co-operation with our subsidiaries. The treasury policies cover specifi c 
areas such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and the investment of excess liquidity. 
These policies are outlined further as described on page 65. 

Capital Risk Management 
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to 
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt to equity balance. The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, cash and cash 
equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent comprising capital, reserves and retained earnings. 

The Group’s policy is to borrow centrally to meet anticipated funding requirements. These borrowings, together with cash generated from 
the operations, are on-lent or contributed as equity to subsidiaries at market-based interest rates and on commercial terms and conditions. 

The Group is subject to two financial covenant requirements under its two main credit facilities: maximum net debt to underlying EBITDA 
of 3.5 times and minimum net interest cover of 3.0 times. The Group complied with these covenants during the year. In the primary $900 million 
facility the Group has the option of relaxing the financial covenants for a period of time if certain acquisition criteria are met. This acquisition spike 
is not incorporated, and therefore not available, under the $175 million facility. 

Market Risk 
Market risk is the risk of adverse fi nancial impact due to changes in fair values or future cash fl ows of fi nancial instruments from fl uctuations in 
foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Group has well defined policies for the management of these risks and the management 
of these risks includes the use of derivative fi nancial instruments. 

(i) Foreign Exchange Risk 
The Group has significant overseas businesses whose revenues, cash flows, assets and liabilities are mainly denominated in the currency in which 
the operations are located. The Group is, therefore, exposed to foreign currency translation risk from the translation of these overseas operations 
financial statements into Sterling. The Group’s policy is not to hedge the income statement translation exposure since such hedges have only a 
temporary effect. However, it is the Group’s policy to partially hedge the balance sheet in order to reduce the impact of foreign exchange rate 
movements on the net debt to EBITDA ratio. Therefore, it is the Group’s policy to seek to denominate the currency of its borrowings in US Dollars 
in order to match the currency of its cash flows, earnings and assets. 
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Financial statements Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements – continued 
85 Independent Auditor’s 

Report to the Members of 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect 
of the Consolidated 

17. Derivative financial instruments – continued 
As at 31 December 2010 the majority of the Group’s net borrowings were denominated in US Dollars as detailed in the table below: 

Financial Statements 

86 Consolidated Income 
2010  2009  

Statement US Dollar Euros Sterling Other Total US Dollar Euros Sterling Other Total 

87 Consolidated Statement of 
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Comprehensive Income Cash and cash equivalents  63.5 14.0 28.4 1.8 107.7 66.8 11.6 35.5 1.5 115.4 
88 Consolidated Balance Sheet 

89 Consolidated Cash Flow 
Statement 

Debt and finance leases (394.1) (2.9) (22.3) (2.3) (421.6)  (471.0) (2.9) (30.3) (2.8) (507.0) 

90 Consolidated Statement of Net debt  (330.6) 11.1 6.1 (0.5) (313.9) (404.2) 8.7 5.2 (1.3) (391.6) 
Changes in Equity 

91	 Accounting Policies of 
the Group 

95 	 Notes to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

126  	Independent Auditor’s 
Report to the Members of 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect 
of the Parent Company 
Financial Statements 

127 	 Company Balance sheet 

128	 Accounting Policies of 
the Company 

129 	 Notes to the Company 
Financial Statements 

134  	Principal Subsidiary 
Undertakings 

135	 Five Year Summary 

136  	Shareholder Information 

At the end of 2010 the Group had outstanding $400 million (2009: $400 million) and €50 million (2009: €50 million) of cross-currency swaps. 
The fair value of currency derivatives that are designated and effective as net investment hedges at the 2010 year end amounting to a payable 
of £55.9 million (2009: payable £47.7 million) has been deferred in equity. 

The Group manages its transactional foreign currency risk by hedging significant currency exposures in accordance with foreign exchange 
policies that our subsidiaries have in place which have been pre-agreed between Group Treasury and the subsidiary. Each foreign exchange policy 
is individually tailored to the foreign exchange exposures within the relevant subsidiary. Transaction currency risk is managed through the use of 
spot and forward foreign exchange contracts. All committed exposures are fully hedged 100% and where significant foreign currency exposures 
exist then we generally will also cover a percentage of the projected foreign currency flows depending on the certainty of these cash flows. 

The transaction foreign exchange risk is measured by each subsidiary submitting monthly reports to Group Treasury which detail the 
foreign currency exposure reported on the balance sheet as committed exposures and, for those subsidiaries with significant foreign exchange 
transaction exposures, an additional report detailing the future projected foreign currency cash flows over the life of the policy. The pre
determined policy margin is shown against the projected exposures to determine whether there is a net exposure which needs to be hedged. 
If this is the case, then foreign exchange spot or forward contract(s) will be undertaken by Group Treasury on behalf of the relevant subsidiary 
with our relationship banks. 

2010 	  2009  

US Dollar Euros Other Total US Dollar Euros Other Total
 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Net foreign exchange transaction 
cash flow exposure  49.0 4.1 1.0 54.1 53.2 3.9 (0.6) 56.5 
Derivative effect – foreign exchange 
contracts spot/forwards (48.5) (4.1) (1.0) (53.6)  (52.2) (3.9) 0.6 (55.5) 

Net asset position excl. intercompany 
debt post hedging effect  0.5 – – 0.5  1.0 – – 1.0 

The fair value of currency derivatives that are designated and effective as cash flow hedges amounting to £(2.3) million (2009: £(2.3) million) has 
been deferred in equity. A loss of £3.6 million (2009: loss £5.7 million) has been transferred to the income statement in respect of contracts that 
matured during the period. 

Foreign exchange contracts that are not designated as cash flow hedges are used to hedge foreign currency flows through the BBA 
Aviation plc company bank accounts and to ensure that the Group is not exposed to foreign exchange risk through the management of its 
international cash pooling structure. 

Changes in the fair value of foreign exchange contracts which have not been designated as cash flow hedges amounting to £1.3 million 
(2009: £17.8 million) have been transferred to administrative expenses in the income statement in the year. The net impact on the Group’s result 
for the period is immaterial, since the balances which these contracts relate to have had a similar but opposite effect on administrative expenses. 

(ii) Cash Flow Interest Rate Risk 
The majority of the Group’s debt and cash balances are based on floating interest rates which expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. 
A very small proportion of the Group’s borrowings (£2.4 million) is issued at fixed interest rates and, therefore, overall the Group is not exposed to 
fair value interest rate risk. The Group’s policy is to use a combination of debt and derivative instruments to fix proportions of the exposure for 
varying periods based upon the maturity profile and the expectation of future interest rates. The Group uses interest rate swaps to manage its 
exposure to the movements on these floating interest rates. 
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17. Derivative financial instruments – continued 
During 2010 and 2009, net debt was managed using derivative instruments to hedge cash flow interest rate risk as follows: 

2010 2009  

Fixed
rate
£m

 Floating 
 rate 

£m

Net
debt

 £m

 Fixed 
 rate
 £m

Floating 
 rate 

£m 

Net 
debt 

£m 

Cash and cash equivalents  – 107.7 107.7 – 115.4 115.4
 
Bank overdrafts  – (29.4) (29.4)  – (31.7) (31.7)
 
Borrowings  – (388.5) (388.5)  – (470.8) (470.8)
 
Finance leases  (2.4) (1.3) (3.7) (2.8) (1.7) (4.5)
 

Net Debt  (2.4) (311.5) (313.9)  (2.8) (388.8) (391.6) 

Derivative effect – cross-currency swaps – (55.9) (55.9)  – (47.7) (47.7) 
Derivative effect – cash flow interest rate swaps*  (222.9) 211.6 (11.3)  (329.2) 323.9 (5.3) 

Net debt post derivative effect  (225.3) (155.8) (381.1) (332.0) (112.6) (444.6) 

*Mark-to-market value has been included within the floating rate amount. This is not booked to net debt but is recorded as a net loss in reserves. 

The fair value of interest rate swaps are designated and effective as cash flow hedges and the fair value loss of £11.3 million (2009: £5.3 million) 
has been deferred in equity. A charge of £6.7 million (2009: charge £7.7 million) has been booked against hedged interest payments made in 
the period. 

Credit Risk 
Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as 
credit exposures to customers, including outstanding receivables and committed transactions. As part of the Group’s operations, cash 
management and risk management activities the Group is exposed to counterparty risk arising on the financial assets that we have and the credit 
risk on outstanding derivative fi nancial instruments. 

Treasury Related Credit Risk 
The Group aims to reduce counterparty risk by dealing with counterparties of strong credit standing as measured by financial credit ratings. All 
Treasury related activity is concentrated with relationship banks that provide unsecured committed facilities to the Group. Across the 
subsidiaries, wherever possible and where services can be provided efficiently and cost effectively, bank accounts, surplus cash and any hedging 
activity are concentrated and undertaken with relationship banks. 

Each counterparty that the Group uses for derivatives, bank account activity and the investment of surplus cash is assigned a maximum 
credit limit dependent upon the counterparty’s credit rating. This limit gives a maximum permitted amount of cash and derivatives that can be 
held or undertaken with each counterparty. All counterparties must also have a short-term rating of A1/P1. Deposits are generally for short-term 
maturity of less than three months. 

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009 the Group had a number of exposures to individual counterparties. These are within the maximum limits 
permissible under our policy and these exposures are continually monitored and reported. No individual exposure is considered signifi cant in 
the ordinary course of treasury management activity and we do not expect any significant losses from non-performance by these counterparties. 

Commercial Related Credit Risk 
The Group’s exposure to commercial related credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and finance lease receivables and the amounts 
presented in the balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful receivables. Sales to customers are settled by a number of diff erent ways 
including cash, credit cards, cheques and electronic payment methods. A customer or potential customer is assessed on a case-by-case basis to 
determine whether credit terms will be provided. The Group does not expect any significant losses of receivables that have not been provided 
for as shown in note 12. 

Liquidity Risk 
The Group manages its liquidity requirements through the use of short and long-term cash flow forecasts. In addition to strong cash generation 
in the businesses the Group maintains unsecured committed borrowing facilities from a range of highly rated banks to mitigate this risk further. 
Headroom on our facilities is regularly evaluated and consistently monitored to ensure that the Group has adequate headroom and liquidity. The 
Group’s committed facilities are a $175 million revolving credit facility maturing in 2011 and a $900 million revolving credit facility maturing 
in 2012. 

Consolidated Financial Statements — 111 



 

 
   

          

          
     
     
    

    
    
    
    
    

    

    

          

          
       
     
    

    
    
    
    
    
   

   

   

          

        
        

            
        
         
        
        

         

         

   

  
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

   

   

  

   

   

   

  

 
 

 
 

 

   

  

 

  

Financial statements Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements – continued 
85 	Independent Auditor’s 

Report to the Members of 17. Derivative financial instruments – continued BBA Aviation plc in Respect 
of the Consolidated The following table provides an analysis of the contractual undiscounted cash flows payable under the financial liabilities as at the balance 
Financial Statements sheet date: 

86	 Consolidated Income 
Statement 2010  

87 Consolidated Statement of Non-derivative  Derivative  
Comprehensive Income Bank Finance Other Trade financial financial 

loans leases loans creditors liabilities liabilities Total
88 Consolidated Balance Sheet £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

89	 Consolidated Cash Flow 
Statement Due within one year 100.5 1.1 1.0 104.6 207.2 16.7 223.9 

Due between one and two years 318.9 1.1 0.1 2.4 322.5 20.4 342.9 
Changes in Equity Due between two and three years – 0.8 – – 0.8 30.0 30.8 

91 Accounting Policies of Due between three and four years – 0.7 – – 0.7 3.7 4.4 

90	 Consolidated Statement of 

the Group Due between four and five years 	 – 0.7 – – 0.7 – 0.7 
95 	 Notes to the Consolidated Due in more than five years	  – – 0.2 6.3 6.5 – 6.5

Financial Statements 

126  

127 

128 

129 

134  

135 

136  

Independent Auditor’s 
Report to the Members of 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect 
of the Parent Company 
Financial Statements 

Company Balance sheet 

Accounting Policies of 
the Company 

Notes to the Company 
Financial Statements 

Principal Subsidiary 
Undertakings 

Five Year Summary 

Shareholder Information 

Total

Due within one year 
Due between one and two years 
Due between two and three years 
Due between three and four years 
Due between four and five years 
Due in more than five years 

419.4 

Bank 
loans 

£m

 36.7 
70.7 

403.2 
– 
– 
– 

4.4 

Finance 
leases 

£m

 1.2 
1.1 
1.1 
1.0 
1.0 

– 

1.3 

Other 
loans 

£m

 0.8 
0.8 
0.1 

– 
– 

0.2 

113.3 538.4 

Non-derivative  
Trade financial 

creditors liabilities 
£m £m

 103.4 142.1 
0.3 72.9 

– 404.4 
– 1.0 
– 1.0 

6.3 6.5 

70.8 

Derivative  
financial 
liabilities 

£m 

3.6 
25.0 
16.8 
12.4 

– 
– 

609.2 

2009  

Total
£m 

145.7 
97.9 

421.2 
13.4 

1.0 
6.5 

Total 510.6 5.4 1.9 110.0 627.9 57.8 685.7 

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial derivatives using undiscounted cash flows is as follows: 

2010 2009 

Payable
£m

 Receivable
 £m

 Payable 
£m 

Receivable 
£m 

Due  within  one  year  (298.0) 282.0 (103.7) 101.2 
Due between one and two years (130.9) 110.6 (167.6) 142.7 
Due between two and three years (134.4) 104.4 (115.7) 98.9 
Due between three and four years (3.7) – (38.9) 26.5 
Due between four and five years – – – 1.3 
Due in more than five years  – – – – 

Total 	  (567.0) 497.0 (425.9) 370.6 

Sensitivity Analysis as at 31 December 2010 
Financial instruments affected by market risk are derivative financial instruments. The following analysis is intended to illustrate the sensitivity to 
changes in foreign exchange rates and interest rates. 

The sensitivity analysis has been prepared on the basis that the derivative portfolio and the proportion of derivatives hedging foreign 
exchange risk and cash flow interest rate risk are all constant and on the basis of hedge designations in place at 31 December  2010 and 
31 December 2009, respectively. As a consequence, this sensitivity analysis relates to the position at these dates and is not representative of the 
year then ended. 
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17. Derivative financial instruments – continued 
The following assumptions were made in calculating the sensitivity analysis: 
— the balance sheet sensitivity to interest rates relates only to derivative instruments as cash and debt balances are carried at amortised 

cost and so their carrying value does not change as interest rates move; 
— changes in the carrying value of derivative financial instruments designated as cash flow hedges or net investment hedges are 

assumed to be recorded fully in equity; 
— the sensitivity of accrued interest to movements in interest rates is calculated on net floating rate exposures on debt, cash and 

derivative instruments; 
— changes in the carrying value of derivative financial instruments not in hedging relationships only affect the income statement; 
— all other changes in the carrying value of derivative financial instruments designated as hedges are fully effective with no impact 

on the income statement; 
— all debt is floating rate for the accrued interest part of the calculation; 
— the floating rate leg of any swap or any floating rate debt is treated as not having any interest rate already set, therefore a change 

in the interest rates affects a full 12-month period for the accrued interest portion of the sensitivity calculations; 
— the sensitivity of foreign exchange rates only looks at the outstanding foreign exchange forward book and the currency bank account 

balances at plc company only as at the balance sheet date and assumed this is the position for a full 12-month period; 
— the sensitivity of a 10% movement in foreign exchange rates has been used due to the fact that historically rates can move by 

approximately 10% per annum; and 
— the sensitivity of a 1% movement in interest rates has been used as over the last three years floating $ interest rates have moved 

by on average 1% per annum. 

Using the above assumptions the following table shows the illustrative effect on the income statement and equity that would result from 
reasonably possible movements in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates, before the effects of tax. 

2010 2009 

Income Income 
Statement Equity Statement Equity

 –/+ £m –/+ £m –/+ £m –/+ £m 

£/$ FX rates – £ strengthens 10% – 21.3 – 26.9
 
£/$ FX rates – £ weakens 10% – (26.0)  – (32.9)
 
£/Euro FX rates – £ strengthens 10% – 10.6 – 4.4
 
£/Euro FX rates – £ weakens 10% – (13.0)  – (5.4)
 

Interest rates +1.00% (2.3) 6.3 (2.6) 7.7
 
Interest rates –1.00%  N/A* (6.5)  3.4 (8.1)
 

*Due to underlying interest rates being low, the sensitivity of the income statement to interest rates reducing by 1% is not relevant for 2010. 

The foreign exchange analysis in the sensitivity table above illustrates the impact of movements in foreign exchange rates on foreign currency 
transactional exposures and does not include the impact on the translation of the Group’s overseas income statement and balance sheet. The 
translation impact on profit before tax in the Group’s income statement from the movement in exchange rates is approximately £0.5 million for 
each 1 cent movement in the £/$ exchange rate. 
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Financial statements Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements – continued 
85 Independent Auditor’s 

Report to the Members of 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect 18. Provisions 
of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

Beginning
Exchange 

 rate Charged Utilised End 
86 Consolidated Income of year adjustments in year in year of year 

Statement £m £m £m £m £m 

87	 Consolidated Statement of Restructuring provisions 	 0.8 – 0.3 (0.9) 0.2
Comprehensive Income 

Discontinued operations 	 19.9 0.1 0.3 (1.5) 18.8 
88	 Consolidated Balance Sheet 

Environmental provisions 	 0.5 – 0.9 (0.2) 1.2 
89	 Consolidated Cash Flow 

Statement	 21.2  0.1 1.5 (2.6) 20.2 
90	 Consolidated Statement of 

Changes in Equity 

91	 Accounting Policies of 
the Group 

95 	 Notes to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

126  	Independent Auditor’s 
Report to the Members of 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect 
of the Parent Company 
Financial Statements 

127 	 Company Balance sheet 

128	 Accounting Policies of 
the Company 

Restructuring provisions represents costs provided in relation to commitments made at the balance sheet date for reorganisations which are 
expected to occur within one year of the balance sheet date. The charges to the restructuring provision relate principally to the closure of some 
commercial handling operations and rationalisation costs in the Engine Repair and Overhaul business. 

Discontinued operations represents a provision for environmental and other liabilities relating to businesses that have been disposed of by 
the Group in prior years. The liabilities have been assessed over a remaining period of 25 years. The provision of £18.8 million is partially off set by 
expected recoveries from third parties of £12.8 million (2009: £12.9 million), which are included within trade and other receivables due after one 
year in note 12. 

Environmental provisions relate to environmental liabilities within businesses that have been acquired by the Group. The liabilities have an 
expected life of up to five years.

 2010 2009 
Analysed  as:  £m £m 

Current  liabilities  0.9  0.8 
Non-current  liabilities  19.3 20.4 

20.2 21.2 

129 	 Notes to the Company 
Financial Statements 

134  	Principal Subsidiary 
Undertakings 

135	 Five Year Summary 

136  	Shareholder Information 
19. Pensions and other post-retirement benefi ts 
The Group operates a number of plans worldwide, of both the funded defined benefit type and the defined contribution type. The normal 
pension cost for the Group, including early retirement costs, was £7.7 million (2009: £7.9 million), of which £4.5 million (2009: £4.0 million) was in 
respect of foreign schemes. This includes £4.7 million (2009: £4.5 million) relating to defined contribution schemes. The pension costs are 
assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries, where practicable, using a variety of methods and assumptions and 
otherwise, in respect of certain foreign schemes, in accordance with local regulations. 

The Group’s main UK pension commitments are contained within a fi nal salary defi ned benefit scheme, the BBA Income and Protection 
Plan (IPP), with assets held in a separate trustee-administered fund. Contributions to the scheme are made and the pension cost is assessed using 
the projected unit method. The latest actuarial valuation of the scheme was carried out as at 31 March 2009. Following this valuation the 
Company agreed to pay additional contributions of £3.75 million per annum from 2011 to 2012 and £4.75 million in each of the years 2013 and 
2014 to repair the funding shortfall of £30.8 million calculated at that date. During 2008, the Trustees of the UK defined benefit plan purchased 
from Legal & General Group plc an annuity to match the liabilities associated with pensioner members. Since the initial “buy-in”, further tranches 
of annuities have been purchased periodically in respect of new pensioner liabilities. The annuity is an investment of the UK plan, and all pension 
liabilities and responsibility for future pension payments remain with the plan. The income from the annuity matches the payments to be made 
to the pensioner members it covers and removes mortality risk in relation to those members which are the subject of the annuity purchase. 

The IPP was closed to new members in 2002. On 1 March 2010, the future service benefits provided by this plan were changed from a fi nal 
salary to a career average revalued earnings (CARE) basis. At the same time, benefits accrued in the IPP prior to 1 March 2010 were changed so 
that these now increase in line with inflation rather than future salary increases. This resulted in a curtailment gain during 2010 of £3.1 million. 

The Group’s foreign pension schemes mainly relate to a number of funded final salary defined benefit pension arrangements in North 
America. Pension costs have been calculated by independent qualified actuaries, using the projected unit method and assumptions appropriate 
to the arrangements in place. 

The Group’s foreign pension schemes mainly relate to a funded final salary defined benefit pension arrangement in North America. Other 
plans in North America principally cover healthcare and life assurance benefits. Pension costs have been calculated by independent qualified 
actuaries, using the projected unit method. 
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19. Pensions and other post-retirement benefi ts – continued 
In accordance with IAS 19, and subject to materiality, the latest actuarial valuations of the Group’s defined benefit pension schemes and 
healthcare plan have been reviewed and updated as at 31 December 2010. The following weighted average financial assumptions have 
been adopted: 

United Kingdom North America

 2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008 

p.a. (%) 
Discount rate 5.4 5.5 6.4 5.2 5.8 6.0 
Rate of increase to pensionable salaries 3.7 3.9 3.5 4.0 4.0 4.0 
Price inflation 3.2 3.4 2.5 2.2 2.2 2.0 
Rate of increase to pensions in payment 3.1 3.2 2.5 – – – 

For the UK plan, the mortality assumptions are based on the recent actual mortality experience of members within the plan and the assumptions 
also allow for future mortality improvements. The life expectancy assumptions applying to the UK plan as at 31 December 2010 are as follows:

 2010 2009

 Male Female Male Female 

Life expectancy for a current 65 year old (years) 21.7 22.7  21.6 22.6
 
Life expectancy for a 65 year old in 15 years (years) 23.9 25.3  23.8 25.2 


For the US post-retirement medical plan, the immediate trend rate for medical benefits was 8.5% which is assumed to reduce by 0.5% per annum 
to 5.0% in 2018 onwards. 

The fair value of the assets and liabilities of the schemes at each balance sheet date were: 

United Kingdom North America Total

 2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008
 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Assets 
Equities 73.0 78.9 56.9 11.6 7.2 10.8 84.6 86.1 67.7 
Government bonds 11.8 9.8 8.2 – – 7.2 11.8 9.8 15.4 
Corporate bonds 27.6 23.1 25.2 9.1 3.1 1.6 36.7 26.2 26.8 
Property 20.9 18.8 23.0 – – – 20.9 18.8 23.0 
Insurance policies 263.6 279.2 221.6 – – –  263.6 279.2 221.6 
Cash 7.4 1.4 8.3 2.4 10.5 1.0  9.8 11.9 9.3 

Total fair value of scheme assets 404.3 411.2 343.2 23.1 20.8 20.6 427.4 432.0 363.8 

Present value of defined benefit obligations 399.1 425.4 338.1  41.9 39.8 43.9 441.0 465.2 382.0 
Asset not recognised 5.2 – 5.1 – – – 5.2 – 5.1 
Minimum funding liability 15.3 – – – – – 15.3 – – 

Liability recognised on the balance sheet (15.3) (14.2) – (18.8) (19.0) (23.3) (34.1) (33.2) (23.3) 

At 31 December 2010 the update of the actuarial valuation of the UK Income and Protection Plan indicated a net surplus of £5.2 million. 
In accordance with IAS 19, IFRIC 14 and the Group’s accounting policies, the surplus was restricted and no asset was recognised in the balance 
sheet. Furthermore, an additional liability of £15.3 million has been recognised in respect of the UK plan, reflecting the commitment to make 
deficit contribution payments under the current recovery plan. 

The funding policy for the United Kingdom and majority of the North American schemes is reviewed on a systematic basis in consultation 
with the independent scheme actuary in order to ensure that the funding contributions from sponsoring employers are appropriate to meet the 
liabilities of the schemes over the long term. 

Included within other receivables in the balance sheet are £3.5 million (2009: £4.0 million) of listed investments which are held in trust for 
the benefit of members of the North American schemes. These amounts are not included within the assets shown in the table above as they are 
not controlled by the pension schemes in question. 
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Financial statements Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements – continued 
85 	Independent Auditor’s 

Report to the Members of 19. Pensions and other post-retirement benefi ts – continued BBA Aviation plc in Respect 
of the Consolidated A 0.25% decrease/increase in the assumed discount rate on the UK plan would increase/decrease the net surplus by approximately £8.0 million. 
Financial Statements The sensitivity of the deficit to a 0.25% decrease/increase in the assumed rate of future price inflation would be broadly similar to a 0.25% 

86	 Consolidated Income increase/decrease in the assumed discount rate. 
Statement 

87 Consolidated Statement of United Kingdom North America
Comprehensive Income  2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008 

88 

89 

Consolidated Balance Sheet 

Consolidated Cash Flow 
Statement 

Long-term expected return on assets (%) 
Equities 8.5 8.8 8.1 8.5 9.0 8.1 

90 Consolidated Statement of Government bonds 4.2 4.5 3.9 – – 2.8 
Changes in Equity Corporate bonds 5.2 5.5 5.6 4.7 4.5 4.8 

91 Accounting Policies of 
the Group 

Property 
Insurance policies 

8.5 
5.4 

8.8 
5.5 

7.1 
6.4 

– 
– 

– 
– 

– 
– 

95 Notes to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

Other 4.1 5.7 7.1 2.8 3.3 1.4 

126  	Independent Auditor’s 
Report to the Members of 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect 
of the Parent Company 
Financial Statements 

127 	 Company Balance sheet 

128	 Accounting Policies of 
the Company 

The expected rates of return refl ect the Group’s best estimate of the investment returns (net of tax and expenses) that will be earned on each 
asset class over the long term. The long-term rates of return on bonds and other investments are set in line with market yields available at the 
balance sheet date. The long term-rate of return on equities is derived from considering current “risk free” rates of return with the addition of a 
future “risk premium”. The overall expected return on assets in the analysis of the income statement is based on weighted average returns using 
the above rates for each asset class, and taking into account the asset allocation in each plan. 

United Kingdom North America Total
129 	 Notes to the Company  2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Financial Statements £m £m £m £m £m £m 
134  	Principal Subsidiary 

Undertakings Analysis of income statement charge 
135 Five Year Summary Current service cost 1.7 1.9 0.2 0.2 1.9 2.1 

Interest cost 22.8 21.0 2.2 2.3 25.0 23.3136  	Shareholder Information 
Expected return on assets  (23.9) (21.1) (1.2) (0.7) (25.1) (21.8) 
(Gain)/loss due to settlements/curtailments and terminations (3.1)  – 0.3  0.3 (2.8) 0.3 

(Income)/expense recognised in income statement 	 (2.5) 1.8 1.5  2.1 (1.0) 

Current and past service costs have been recognised in the income statement within administrative expenses. Net interest income has been 
recognised within investment income. Settlement losses have been recognised within other operating expenses and curtailment gains have 
been recognised within other operating income. 

United Kingdom North America Total

 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
 £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Changes to the present value of the defi ned benefit obligation during the year 
Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year 425.4 338.1 39.8 43.9 465.2 382.0 
Current service cost 1.7 1.9 0.2 0.2 1.9 2.1 
Interest cost 22.8 21.0 2.2 2.3 25.0 23.3 
Contributions by plan participants 0.5 0.6 – – 0.5 0.6 
Actuarial (losses)/gains on scheme liabilities (24.6) 86.5 1.4 0.9 (23.2) 87.4 
Net benefits paid out (23.6) (22.7) (3.1) (3.1) (26.7) (25.8) 
Gains due to settlements and curtailments  (3.1) – 0.3 0.3 (2.8) 0.3 
Foreign currency exchange rate changes – – 1.1 (4.7) 1.1 (4.7) 

Defined benefit obligation at end of year 	 399.1 425.4 41.9 39.8 441.0 465.2 
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19. Pensions and other post-retirement benefi ts – continued 
United Kingdom North America Total

 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
 £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Changes to the fair value of scheme assets during the year 
Fair value of scheme assets at beginning of year 411.2  343.2 20.8  20.6 432.0 363.8 
Expected return on assets 23.9 21.1 1.2 0.7 25.1 21.8 
Actual employer contributions 2.8 3.2 2.9 1.7 5.7 4.9 
Contributions by plan participants 0.5 0.6  – – 0.5 0.6 
Net benefits paid out (23.6) (22.7) (3.1) (3.1) (26.7) (25.8) 
Actuarial (losses)/gains on assets  (10.5) 65.8 0.8 3.1 (9.7) 68.9 
Foreign currency exchange rate changes (if applicable) – – 0.5 (2.2) 0.5 (2.2) 

Fair value of plan assets at end of year 404.3 411.2 23.1 20.8 427.4  432.0 

United Kingdom 

 2010 2009
 £m £m

North America 

 2010 2009
 £m £m

 2010
 £m

Total

 2009
 £m 

Actual return on scheme assets  13.4 86.9 2.0 3.8 15.4 90.7 

United Kingdom 

 2010 2009
 £m £m

North America 

 2010 2009
 £m £m

 2010
 £m

Total

 2009
 £m 

Analysis of amounts recognised in SOCIE 
Total actuarial gains/(losses) recognised in year 14.1 (20.7) (0.6) 2.2 13.5 (18.5) 
Asset not recognised  (5.2) 5.1  – – (5.2) 5.1 
Movement in minimum funding liability (15.3) – – – (15.3) – 

(6.4) (15.6) (0.6) 2.2 (7.0) (13.4) 

Cumulative amount of actuarial gains/(losses) recognised in SOCIE (25.4) (39.5) (19.5) (18.9) (44.9) (58.4) 

A 1% increase in assumed medical cost trend rates would increase the aggregate charge in the income statement by £nil and increase the net 
liability by £0.1 million. A 1% decrease in assumed medical cost trend rates would reduce the aggregate charge in the income statement by £nil 
and reduce the net liability by £0.1 million. 

History of Asset Values, Defi ned Benefits Obligation, Surplus/Deficits in Schemes and Experience Gains and Losses 

United Kingdom North America 

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Fair value of assets  404.3 411.2 343.2 456.6 452.9 23.1 20.8 20.6 21.5 24.2 
Defined benefits obligation  399.1 425.4 338.1 391.0 464.2 41.9 39.8 43.9 31.8 34.0 

Surplus/(deficit) 5.2 (14.2) 5.1 65.6 (11.3) (18.8) (19.0) (23.3) (10.3) (9.8) 

Experience (losses)/gains on 
scheme assets (10.5)  65.8 (123.0) (22.2) 1.4 0.8 3.1 (7.1) (0.4) 1.1 
Experience (losses)/gains on 
scheme liablities (11.9)  18.9 (5.0) 60.4 (0.6) (1.0)  0.3 0.5 (0.5) (1.9) 
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Financial statements Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements – continued 
85 Independent Auditor’s 

Report to the Members of 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect 
of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

19. Pensions and other post-retirement benefi ts – continued 
Rest  of  World  Total  

86 Consolidated Income 
Statement 

2010
£m

 2009
 £m

 2008 
£m

2007 
£m

2006
 £m

 2010
 £m

 2009
 £m

 2008 
£m

2007 
£m 

2006 
£m 

87 Consolidated Statement of Fair value of assets  – – – – – 427.4 432.0 363.8 478.1 477.1 

88 

89 

Comprehensive Income 

Consolidated Balance Sheet 

Consolidated Cash Flow 

Defined benefits obligation

(Deficit)/surplus 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

441.0 

(13.6)

 465.2 

(33.2) 

382.0 

(18.2) 

422.8 

55.3 

498.2 

(21.1) 
Statement 

90 

91 

Consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Equity 

Accounting Policies of 
the Group 

Experience gains/(losses) on scheme assets
Experience gains/(losses) on 
scheme liablities

 – 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

0.1 

0.1 

(9.7)

 (12.9)

 68.9 

19.2 

(130.1) 

(4.5) 

(22.6) 

59.9 

2.6 

(2.4) 

95 Notes to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

126  Independent Auditor’s 
Report to the Members of 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect 
of the Parent Company 
Financial Statements 

127 Company Balance sheet 

Employer contributions for 2011 are estimated to be as follows: 

20. Deferred tax 
Fixed  Other Goodwill & 

United  
Kingdom  

£6.4m 

Tax losses & 

North  
America  

£3.7m 

Retirement 

Total  

£10.1m 

128 Accounting Policies of 
the Company 

assets 
£m

assets 
£m

intangibles 
£m

tax credits 
£m

benefits 
£m 

Total
£m 

129 Notes to the Company Beginning of year (16.7) 10.8 (38.6) 6.2 8.4 (29.9)
Financial Statements Charged in year 5.9 (5.0) (7.4) (5.2) (0.6) (12.3)

134  Principal Subsidiary Recognised directly in equity  – – – – 0.6 0.6Undertakings 
Exchange adjustments (0.4) 0.3 (0.9) 0.2 0.2 (0.6)135 Five Year Summary
 

136  Shareholder Information End of year (11.2) 6.1 (46.9) 1.2 8.6 (42.2) 


Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been off set. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after off set) for fi nancial 
reporting purposes:

 2010 2009
 £m £m 

Deferred  tax  liabilities  (46.8) (32.4) 
Deferred  tax  assets  4.6 2.5 

(42.2) (29.9) 

At the balance sheet date, the Group has unrecognised deferred tax assets relating to tax losses and other temporary differences of £220.3 million 
(2009: £251.2 million) available for offset against future profits. These assets have not been recognised as the precise incidence of future profits 
in  the relevant countries and legal entities cannot be accurately predicted at this time. Included in the unrecognised deferred tax asset is 
£0.7 million (2009: £0.6 million) which relates to losses which will expire by 2014. Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely under current 
tax legislation. 

At the balance sheet date, the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries for which 
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised was £nil (2009: £nil).
 Temporary differences arising in connection with interests in associates and joint ventures are insignificant. 
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21. Share capital and reserves 
Allotted,  called  

up  and  fully  paid  Authorised

 2010 2009 2010 2009
 millions millions millions millions 

Share capital 
Number of shares 
Ordinary 2916/21p  shares  432.4 423.3 756.0 756.0 
5% Cumulative preference £1 shares 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 

£m £m £m £m 

Nominal value of shares 
Equity shares 
Ordinary 2916/21p  shares  128.7 126.0 225.0 225.0 
Non-equity shares 
5% Cumulative preference £1 shares 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 

128.9 126.2 225.2 225.2 
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Financial statements Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements – continued 
85 	Independent Auditor’s 

Report to the Members of 21. Share capital and reserves BBA Aviation plc in Respect 
of the Consolidated Issue of share capital 
Financial Statements During the year, the Group issued 136,927 ordinary 2916/21p shares to satisfy options exercised under the BBA Aviation plc share option schemes. 

86	 Consolidated Income The consideration for shares issued in respect of share options was £136,270. 
Statement 

During the year, the Group issued 9,000,472 ordinary shares to satisfy subscriptions under the Scrip Dividend scheme.
87	 Consolidated Statement of 

Comprehensive Income  2010 2009 
£m £m88	 Consolidated Balance Sheet 

89	 Consolidated Cash Flow Reserves attributable to equity interests 
Statement Share premium account 

90	 Consolidated Statement of Beginning  of  year 	  343.4 346.4Changes in Equity 
Issue of share capital and scrip dividend	  (2.7) (3.0)

91	 Accounting Policies of 
the Group End  of  year 	  340.7 343.4 

95 	 Notes to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

126  	Independent Auditor’s 
Report to the Members of 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect 
of the Parent Company 
Financial Statements 

127 	 Company Balance sheet 

Other reserves 
Beginning and end of year 	 3.9 

Treasury reserve 
Beginning  of  year  (3.2) (3.4) 
Purchase  of  own  shares  (2.8) (0.2) 
Transfer  to  retained  earnings  0.2 0.4 

128	 Accounting Policies of End  of  year 	  (5.8) (3.2)the Company 

129 	 Notes to the Company Capital reserve 
Financial Statements Beginning  of  year 	  19.8 18.8 

134  	Principal Subsidiary Credit to equity for equity-settled share-based payments	 2.4 2.5 
Undertakings 

Transfer to retained earnings on exercise of equity-settled share-based payments	  (1.3) (1.5)
135	 Five Year Summary 

End  of  year 	  20.9 19.8136  	Shareholder Information 

Hedging reserve 
Beginning  of  year  (7.9) (28.2) 
Increase/(decrease) in fair value of cash flow hedging derivatives (15.6) 7.0 
Transfer to income statement 10.3 13.3 

End  of  year  (13.2) (7.9) 

Translation reserve 
Beginning  of  year  18.3 39.1 
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 0.5 (20.8) 

End  of  year  18.8 18.3 

Total other 24.6 30.9 

Retained earnings 
Beginning  of  year  (51.6) (62.1) 
Transfer from capital reserve on exercise of equity-settled share-based payments 1.3 1.5 
Transfer  from  treasury  reserve  (0.2) (0.4) 
Change in non-controlling interest  (0.5) – 
Tax on items taken directly to reserves 1.3 (3.2) 
Actuarial  losses  (7.0) (13.4) 
Dividends  paid  (17.4) (21.9) 
Profit for the year 65.1 47.9 

(9.0) (51.6) 

At 31 December 2010, 13,882 ordinary 2916/21p shares (2009: 13,882 shares) with a nominal value of £4,132 (2009: £4,132) and a market value of 
£30,763 (2009: £22,766) were held in the BBA Employee Benefit Trust, a trust set up in 2006. EES Trustees International Limited, the trustees of the 
BBA Employment Benefit Trust, has agreed to waive its dividend entitlement in certain circumstances. At 31 December 2010, 3,607,716 ordinary 
2916/21p shares (2009: 2,202,365) with a nominal value of £1,073,725 (2009: £655,466) and a market value of £7,994,699 (2009: 3,611,879) were also 
held in the 1995 BBA Group Employee Share Trust. This included shares received under the Scrip Dividend Scheme: 56,650 shares received on 
21 May 2010 and 40,142 shares received on 29 October 2010. 
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21. Share capital and reserves – continued 
Rights of non-equity interests 
5% Cumulative preference £1 shares: 
i. 	 entitle holders, in priority to holders of all other classes of shares, to a fixed cumulative preferential dividend at a rate of 5.0% per annum per 

share payable half yearly in equal amounts on 1 February and 1 August. 
ii. 	 on a return of capital on a winding up, or otherwise, will carry the right to repayment of capital together with a premium of 12.5p per share 

and a sum equal to any arrears or deficiency of dividend; this right is in priority to the rights of the ordinary shareholders; 
iii. 	 carry the right to attend and vote at a general meeting of the Company only if, at the date of the notice convening the meeting, payment of 

the dividend to which they are entitled is six months or more in arrears, or if a resolution is to be considered at the meeting for winding-up the 
Company or reducing its share capital or sanctioning the sale of the undertakings of the Company or varying or abrogating any of the special 
rights attaching to them. 

Rights of equity interests 
2916/21p Ordinary shares: 
i. 	 carry no right to fixed income; 
ii. 	 on a return of capital on a winding-up, or otherwise, will carry the right to repayment of capital; this right is subordinate to the rights of the 

preference shareholders; 
iii. 	 carry the right to attend and vote at a meeting of the Company. 

22. Share-based payments 
Equity-settled share-based payments 
(i) Share options 
The Group plan provides for a grant price equal to the average of the middle market price of a BBA Aviation share up to five dealing days prior to 
the date of grant. The vesting period is generally three to four years. If the options remain unexercised after a period of 10 years from the date of 
grant, the options expire. Furthermore, options are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group before the options vest. 

Details of the share options outstanding during the year are as follows:
 2010 2009

 Number 
 of share 
 options 

 Weighted 
average
exercise

price

 Number 
 of share 
 options 

Weighted
average
exercise

price 

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 
Granted during the year 
Exercised during the year 
Lapsed  during  the  year

 12,744,907  
201,916 

(880,129) 
(1,377,959) 

149p 
163p 
145p 
244p 

8,003,784 
7,248,294 

(96,297) 
(2,410,874) 

253p 
57p 

224p 
205p 

Outstanding at the end of the year 10,688,735 137p  12,744,907 149p 

Exercisable at the end of the year 4,089,015 260p  5,728,409 257p 

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the period was 145p. The options outstanding at 
31 December 2010 had weighted average remaining contractual life of 33 months and an exercise price range of £1.53 to £2.99. Options over 
201,916 shares were granted under the BBA 2006 UK Share Option Plan in the year. 

The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted and calculated 
using the valuation technique most appropriate to each type of award. These include Black-Scholes calculations and Monte Carlo simulations. 
The inputs into the models were as follows:

 Issued in Issued in
 March 2010 March 2009 

Weighted average share price (pence) 170 68 
Weighted average exercise price (pence) 163 57 
Expected  volatility  47.6% 36.6% 
Expected  life  (months)  36 36 
Risk-free  rate  1.9% 2.2% 
Expected  dividends  4.8% 4.6% 

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the Group’s share price over the the period of time equivalent to the 
remaining contractual life of the option. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the 
effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions, and behavioural considerations. 
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Financial statements Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements – continued 
85 Independent Auditor’s 

Report to the Members of 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect 
of the Consolidated 

22. Share-based payments – continued 
(ii) Share awards 

Financial Statements Details of the conditional share awards outstanding during the year are as follows:
86 Consolidated Income  2010 2009

Statement  Number Number
 of shares of shares 

87 Consolidated Statement of 
Comprehensive Income Outstanding at the beginning of the year 19,534,541  8,531,812 

88 Consolidated Balance Sheet Granted  during  the  year  2,511,169 13,941,031 
89 

90 

Consolidated Cash Flow 
Statement 

Consolidated Statement of 

Exercised  during  the  year
Lapsed  during  the  year

 (132,994) 
(3,907,397) 

(587,128) 
(2,351,174) 

Changes in Equity Outstanding at the end of the year 18,005,319 19,534,541 
91	 Accounting Policies of 

the Group 

95 	 Notes to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

126  	Independent Auditor’s 
Report to the Members of 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect 
of the Parent Company 
Financial Statements 

127 	 Company Balance sheet 

128	 Accounting Policies of 
the Company 

129 	 Notes to the Company 
Financial Statements 

134  	Principal Subsidiary 
Undertakings 

135	 Five Year Summary 

136  	Shareholder Information 

The awards outstanding at 31 December 2010 had a weighted average remaining contractual life of 14 months. The weighted average fair value 
of conditional shares granted in the year was 123p. 

The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value of the shares granted and calculated 
using the valuation technique most appropriate to each type of award. These include Black-Scholes calculations and Monte Carlo simulations. 
The inputs into the model were as follows:

 Issued in Issued in
 March 2010 March 2009 

Weighted average share price at issue (pence) 173 73 
Expected  volatility  47.6% 43.0% 
Expected  life  (months)  36 36 
Risk-free  rate  1.9% 1.8% 
Expected  dividend  yield  4.8% 6.0% 

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the Group’s share price over the the period of time equivalent to the 
remaining contractual life of the option. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the 
effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions, and behavioural considerations. 

(iii) Expense charged to income statement 
The Group recognised total expenses of £2.0 million (2009: £2.7 million) related to equity-settled share-based payment transactions during 
the year. 

(iv) Cash-settled share-based payments 
The Group issues to certain employees share appreciation rights (SARs) that require the Group to pay the intrinsic value of the SAR to the 
employee at the date of exercise. The fair value of the SARs is determined by using the valuation technique most appropriate to each type of 
award. These include the Black-Scholes calculations and Monte Carlo simulations and use the assumptions noted in the above table. The Group 
has recorded liabilities of £0.3 million (2009: £0.2 million) and a total charge of £0.5 million (2009: £0.2 million). The total intrinsic value of vested 
SARs at 31 December 2010 was £0.2 million (2009: £0.1m). 

(v) Other share-based payment plan 
The Company’s savings-related share option scheme is open to all eligible UK employees. Options are granted at a price equal to the average 
three-day middle market price of a BBA Aviation ordinary share prior to the date of grant, less 20%. Options are granted under three or five-year 
SAYE contracts. The maximum overall employee contribution is £250 per month. Pursuant to this plan, the Group issued 78,043 ordinary shares in 
2010 (2009: 3,297 ordinary shares). 
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23. Cash flow from operating activities

 2010

 £m
 2009

 £m 

Operating  profit  
Share  of  profit  from  associates

100.4 
(1.1)

82.3 
(1.1) 

Profit  from  operations  99.3 81.2 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 33.6 35.2 
Amortisation of intangible assets 8.6 7.4 
(Profit)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (3.0) 0.2 
Share-based payment expense 2.0 2.5 
Decrease  in  provisions  (1.1) (0.7) 
Pension  scheme  payments  (3.5) (2.7) 
Other  non-cash  items  (0.4) 1.9 
Unrealised  foreign  exchange  movements  2.8 1.7 
Non-cash  impairments  – 5.4 
Loss  on  disposal  of  businesses  – 0.4 

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 138.3 132.5 
Decrease  in  working  capital  15.9 57.9 

Cash  generated  by  operations  154.2 190.4 
Income  taxes  paid  (2.6) (11.6) 

Net cash flow from operating activities 151.6 178.8 

Dividends  received  from  associates  1.1 1.2
 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (20.4) (14.2)
 
Purchase of intangible assets†  (7.4) (4.5)
 
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 5.0 0.7
 
Interest  received  3.5 17.5
 
Interest  paid  (17.8) (41.3)
 
Interest  element  of  finance  leases  paid  (0.4) (0.7)
 

Free cash flow 115.2 137.5 

† Purchase of intangible assets excludes £nil (2009: £9.1 million) paid in relation to Ontic licences since the directors believe these payments are more akin to expenditure in relation to acquisitions, 
and are therefore outside of the Group’s definition of free cash flow. These amounts are included within purchase of intangible assets on the face of the cash flow statement. 
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Financial statements Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements – continued 
85 	Independent Auditor’s 

Report to the Members of 24. Acquisition and disposal of businesses BBA Aviation plc in Respect 
of the Consolidated On 10 June 2010, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of SAS Ground Services UK Limited. The acquisition was undertaken as it is 
Financial Statements expected to be earnings enhancing and aligns with ASIG’s strategic plans. The total initial cash consideration for the business amounted to 

86	 Consolidated Income £2.5m, with a maximum deferred cash consideration of £0.2m. The directors performed an exercise to establish the fair value of the assets and 
Statement 

liabilities of the acquisition. The net assets acquired and the gain arising on the acquisition are as set below: 
87	 Consolidated Statement of 2010  2010  

Comprehensive Income Book  Fair  
value  value  

£m  £m  
88	 Consolidated Balance Sheet 

89 Consolidated Cash Flow 
Statement Intangible  assets  –  1.0 

90 Consolidated Statement of Property, plant and equipment 1.8 1.4 
Changes in Equity Receivables 	  3.2 3.5 

91	 Accounting Policies of Payables 	  (1.9) (2.1)
the Group 

Taxation 	  (0.3) (0.3)
95 	 Notes to the Consolidated 

Financial Statements Net  assets 	  2.8 3.5 
126  	Independent Auditor’s Goodwill  (0.8)

Report to the Members of 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect Total  consideration  2.7 
of the Parent Company 
Financial Statements 

127 	 Company Balance sheet Satisfied by: 
Cash 	  2.5128	 Accounting Policies of 

the Company Deferred  consideration 	  0.2 
129 	 Notes to the Company Net  cash  consideration  for  2010 	  2.7Financial Statements 

134  	Principal Subsidiary 
Undertakings Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: 

135	 Five Year Summary Cash  consideration  2.5 
136  Shareholder Information Directly  attributable  costs  0.5 

In the period from acquisition to 31 December 2010, the revenue from the acquisition was £10.6 million and would have been approximately 
£18.9 million if the acquisition had completed on 1 January 2010. Contribution to profit for the period was £1.4 million. 

The net assets exceeded the total consideration by £0.8 million which primarily represents a discount for the risk associated in generating 
future profitability from existing customer contracts. 

On 10 September 2010, the Group purchased the remaining 9% of the shares of Athens Aviation Services for a consideration of 
€0.8 million (£0.6 million). 

Two businesses were disposed of in the prior period. On 17 March 2009, a small propeller repair and overhaul facility based in Portsmouth, 
England, was disposed of for a consideration of £0.4 million and incurred a loss on disposal of £1.5 million. On 21 August 2009, an FBO based in 
Indianapolis, Indiana, was also disposed of for a consideration of £3.3 million and which made a profit on disposal of £1.1 million. 

25. Contingent liabilities 
The Group is party to legal proceedings and claims which arise in the normal course of business, including specific product liability and 
environmental claims. Any liabilities are likely to be mitigated by legal defences, insurance, reserves and third party indemnities. 

Additionally, the Group has previously owned businesses that manufactured products containing asbestos. No BBA company has 
manufactured or sold any products or materials containing asbestos for many years. A small number of former BBA companies have been named 
as defendants to asbestos-related claims. When these companies were sold, BBA retained certain obligations to indemnify the purchasers 
against such claims. Notwithstanding such indemnity arrangements, the costs incurred by BBA in dealing with claims made against these former 
BBA companies have been immaterial to BBA. During the period 1989 to 31 December 2010, BBA’s aggregate costs of defending and disposing of 
all asbestos-related claims, net of insurance coverage, were approximately £7.6 million. BBA maintains a portfolio of insurance coverage in respect 
of the majority of such claims, including legal defence costs and liability cover. State operated compensation programmes have also provided 
coverage. On the basis of its past claims experience, BBA does not anticipate any material increase in the cost to it of resolving such claims. 

Whilst the outcome of these claims are, by their nature, uncertain, the directors do not currently anticipate that the outcome of the 
proceedings and claims set out above either individually, or in aggregate, will materially exceed the insurance coverage or amounts provided as 
shown in note 18, and are not expected to have a material adverse effect upon the Group’s fi nancial position. 

124 — Consolidated Financial Statements 

3.0 



 

 
 

 

        
        

            
             

           

          

  
  

  
  

      
   

  
  

    

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
  

 
 

 

26. Related party transactions 
Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed 
in this note. Details of transactions between the Group and other related parties are detailed below. 

Compensation of key management personnel 
Key management are the directors and members of the executive committee. 

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the year was as follows:

 2010 2009
 £m £m 

Short-term  benefits  4.9 6.0 
Post-employment  benefits  1.0 0.7 
Share-based  payments  0.7 0.7 

6.6 7.4 

Post-employment benefits include contributions of £0.6 million (2009: £0.3 million) in relation to defined contribution schemes. 
The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined by the remuneration committee having regard to the performance of 

individuals and market trends. The directors’ remuneration is disclosed in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 75 to 83. 
The amount disclosed in the table above does not include the portion of the annual bonus subject to compulsory deferral, which will 

be expensed over the vesting period in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment. For details see the Directors’ Remuneration Report on 
pages 75 to 83. 

Other related party transactions 
During the year, Group companies entered into the following transactions with related parties who are not members of the Group: 

Amounts owed by Amounts owed to 
Sales of goods Purchases of goods related parties related parties

 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Associates  8.5 2.3 169.3 80.8 – 0.3 5.4 6.6 

Purchases were made at market price discounted to reflect the quantity of goods purchased and the relationships between the parties. 

The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees have been given or received. 

At the balance sheet date, Group companies had loan receivables from an associated undertaking of £1.7 million (2009: £1.4 million). The loans are 
unsecured and will be settled in cash, and were made on terms which reflect the relationships between the parties. 

27. Events after the Reporting Period 
As separately announced today, the following acquisitions have taken place. 

The Legacy Support Group, part of BBA Aviation’s Aftermarket Services and Systems division has reached agreement to acquire the business and 
certain assets of GE Aviation Systems Limited’s fuel gauging and fuel measurement systems business (the “Business”) for $62.5 million, subject to 
a completion adjustment up to a maximum of an additional $1.15 million. The Business generated $43.2 million in revenues and $9.7 million of 
EBITDA in the year to 31 December 2010. 

Signature has acquired substantially all of the assets of Yellowstone Jetcenter, an FBO operating at Gallatin Field Airport in Bozeman, 
Montana for a consideration of $10.5 million. The Yellowstone Jetcenter generated approximately $4.9 million in revenues in the year to 
31 December 2010. 

Due to the timing of the acquisitions, the results of the preliminary fair value exercise will be presented in the 2011 interim statement. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of 
BBA Aviation plc 
We have audited the parent company financial statements of BBA 
Aviation plc for the year ended 31 December 2010 which comprise the 
Parent Company Balance Sheet and the related notes 1 to 12. The 
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their 
preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting 
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, 
in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. 
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the 
Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them 
in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent 
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility 
to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as 
a  body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we 
have formed. 

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor 
As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, 
the directors are responsible for the preparation of the parent 
company fi nancial statements and for being satisfied that they give a 
true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion 
on the parent company financial statements in accordance with 
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and 
Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing 
Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors. 

Scope of the audit of the financial statements 
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable 
assurance that the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an  
assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the 
parent company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied 
and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by the directors; and the overall 
presentation of the fi nancial statements. 

Opinion on financial statements 
In our opinion the parent company fi nancial statements: 
— give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s aff airs; 
— have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom 

Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and 
— have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the 

Companies Act 2006. 

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 
In our opinion: 
— the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has 

been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 
2006; and 

— the information given in the Directors’ Report for the fi nancial year 
for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with 
the parent company fi nancial statements. 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where 
the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: 
— adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent 

company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received 
from branches not visited by us; or 

— the parent company financial statements and the part of the 
Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in 
agreement with the accounting records and returns; or 

— certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are 
not made; or 

— we have not received all the information and explanations we 
require for our audit. 

Other matter 
We have reported separately on the Group financial statements of 
BBA Aviation plc for the year ended 31 December 2010. 

Nigel Mercer, ACA (Senior Statutory Auditor) 
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP 
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor 
London, United Kingdom 
1 March 2011 

126 — Company Financial Statements 



 

        
        

  
   

               
            

             
            

            

            

   
            

                 

            

  
  

           
        

        

            

   
  

        
        

       

            

   
                

            
              

             
           

            

  

 

  
  

Company Balance Sheet

 2010 2009 

Notes £m £m 

Fixed assets 
Tangible assets 
Land  and  buildings  3  0.1 0.2 
Plant and machinery 3 0.1 0.1 
Investments  4  2,314.7  2,314.7 
Debtors due after one year 5 1.3 4.0 
Deferred  tax  asset  – 2.6 

2,316.2 2,321.6 

Current assets 
Debtors due within one year 
Cash  at  bank  and  in  hand  

5 712.9 
12.6 

634.0 
11.8 

725.5 645.8 

Current liabilities 
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 
Borrowings  and  finance  leases  
Others  

6
6

 (87.6)
 (1,727.2)

 (20.5) 
(1,515.2) 

Net current liabilities  (1,089.3) (889.9) 

Total assets less current liabilities 1,226.9 1,431.7 

Long-term liabilities 
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 
Borrowings and finance leases 
Others  
Provisions for liabilities and charges 

7,8
8

 (318.7)
 (54.2)
 (2.1)

 (467.3) 
(54.2) 
(2.3) 

Total net assets 851.9 907.9 

Capital and reserves 
Called  up  share  capital  
Share premium account 
Revaluation  reserve  

10  
10 
10  

128.7 
340.6 

3.5 

126.0 
343.3 

3.5 
Other  10  235.7  243.2 
Profit and loss account 10 143.4 191.9 

Equity shareholders’ funds 851.9 907.9 

The financial statements of BBA Aviation plc (registered number 53688) were approved by the Board of Directors on 1 March 2011 and signed on 
its behalf by 

Simon Pryce  Mark Hoad 
Group Chief Executive  Group Finance Director
 

In accordance with the exemptions permitted by s408 of the Companies Act 2006, the profit and loss account of the Company has not
 
been presented. The loss for the financial year in the accounts of the Company, after dividends from subsidiary undertakings, amounted to
 
£48.9 million (2009: loss £22.5 million).
 

The auditor’s remuneration for audit and other services is disclosed in note 2 to the consolidated fi nancial statements.
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this balance sheet.
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Accounting Policies 

Basis of Accounting 
The separate financial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006.
 The financial statements have been prepared using the historical cost convention adjusted for the revaluation of certain fixed assets and in 
accordance with applicable United Kingdom accounting standards and law.
 The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with the rationale set out in the directors’ statement 
of going concern on page 84 of the Directors’ Report. 

The principal accounting policies are set out below. They have all been applied consistently throughout the year and preceding year. 
The Company has taken advantage of the exemption contained in FRS 1 “Cash Flow Statements” and has not produced a cash flow statement. 

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption contained in FRS 8 “Related Party Transactions” and has not reported transactions 
with fellow Group undertakings. 

Investments 
In the Company’s financial statements, investments in subsidiary and associated undertakings are stated at cost less provision for impairment. 

Treasury 
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Sterling at the rate of exchange at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at that date. Any gain or loss arising 
from a change in exchange rates subsequent to the date of transaction is recognised in the profit and loss account.
 Derivative financial instruments utilised by the Group comprise interest rates swaps, cross-currency swaps and foreign exchange contracts. 
All such instruments are used for hedging purposes to manage the risk profile of an underlying exposure of the Group in line with the Group’s risk 
management policies. All derivative instruments are recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. Recognition of gains or losses on derivative 
instruments depends on whether the instrument is designated as a hedge and the type of exposure it is designed to hedge.
 The effective portion of gains or losses on cash flow hedges are deferred in equity until the impact from the hedged item is recognised in 
the profit and loss account. The ineffective portion of such gains and losses is recognised in the profit and loss account immediately. 

Gains or losses on the qualifying part of net investment hedges are recognised in equity together with the gains and losses on the 
underlying net investment. The ineffective portion of such gains and losses is recognised in the profit and loss account immediately. 

Changes in the fair value of the derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the profit and 
loss account as they arise. 

Pensions and other Post-Retirement Benefits 
The Company provides pension arrangements to a small number of full time employees through the Company’s defined benefit scheme. It is 
not possible to identify the share of underlying assets and liabilities in this scheme which is attributable to the Company on a consistent 
and reasonable basis. Therefore the Company has applied the provisions in FRS17 “Retirement Benefits” to account for the scheme as if it was a 
defi ned contribution scheme. 

The costs of pension plans and other post-retirement benefits are charged to the profit and loss account so as to spread the costs 
over  employees’ working lives within the Company. The contribution levels are determined by valuations undertaken by independent 
qualifi ed actuaries. 

Share-Based Payments 
The Company operates a number of cash and equity-settled share-based compensation plans. The fair value of the compensation is recognised 
in the profit and loss account as an expense. The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value 
of the options granted and calculated using the valuation technique most appropriate to each type of award. These include Black-Scholes 
calculations and Monte Carlo simulations. For cash-settled options, the fair value of the option is revisited at each balance sheet date. For both 
cash and equity-settled options, the Company revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to become exercisable at each 
balance sheet date. 

Tangible Fixed Assets 
Plant and machinery are stated in the balance sheet at cost. Land and buildings are stated at cost. Other tangible fixed assets are stated in the 
balance sheet at cost. Depreciation is provided on the cost of tangible fixed assets less estimated residual value and is calculated on a straight-line 
basis over the following estimated useful lives of the assets: 

Land not depreciated 
Buildings 40 years maximum 
Plant and machinery (including essential commissioning costs) 3 – 18 years 

Tooling, vehicles, computer and office equipment are categorised within plant and machinery in note 3 of the accounts. 
The revaluation reserve consists of the surpluses on the revaluation of land and buildings to their market value for existing use and on the 

revaluation of plant and machinery to net current replacement cost. The Directors are not aware of any material change to the value of these 
assets since the last revaluation. 
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Leases 
Where assets are fi nanced by lease agreements that give rights similar to ownership (fi nance leases), the assets are treated as if they had been 
purchased and the leasing commitments are shown as obligations to the lessors. The capitalisation values of the assets are written off on a 
straight-line basis over the shorter of the periods of the leases or the useful lives of the assets concerned. The capital elements of future lease 
obligations are recorded as liabilities, while the interest elements are charged to the profit and loss account over the period of the leases to 
produce a constant rate of charge on the balance of capital payments outstanding. 

For all other leases (operating leases) the rental payments are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the lives of 
the leases. 

Taxation 
The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the year and takes into account taxation deferred due to temporary differences between the 
treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes. 

Deferred tax is provided in full on all liabilities. In accordance with FRS 19 ‘Deferred Tax’, deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is 
regarded that it is more likely than not that they will be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities have not been discounted. 

Deferred tax is not provided on timing differences arising from the sale or revaluation of fixed assets unless, at the balance sheet date, 
a binding commitment to sell the asset has been entered into and it is unlikely that any gain will qualify for roll-over relief. 

Notes to the Company Financial Statements 

1. Dividends 
On 21 May 2010, the 2009 final dividend of 5.30 pence per share (total dividend £22.4 million) was paid to shareholders. During 2010 and 2009 the 
Company operated a Scrip Dividend Scheme which provided shareholders with the opportunity to receive their dividends in the form of new 
ordinary shares in the Company instead of cash. £10.8 million of the 2009 final dividend was taken up in the form of shares under the Scrip 
Dividend Scheme. In May 2009, the 2008 final dividend paid was 5.30 pence per share (total dividend £21.9 million). 

On 29 October 2010, the 2010 interim dividend of 2.4 pence per share (total dividend £10.3 million) was paid to shareholders. £4.5 million of 
the 2010 interim dividend was taken up in the form of shares under the Scrip Dividend Scheme.  In November 2009, the 2009 interim dividend 
paid was 2.30 pence per share (total dividend £9.7 million). 

In respect of the current year, the directors propose that a final dividend of 5.7p per share will be paid to shareholders on 8 June 2011. This 
dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and in accordance with FRS 21 “Events after the Reporting Period” 
has not been included as a liability in these financial statements. The proposed dividend is payable to all shareholders on the register of members 
on 15 April 2011. The total estimated dividend to be paid is £22.4 million. 

Dividend payments to minority shareholders during the year totalled £0.1 million (2009: £0.1 million). 

2. Directors 
Emoluments and interests 
Details of directors’ emoluments and interests are provided within the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 75 to 83.

 2010 2009 
Employees  Number Number 

Average monthly number (including Executive Directors)  30 29

 £m £m 

Employment costs 
Wages  and  salaries  6.0 5.9 
Social  security  costs  0.6 0.5 
Pension  costs  0.9 0.4 

7.5 6.8 
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Financial statements Notes to the Company Financial Statements – continued 
85 Independent Auditor’s 

Report to the Members of 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect 
of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

3. Tangible fi xed assets 
Land and 

 buildings 
 2010

Plant and 
machinery 

 2010
Total

 2010

Land and 
 buildings 
 2009

Plant and
machinery 

 2009 
Total
2009

86 Consolidated Income £m £m £m £m £m £m 
Statement 

87 Consolidated Statement of 
Comprehensive Income 

Cost or valuation 
Beginning of year  0.6 1.0 1.6 0.6 0.9 1.5 

88 Consolidated Balance Sheet Additions – – – – 0.1 0.1 

89 Consolidated Cash Flow Asset write–downs  – – – – – – 
Statement End of year 0.6 1.0 1.6 0.6 1.0 1.6 

90 Consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Equity Accumulated depreciation 

91 Accounting Policies of Beginning of year  0.4 0.9 1.3 0.3 0.8 1.1 
the Group Provided during the year  0.1 – 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 

95 Notes to the Consolidated Asset write-downs  – – – – – – 
Financial Statements 

126  Independent Auditor’s 
End of year 0.5 0.9 1.4 0.4 0.9 1.3 

Report to the Members of 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect 
of the Parent Company 

Net book value end of year 
Owned assets – 0.1 0.1 – 0.1 0.1 

Financial Statements Leased assets  0.1 – 0.1 0.2 – 0.2 
127 Company Balance sheet 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.3 
128 Accounting Policies of 

the Company 

129 Notes to the Company 
Financial Statements 

 2010
 £m

 2009
 £m 

134  Principal Subsidiary Land and buildings 
Undertakings Short  leasehold  0.1 0.2 

135 Five Year Summary 0.1 0.2 
136  Shareholder Information 

4. Fixed asset investments
 2010 2009
 £m £m 

Subsidiary undertakings 
Cost of shares 
Beginning  of  year  2,239.7 2,239.7 
Additions  – – 

End  of  year  2,239.7 2,239.7 
Provisions for impairments 
Beginning  of  year  (28.4) (54.3) 
Reversal  of  impairment  loss  – 25.9 

End  of  year  (28.4) (28.4) 

Net book value end of year 2,211.3 2,211.3 

Loans to subsidiary undertakings 

Beginning and end of year 103.4 103.4 

Total 
Fixed asset investments 2,314.7 2,314.7 

The principal subsidiary undertakings of BBA Aviation plc are listed on page 134. 

5. Debtors
 2010 2009
 £m £m 

Trade debtors 
Amounts  owed  by  subsidiary  undertakings  695.9  620.2 
Other debtors, prepayments and accrued income 17.0 13.8 

Debtors due within one year 712.9 634.0 

Other debtors due after one year 1.3 4.0 
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6. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

 2010 2009
 £m £m 

Borrowings (note  7) 
  
Bank loans and overdrafts 87.6 20.5 


87.6 20.5 

Others 
Amounts  owed  to  subsidiary  undertakings  1,697.2 1,501.1 
Other taxation and social security  0.1 0.1 
Other  creditors  19.9 7.5 
Accruals  and  deferred  income  10.0 6.5 

1,727.2 1,515.2 

Creditor days for the Company for the year were an average of 49 days (2009: 37 days). 

7. Borrowings
 2010 2009
 £m £m 

Borrowings summary 
Medium-term loans 
Repayable between two and five years 318.7 467.3 

318.7 467.3 

Short-term 
Overdrafts, borrowings and finance leases repayable within one year (note 6) 87.6 20.5 

Total borrowings and finance leases 406.3 487.8
 
Cash  at  bank  and  in  hand  (12.6) (11.8)
 

Net borrowings and finance leases 393.7 476.0 

Borrowings analysis: 
Unsecured 
Bank loans and overdrafts 
Sterling  18.3 24.2 
US  dollar  386.0  463.0 
Euro  2.0 0.3 
Canadian  dollar  – 0.3 

Total borrowings and finance leases 406.3 487.8
 
Cash  at  bank  and  in  hand  (12.6) (11.8)
 

Net borrowings and finance leases 393.7 476.0 

The interest rates on unsecured loans range from 1.0% to 1.9% per annum and repayments are due at varying dates up to 2012. 

Operating Lease Commitments 
Land and buildings 
Within  one  year  0.5 0.5 
One  to  five  years  0.3 0.7 

0.8 1.2 

Contingent liabilities 
Guarantees of subsidiary undertakings’ overdrafts or loans and other guarantees 14.7 17.3 

Additional detail of contingent liabilities are provided within note 25 to the consolidated financial statements. 

Foreign currency contracts 
At 31 December 2010, the Group had 258.7 million (2009: £124.6 million) of forward contracts to buy/sell foreign currency. 
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Financial statements Notes to the Company Financial Statements – continued 
85 Independent Auditor’s 

Report to the Members of 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect 
of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

8. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 
2010
 £m 

 2009
£m 

86 Consolidated Income Borrowings (note 7) 
Statement Bank  loans  318.7  467.3 

87 Consolidated Statement of 
Comprehensive Income 

Others 
88 Consolidated Balance Sheet 

Other  creditors  54.2 54.2 
89 Consolidated Cash Flow 

Statement 372.9 521.5 
90 Consolidated Statement of 

91 

Changes in Equity 

Accounting Policies of 
the Group 

9. Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds 
2010
 £m 

 2009
£m 

95 Notes to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements Loss  for  the  period  (31.5) (22.5) 

126  Independent Auditor’s Equity  dividends  (17.4) (21.8)
Report to the Members of 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect (48.9) (44.3) 
of the Parent Company 
Financial Statements 

127 Company Balance sheet 

128 Accounting Policies of 
the Company 

Fair value movements in interest rate cash flow hedges
Credit to equity for equity-settled share-based payments 
Movement  on  treasury  reserve
Tax on items recognised directly in equity

 (12.7)
2.4 

(2.8)
 (0.7)

 – 
2.5 

(0.2) 
– 

129 Notes to the Company 
Financial Statements 

Transfer to profit or loss from equity on interest rate hedges 
Issue  of  shares

6.7 
– 

7.7 
0.2 

134  Principal Subsidiary Net movement in shareholders’ funds for the period  (56.0) (34.1)
Undertakings 

Shareholders’ funds at beginning of period 907.9 942.0 
135 Five Year Summary 

Shareholders’ funds at end of period 851.9 907.9136  Shareholder Information 
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10. Capital and reserves 
Details of Company Share Capital are provided within note 21 to the consolidated fi nancial statements. 

2010 2009
 £m £m 

Reserves attributable to equity interests 
Share premium account 
Beginning  of  year  343.3 346.4 
Premium  on  shares  issued  (2.7) (3.1) 

End  of  year  340.6 343.3 

Revaluation reserve 

Beginning and end of year 3.5 3.5 

Other 
Merger reserve 
Beginning and end of year 99.3 99.3 

Capital reserve 
Beginning and end of year 152.6 151.6 
Credit to equity for equity-settled share-based payments 2.4 2.5 
Transfer to retained earnings on exercise of equity-settled share-based payments  (1.3) (1.5) 

End  of  year  153.7 152.6 

Treasury reserve 
Beginning  of  year  (3.2) (3.4) 
Purchase  of  own  shares  (2.8) (0.2) 
Transferred to Profit and Loss account 0.2 0.4 

End  of  year  (5.8) (3.2) 

Hedging reserve 
Beginning  of  year  (5.5) (13.2) 
Decrease in fair value of interest rate cash flow hedging derivatives  (12.7) – 
Transfer  to  income  6.7 7.7 

End  of  year  (11.5) (5.5) 

Total other 235.7 243.2 

Profit and loss account 
Beginning  of  year  191.9  235.1 
Transfer from capital reserve on exercise of equity-settled share-based payments 1.3 1.5 
Transfer  from  treasury  reserve  (0.2) (0.4) 
Tax on items recognised directly in equity  (0.7) – 
Loss  for  the  period  (31.5) (22.5) 
Equity  dividends  (17.4) (21.8) 

End  of  year  143.4 191.9 

At 31 December 2010, 13,882 ordinary 2916/21p shares (2009: 13,882 shares) with a nominal value of £4,132 (2009: £4,132) and a market value of 
£30,763 (2009: £22,766) were held in the BBA Employee Benefit Trust, a trust set up in 2006. EES Trustees International Limited, the trustees of the 
BBA Employment Benefit Trust, has agreed to waive its dividend entitlement in certain circumstances. At 31 December 2010, 3,607,716 ordinary 
2916/21p shares (2009: 2,202,365) with a nominal value of £1,073,725 (2009: £655,466) and a market value of £7,994,699 (2009: £3,611,879) were also 
held in the 1995 BBA Group Employee Share Trust. This included shares being under the Scrip Dividend Scheme: 56,650 shares received on 
21 May 2010 and 40,142 shares received on 29 October 2010. 

11. Share-based payments 
Details of share-based payments are provided within note 22 to the consolidated fi nancial statements. 

12. Pension and other post-retirement benefi ts 
The Company operates a defined benefit pension scheme in the United Kingdom, assets are held in a separate trustee-administered fund. 
Contributions to the scheme are made and pension cost is assessed using the projected unit method. 

Details of the UK Scheme are provided within note 19 to the consolidated fi nancial statements. 
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Financial statements Principal Subsidiary Undertakings 
85 	Independent Auditor’s The following is a list of the principal subsidiary undertakings of the Group at 31 December 2010, each of which is wholly-owned unless 

Report to the Members of 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect otherwise stated. 
of the Consolidated Country  of  incorporation  
Financial Statements and  principal  operation  

86	 Consolidated Income 
Statement 

87	 Consolidated Statement of 
Comprehensive Income 

88	 Consolidated Balance Sheet 

89	 Consolidated Cash Flow 
Statement 

90	 Consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Equity 

91	 Accounting Policies of 
the Group 

95 	 Notes to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

126  	Independent Auditor’s 
Report to the Members of 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect 
of the Parent Company 
Financial Statements 

127 	 Company Balance sheet 

128	 Accounting Policies of 
the Company 

129 	 Notes to the Company 
Financial Statements 

134  	Principal Subsidiary 
Undertakings 

135	 Five Year Summary 

136  	Shareholder Information 

Signature Flight Support Paris SA 
APPH Limited 
APPH Aviation Services Limited 
ASIG Limited 
Balderton Aviation Holdings Limited* 
H+S Aviation Limited* 
Signature Flight Support London Luton Limited 
Signature Flight Support Heathrow Limited 
Signature Flight Support UK Regions Limited 
Aircraft Service International Group Incorporated 
APPH  Wichita  Incorporated  
APPH  Houston  Incorporated  
Barrett Turbine Engine Company 
Dallas  Airmotive  Incorporated  
International  Governor  Services  LLC  
Ontic Engineering and Manufacturing Incorporated 
Signature Flight Support Corporation 

France 
United Kingdom 
United Kingdom 
United Kingdom 
United Kingdom 
United Kingdom 
United Kingdom 
United Kingdom 
United Kingdom 

USA 
USA  
USA  
USA 
USA  
USA  
USA 
USA

 *Shares held by BBA Aviation plc 
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Five Year Summary

 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
 £m £m £m £m £m 

Income Statement 
Revenue  1,183.0 1,080.8 1,156.1 979.4 950.1 

Underlying operating profit (continuing operations)  110.6 100.5 109.7 105.7 102.8 
Exceptional items (10.2) (18.2) (5.0) 24.4 (8.0) 
Interest  (net)  (15.2) (22.3) (20.5) (19.3) (24.6) 

Profit before tax 85.2 60.0 84.2 110.8 70.2 
Tax  (20.2) (14.5) (21.3) (23.6) (20.7) 

Profit for the period from continuing operations 65.0 45.5 62.9 87.2 49.5
 
Loss after tax from discontinued operations  – – – – (76.2)
 
Profit on disposal of disposed businesses – – – – 16.5 


Profit/(loss) for the period  65.0 45.5 62.9 87.2 (10.2) 
Non-controlling interests 0.1 2.4 (0.1) 0.2 (0.1) 

Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary shareholders  65.1 47.9 62.8 87.4 (10.3) 

Earnings per share 
Basic:  
Adjusted  17.6p 14.6p 16.1p 15.4p 14.9p 
Unadjusted  15.2p 11.4p 15.3p 21.2p (2.2)p 
Diluted:  
Adjusted  17.0p 14.3p 16.0p 15.3p 14.9p 
Unadjusted  14.7p 11.2p 15.2p 21.1p (2.1)p 
Dividends 
Dividends per ordinary share 8.1p 7.6p 7.6p 7.6p 8.5p 

Balance sheet 
Employment of capital 
Non-current assets 925.9 927.8 1,067.2 709.2 689.0 
Net current assets 36.9 136.6 205.6 165.7 199.2 

Total assets less current liabilities 962.8 1,064.4 1,272.8 874.9 888.2 
Non-current liabilities  (418.9) (567.0) (784.7) (461.6) (527.2) 
Provisions for liabilities and charges (61.5) (50.3) (50.1) (41.4) (38.5) 

482.4 447.1 438.0 371.9 322.5 

Capital employed 
Called up share capital 128.7 126.0 122.7 122.7 122.5 
Reserves 356.3 322.7 314.5 248.5 199.2 

Shareholders’ funds 485.0 448.7 437.2 371.2 321.7 
Non-controlling interests (2.6) (1.6) 0.8 0.7 0.8 

482.4 447.1 438.0 371.9 322.5 

Capital expenditure 27.8 18.7 30.9 39.8 91.8 
Number of employees, end of year 10,049 9,540 10,557 10,317 10,757 
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Financial statements Shareholder Information 
85 Independent Auditor’s 

Report to the Members of 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect 
of the Consolidated 

Analysis of shareholdings 

% of 

Share price information 
The price of the Company’s shares is available from the voice-activated 

86 

87 

88 

89 

90 

91 

95 

126  

127 

Financial Statements 

Consolidated Income 
Statement 

Consolidated Statement of 
Comprehensive Income 

Consolidated Balance Sheet 

Consolidated Cash Flow 
Statement 

Consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Equity 

Accounting Policies of 
the Group 

Notes to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

Independent Auditor’s 
Report to the Members of 
BBA Aviation plc in Respect 
of the Parent Company 
Financial Statements 

Company Balance sheet 

Number of % of 
 shareholders total 

Size of holding 
Ordinary shareholdings at 31 December 2010 
1–1,000 1,992 48.10 
1,001–5,000 1,395 33.68 
5,001–10,000 259 6.25 
10,001–50,000 203 4.90 
50,001–100,000 61 1.47 
100,001–upwards 232 5.60 

4,142 100.00 

Holders 
Individuals 3,235 78.10 
Pension funds 6 0.14 
Nominee and 
other companies 864 20.86 
Others 37 0.90 

Number of 
shares 

785,992 
3,132,315 
1,818,508 
4,414,310 
4,475,402 

417,768,506 

432,395,033 

10,532,391 
27,794 

419,798,172 
2,036,676 

share
capital 

0.18 
0.72 
0.42 
1.02 
1.04 

96.62

100.00 

2.44 
0.01 

97.08 
0.47

Financial Times Cityline Service: BBA Aviation plc ordinary shares – 
telephone: 09058 171 690 then say BBA Aviation. Calls are charged at 
75p per minute from a BT landline. Average call duration will be one 
minute for one stock quote. Cost from other networks and mobile 
phones may be higher. 

For the purpose of Capital Gains Tax calculations, the base cost 
of the old BBA Group plc shares held immediately before the 
demerger on 17 November 2006 has to be apportioned between BBA 
Aviation plc shares and Fiberweb plc shares. The ratio is BBA Aviation 
plc shares 84.73%: Fiberweb plc shares 15.27%. This is based on the 
respective market values on 17 November 2006, determined  
according to CGT rules at that time, of 281.155p for BBA Aviation plc 
shares and 170.5p for Fiberweb plc shares. This information is provided 
as indicative guidance. Any person wishing to calculate their Capital 
Gains Tax should take their own financial advice from their accountant 
or other authorised financial adviser and if they are in any doubt about 
their taxation position they should obtain professional advice. 

128	 Accounting Policies of 
the Company 

129 	 Notes to the Company 
Financial Statements 

134  	Principal Subsidiary 
Undertakings 

135	 Five Year Summary 

136  	Shareholder Information 

4,142 100.00 432,395,033 100.00 

Dividend Reinvestment Plan 
A Dividend Reinvestment Plan is available, giving ordinary  
shareholders the option to buy shares in lieu of a cash dividend. Please 
contact the Company’s registrars for further details. 

Share dealing service 
A share dealing service is available for UK shareholders from Capita 
Share Dealing Services to either sell or buy BBA Aviation plc shares. For 
further information on this service, please contact: www.capitadeal. 
com (on-line dealing) or 0871 664 0445 (telephone dealing). Calls 
cost 10p per minute plus network charges. Lines are open 8.30 am – 
5.30 pm Mon – Fri. 

ShareGift 
Shareholders with a small number of shares, the value of which makes 
it uneconomical to sell, may wish to consider donating them to charity 
through ShareGift, a registered charity (charity no. 1052686). Further 
information is available by visiting www.sharegift.org or by  
telephoning ShareGift on 020 7930 3737. 

Key dates Date payable 

Financial calendar 
Dividend and interest payments 
Ordinary shares:
 final 2010 June
 interim 2011 November 
5% cumulative preference shares February and August 

Date announced 

Announcement of Group results 
Half year results August 
Annual results March 
Report and accounts Posted March 
Interim Management Statements May and November 

Registered offi  ce 
20 Balderton Street, London W1K 6TL 
Telephone: 020 7514 3999 Fax: 020 7408 2318 
http://www.bbaaviation.com 
web enquiries to: info@bbaaviation.com 
Registered in England 
Company number: 53688 

Company registrar 
Capita Registrars, PO Box 504, Beckenham BR3 9GU 
Telephone: 0871 664 0300 (calls cost 10p per minute plus network  
charges). Lines are open 8.30 am – 5.30 pm Mon – Fri. 
From outside the UK: +44 20 8639 3399 
e-mail shareholder.services@capitaregistrars.com 
http://www.capitaregistrars.com 

Please contact the registrars directly if you wish to advise a  
change of name, address or dividend mandate or wish to participate in 
the Dividend Reinvestment Plan. 

You can access general shareholder information and personal 
shareholding details from our registrars’ website. Our registrars 
provide a share portal through which you can view up to date 
information and manage your shareholding. You can register for this 
service via www.capitashareportal.com. You will require your unique 
holder code, which can be found on your share certificate or dividend 
tax voucher, to register for the share portal service or to access other 
information from the registrar’s website. 

Beneficial owners of shares who have been nominated by the 
registered holder of those shares to receive information rights under 
section 146 of the Companies Act 2006 are required to direct all 
communications to the registered holder of their shares, not to the 
Company’s registrar, Capita Registrars, or to the Company. 
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This Annual Report is addressed solely to members of BBA Aviation plc as 
a body. Neither the Company nor its directors accept or assume 
responsibility to any person for this Annual Report beyond the 
responsibilities arising from the production of this Annual Report under 
the requirements of applicable English company law. Sections of this 
Annual Report, including the Directors’ Report and Directors’ 
Remuneration Report contain forward-looking statements including, 
without limitation, statements relating to: future demand and markets of 
the Group’s products and services; research and development relating to 
new products and services; liquidity and capital; and implementation of 
restructuring plans and efficiencies. These forward-looking statements 
involve risks and uncertainties because they relate to events and depend 
on circumstances that will or may occur in the future. 

Accordingly, actual results may differ materially from those set out in the 
forward-looking statements as a result of a variety of factors including, 
without limitation: changes in interest and exchange rates, commodity 
prices and other economic conditions; negotiations with customers 
relating to renewal of contracts and future volumes and prices; events 
affecting international security, including global health issues and 
terrorism; changes in regulatory environment; and the outcome of 
litigation. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly update or 
revise any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new 
information, future events or otherwise. Pages 2 to 84 inclusive consist 
of a directors’ report and directors’ remuneration report that have 
been drawn up and presented in accordance with and in reliance upon 
applicable English company law and the liabilities of the directors in 
connection with that report shall be subject to the limitations and 
restrictions provided by such law. 

Designed by sasdesign.co.uk 
Photography by © Benedict Redgrove 
Board Photography by © Noorie Parvez 
Printed by Fulmar Colour. 
Fulmar Colour are ISO14001 certified, CarbonNeutral®, Alcohol Free 
and FSC & PEFC chain of Custody certified. The inks used are vegetable 
oil based. 
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